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PART |

ltem 1. Business

This report contains forward-looking statemseanithin the meaning of Section 21E of the Se@msiExchange Act of 1934. Words such as
“projected,” “expects,” “believes,” “intends” an@s$sumes” and similar expressions are used to fgdéativard-looking statements. These
statements are made based upon current expectatidnsrojections about our business and assumptiadg by our management are not
guarantees of future performance, nor do we assunyi@bligation to update such forward-looking stegats after the date this report is filed.
Our actual results could differ materially from slgoprojected in the forward-looking statementsiiany reasons, including the risk factors
listed in Item 1A. “Risk Factors” and the factoisalissed below.

”ou

General

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (‘leat or the “Company”) design, develop, manufacamd sell temperature-activated and
other specialty polymer products for a varietyadd products, agricultural products, and licensadingr applications. This proprietary
polymer technology is the foundation, and a kefedéntiating advantage, upon which Landec has lsiliusiness.

The principal products and services offergdhie Company in its two core businesse$-eed Products Technology and Agricultural S
Technology — and in the Technology Licensing/ Reseand Development business are described belioan€éial information concerning
the industry segments for which the Company repdtteoperations during fiscal years 2004, 2005 20@b6 is summarized in Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Landec’s Food Products Technology busingssiated through its subsidiary Apio, Inc., combibasdec’s proprietary food packaging
technology with the capabilities of a large natidoad supplier and value-added produce procedsus. combination was consummated in
1999 when the Company acquired Apio, Inc. and oertdated entities (collectively “Apio”).

Landec’s Agricultural Seed Technology bustheperated through its subsidiary Landec Ag, (fiandec Ag”), combines Landec’s
proprietary Intellicoa® seed coating technology with its unique direct reéirlg and consultative selling capabilities whithbtained with its
acquisition of Fielder's Choice Direct (“FieldeiGhoice”), a direct marketer of hybrid seed cornl ®97. In August 2005, Landec Ag
acquired the assets of Heartland Hybrids, Inc. éittland Hybrids”) and has combined the Heartlanbritis® brand with its Fieldegs Choice
®prand to sell seed corn, alfalfa and soybeans.

In addition to its two core businesses, tbenfany also operates a Technology Licensing/ Relseard Development business that
licenses products to, and conducts joint researdrdavelopment with industry leaders outside ofdear's core businesses, such as Air
Products and Chemicals, Inc. (*Air Products”). Tempany also engages in research and developnténties and supplies products based
on its Intelimer® polymer technology to companies such as Akzo NahdIL'Oreal of Paris (these supply activities a@uded in the
technology fields licensed to Air Products). Fagreent disclosure purposes, the Technology Liceh$tegearch and Development business
is included in Corporate and Other (in Note 14n® €onsolidated Financial Statements).

The Company'’s core polymer products are baseits patented proprietary Intelim@polymers, which differ from other polymers in that
they can be customized to abruptly change theisighl/characteristics when heated or cooled thr@ugte-set temperature switch. For
instance, Intelimer polymers can change withinrtregge of one or two degrees Celsius from a nonsighestate to a highly tacky, adhesive
state; from an impermeable state to a highly pebteestate; or from a solid state to a viscous Htate. These abrupt changes are repeated!
reversible and can be tailored by Landec to octapecific temperatures, thereby offering substhecthmpetitive advantages in the
Company’s target markets.
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The Company was incorporated in CaliforniaGmtober 31, 1986. The Company completed its initidlic offering in 1996 and is listed
on The NASDAQ Global Market (formerly the Nasdadibiaal Market) under the symbol “LNDC".

Technology Overview

Polymers are important and versatile matefiaind in many of the products of modern life.t@erpolymers, such as cellulose and
natural rubber, occur in nature. Man-made polynreriside nylon fibers used in carpeting and clothitmatings used in paints and finishes,
plastics such as polyethylene, and elastomersinsattomobile tires and latex gloves. Historicallynthetic polymers have been designed
and developed primarily for improved mechanical #retmal properties, such as strength and thetahiliwithstand high temperatures.
Improvements in these and other properties anddbke of manufacturing of synthetic polymers halenald these materials to replace wood,
metal and natural fibers in many applications dierlast 50 years. More recently, scientists hacaded their efforts on identifying and
developing sophisticated polymers with novel prtipsrfor a variety of commercial applications.

Landec’s Intelimer polymers are a proprietelass of synthetic polymeric materials that resptantemperature changes in a controllable,
predictable way. Typically, polymers gradually chann adhesion, permeability and viscosity overadrtemperature ranges. Landec’s
Intelimer materials, in contrast, can be desigieeixhibit abrupt changes in permeability, adhesiod/or viscosity over temperature range
narrow as 1°C to 2°C. These changes can be desigreedtur at relatively low temperatures (0°C tQD) that are relatively easy to
maintain in industrial and commercial environmefigure lillustrates the effect of temperature on Intelinmaterials as compared to typi
polymers.

E (FIGURE)

Landecs proprietary polymer technology is based on thecsire and phase behavior of Intelimer materitite abrupt thermal transitio
of specific Intelimer materials are achieved thitotige controlled use of hydrocarbon side chainsat@attached to a polymer backbone.
Below a pre-determined switch temperature, therpelys side chains align through weak hydrophobieractions resulting in a crystalline
structure. When this side chain crystallizable pady is heated to, or above, this switch temperathese interactions are disrupted and the
polymer is transformed into an amorphous, viscoate sBecause this transformation involves a playsind not a chemical change, this
process is repeatedly reversible. Landec can egidlymer switch temperature anywhere between 6°ID0°C by varying the length of the
side chains. The reversible transitions betweestallyne and amorphous states are illustrateeidare 2below.
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E (FIGURE)

Side chain crystallizable polymers were fiistcovered by academic researchers in the mid:495bese polymers were initially
considered to be merely of scientific curiosityrfra polymer physics perspective, and, to the Corip&mowledge, no significant
commercial applications were pursued. In the miflel®, Dr. Ray Stewart, the Company’s founder, bexaterested in the idea of using the
temperatureactivated permeability properties of these polynterdeliver various materials such as drugs antiqidss. After forming Lande
in 1986, Dr. Stewart subsequently discovered bnoatil@y for these polymers. After several yeafdasic research, commercial developn
efforts began in the early 1990’s, resulting iniatiproducts in mid-1994.

Landec’s Intelimer materials are generallytegsized from long side-chain acrylic monomers #éina derived primarily from natural
materials such as coconut and palm oils that ajfeyhpurified and designed to be manufactured egooally through known synthetic
processes. These acrylic-monomer raw materialtharepolymerized by Landec leading to many diffeede-chain crystallizable polymers
whose properties vary depending upon the initiaiemi@s and the synthetic process. Intelimer makeigan be made into many different
forms, including films, coatings, microcapsules distrete forms.

Description of Core Business

The Company participates in two core busiseggnents — Food Products Technology and Agriclltteed Technology. In addition to
these two core segments Landec licenses technaludjgonducts ongoing research and developmentugpudiess materials through its

Technology Licensing/ Research and Developmentriggsi.

The Company began marketing its proprietatglimer-based BreatheWaymembranes in 1996 for use in the fresh-cut produce
packaging market, one of the fastest growing seggriarthe produce industry.

Food Products Technology Busine

5
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Landec’s proprietary BreatheWay packaging technolelgen combined with fresh-cut or whole produceailtssn packaged produce with
increased shelf life and reduced shrink (wasteflauit the need for ice during the distribution cydibe resulting products are referred to as
“value-added” products. In 1999, the Company aeglipio, its then largest customer in the Food BetsiTechnology business and one of
the nation’s leading marketers and packers of predund specialty packaged fresh-cut vegetables éjlizes state-of -the-art fresh-cut
produce processing technology and year-round atoesgsecialty packaged produce products which Alstributes to the top U.S. retall
grocery chains, major club stores and to the fomitseindustry. The Company’s proprietary BreathgMgackaging business has been
combined with Apio into a subsidiary that retaihe Apio, Inc. name. This vertical integration withhe Food Products Technology business
gives Landec direct access to the large and grofsisip-cut and whole produce market.

The Technology and Market Opportunity: Proprietémelimer Packaging Technolog

Certain types of fresh-cut and whole prodeee spoil or discolor rapidly when packaged in @ortional packaging materials and are
therefore limited in their ability to be distribatéroadly to markets. The Company’s proprietaryafieWay packaging technology extends
the shelf life and quality of fresh-cut and whoteduce.

Fresh-cut produce is pre-washed, cut andgupazkin a form that is ready to use by the consameiis thus typically sold at premium
price levels compared to unpackaged produce. TheWoS. fresh produce market is estimated to Ievdxen $100 to $120 billion. Of this,
U.S. retail sales of fresh-cut produce is estimédezbmprise 10% of the fresh produce market. Thm@any believes that the growth of this
market has been driven by consumer demand andillivgness to pay for convenience, freshness, umifquality, safety and nutritious
produce delivered to the point of sale. Accordimghte International Fresh-Cut Produce Associatioa fresheut produce market is one of t
highest growth areas in retail grocery stores.

Although fresh-cut produce companies havedumdess in the salad market, the industry has $leento diversify into other fresh-cut
vegetables or fruits due primarily to limitatiomsfilm and plastic tray materials used to packageH-cut produce. After harvesting,
vegetables and fruit continue to respire, consuroiygen and releasing carbon dioxide. Too mucloellittle oxygen can result in premature
spoilage and decay and, in some cases, promotgdieh of microorganisms that jeopardize inherewdfsafety. Conventional packaging
films used today, such as polyethylene and polygdene, can be made with modest permeability to eryand carbon dioxide, but often do
not provide the optimal atmosphere for the prochmekaged. Shortcomings of conventional packagingmads have not significantly
hindered the growth in the fresh-cut salad markeslbise lettuce, unlike many vegetables and frag |bw respiration requirements.

The respiration rate of produce varies fragatable-to -vegetable and from fruit-to -fruit.€Tthallenge facing the industry is to develop
packaging for the high respiring, high value anelfslife sensitive vegetable and fruit markets. Tampany believes that today’s
conventional packaging films face numerous chaksrig adapting to meet the diversification of puévegetables and fruit evolving in the
industry without compromising shelf life and produguality. To mirror the growth experienced in thesh-cut salad market, the markets for
high respiring vegetables and fruit such as braccalliflower, asparagus, papayas, bananas amigbevill require a more versatile and
sophisticated packaging solution for which the Camps BreatheWay packaging technology was developed

The respiration rate of produce also varigh t'emperature. As temperature increases, progenerally respires at a higher rate, which
speeds up the aging process, resulting in shortemeléllife and increased potential for decay, lsg@, and loss of texture and dehydration
produce is transported from the processing plaouth the refrigerated distribution chain to foass= locations, retail grocery stores and
club stores, and finally to the ultimate consunbemperatures can fluctuate significantly. Thereftemperature control is a constant
challenge in preserving the quality of fresh-cud arhole produce — a challenge few current packafjing can fulfill. The Company
believes that its temperature-responsive Breathepdalaging technology is well suited to the chajksof the produce distribution process.
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Using its Intelimer polymer technology, Laond®as developed packaging technology that it beieéddresses many of the shortcomings
of conventional packaging materials. A membrarapislied over a small cutout section or an apertfigeflexible film bag or plastic tray.
This highly permeable “window” acts as the mechais provide the majority of the gas transmissiequirements for the entire package.
These membranes are designed to provide thredalrbenefits:

* High PermeabilityLandec’s BreatheWay packaging technology is desigog@ermit transmission of oxygen and carbon diexit 300
times the rate of conventional packaging films. TQunpany believes that these higher permeabilitgltewill facilitate the packaging
diversity required to market many types of fi-cut and whole produc

« Ability to Adjust Oxygen and Carbon Dioxide Pernibb BreatheWay packaging can be tailored with carboride to oxygen
transfer ratios ranging from 1.0 to 12.0 and selebt transmit oxygen and carbon dioxide at optimates to sustain the quality and
shelf life of packaged produc

* Temperature Responsivendsandec has developed breathable membranes thaem@@signed to increase or decrease permeability in
response to environmental temperature changesCohmany has developed packaging that respondghethoxygen requirements at
elevated temperatures but is also reversible, etuins to its original state as temperatures declihe temperature responsiveness of
these membranes allows ice to be removed fromitheldition system which results in numerous besefihese benefits include (1) a
substantial decrease in freight cost, (2) reduistdaf contaminated produce because ice can beiercaf micro organisms, (3) the
elimination of expensive waxed cartons that cateotecycled, and (4) the potential decrease in waleted accidents due to melted
ice.

Landec believes that growth of the overadiduce market will be driven by the increasing dednfam the convenience of fresh-cut
produce. This demand will in turn require packadimat facilitates the quality and shelf life of duae transported to fresh-cut distributors in
bulk and pallet quantities. The Company believes iththe future its BreatheWay packaging technpleidl be useful for packaging a divel
variety of fresh-cut and whole produce productgeRtial opportunities for using Landec’s technolamyside of the produce market exist in
cut flowers and in other food products.

Landec is working with leaders in the cludrst retail grocery chain and foodservice market® Company believes it will have growth
opportunities for the next several years through aestomers and products in the United States,restpa of its existing customer
relationships, and through export and shipmenspetialty packaged produce.

Landec manufactures its BreatheWay packairgugh selected qualified contract manufactuderaddition to using BreatheWay
packaging for its value-added produce businessCtmpany markets and sells BreatheWay packagiegttirto food distributors.

The Business: Apio, In

Apio had revenues of approximately $195 wmillfor the fiscal year ended May 28, 2006, $17%anilfor the fiscal year ended May 29,
2005 and $168 million for the fiscal year ended Ns@y 2004.

Based in Guadalupe, California, Apio, whequaed in 1999, consisted of two major businessefirst; the “fee-for-service” selling and
marketing of whole produce and second, the spggialtkaged fresh-cut and whole value-added prodgseelucts that are washed and
packaged in our proprietary BreatheWay packagimg. “Tee-for-service” business historically includégld harvesting and packing, cooling
and marketing of vegetables and fruit on a contoasis for growers in California’s Santa Maria, Saaquin and Imperial Valleys as well as
in Arizona and Mexico. The Company exited this hass and certain assets associated with the bssiregs sold in June 2003 to Beachside
Produce, LLC (formerly known as Apio Fresh). Beaddd’roduce is owned by a group of entities andqgves that supply produce to Apio,
including Nicholas Tompkins, Apio’s President anki€® Executive Officer. Under the terms of the s&@leachside Produce purchased certain
equipment and carton inventory from Apio in exchafay approximately $410,000. In connection wita Hale, Beachside Produce will pay
Apio an on-going royalty fee per carton sold
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for the use of Apio’s brand names and Beachsiddu@®and its owner growers entered into a long-s&mply agreement with Apio to
supply produce to Apio for its fresh-cut value-adifbeisiness. The fresh-cut value-added processeldigiobusiness, developed within the
last ten years, markets a variety of fresh-cutwahdle vegetables to the top retail grocery chamsaub stores. During the fiscal year ended

May 28, 2006, Apio shipped nearly seventeen miltartons of produce to leading supermarket remilgholesalers, foodservice suppliers
and club stores throughout the United States aednationally, primarily in Asia.

There are five major distinguishing chardst&s of Apio that provide competitive advantagethe Food Products Technology market:

«Value-Added SupplierApio has structured its business as a marketesalher of fresh-cut and whole valaglded produce. It is focus
on developing its Eat Sma&ttrand and other brands for all of its fresh-cut emle value-added products. As retail grocery elot
store chains consolidate, Apio is well positionedaaingle source of a broad range of prod:

* Reduced Farming RiskApio reduces its farming risk by not taking ownépstf farmland, and instead, contracts with growfers
produce. The ye-round sourcing of produce is a key component tdrémst-cut and whole vali-added processing busine

« Lower Cost StructureApio has strategically invested in the rapidly ghogvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. Apio’
60,000 square foot value-added processing plamtt@mmated with state-of -the-art vegetable proogssguipment. Virtually all of
Apio’s value-added products utilize Landec’s prefary BreatheWay packaging technology. Apio’s sggtis to operate one large
central processing facility in one of Californidésgest, lowest cost growing regions (Santa Maia#ley) and use packaging technology
to allow for the nationwide delivery of fresh praduproducts

« Export Capability:Apio is uniquely positioned to benefit from the gth in export sales to Asia and Europe over the degade with
its export business, CalEx. Through CalEx, Apiousrently one of the largest U.S. exporters of botido Asia and is selling its iceless
products to Asia using proprietary BreatheWay pgiigtechnology.

« Expanded Product Line Using TechnoloApio, through the use of its BreatheWay packag@ahology, is introducing on average
fifteen new value-added products each year. Thesepnoduct offerings range from various sizes e$ffr-cut bagged products, to

vegetable trays, to whole produce, to meal lingsroflucts, to side dish lines of products. Duriisgdl year 2006 Apio introduced 19
new products

Apio established in May 2005 its Apio Techisiion to advance the sales of BreatheWay packagictgnology for shelf-life sensitive
vegetables and fruit, including unique packagingtimns for produce in large packages includingpphig and pallet-sized containers.

For the past ten years, the Company has reatkts Eat Smart fresh-cut bagged vegetabless tag iceless products using its
BreatheWay packaging technology and has now exjghitgleechnology to include packaging for banahas&eptember 2004, Apio entered
into an agreement with Chiquita whereby Apio wilpply Chiquita with its proprietary banana packagiechnology on a worldwide basis
the ripening, conservation and shelf-life extensibbananas in selective applications on an exatulsasis and for other applications on a
non-exclusive basis. In addition, Apio will provi@hiquita with ongoing research and developmemtggss technology support for the

BreatheWay membranes and bags, and technical seswpport throughout the customer chain in ordessist in the development and
market acceptance of the technology.

For its part, Chiquita provides marketingstdbution and retail sales support for Chiquitadraas sold worldwide in BreatheWay
packaging. To maintain the exclusive license, Citdgoust meet annual minimum purchase threshold@edtheWay banana packages.
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The initial market focus for the BreatheWanhna packaging technology using Chig@iBrand bananas will be commercial outlets that
normally do not sell bananas because of their Statf-life — outlets such as quick serve restatsrazonvenience stores, drug stores and
coffee chain outlets.

In addition to the introduction of speciaftstckaging for bananas, the Company is sellingrieaheWay packaging technology for case
liner packaging for bunch and crown broccoli, eggnt pound cases of loose broccoli florets, Asidarbmccoli crowns and export cut brocc
crowns.

The Company’s specialty packaging for caserlproducts reduces freight expense up to 50%itmnating the weight and space
consumed by ice. In addition to reducing the cé$teight, the removal of ice from the distributispstem offers additional benefits as
outlined above.

Product enhancements in the fresh-cut veggeliae include fresh-cut vegetable trays desigioddok like they were freshly made in the
retail grocery store or at home. The rectangubay tlesign is convenient for storage in consumefsigerators and expands the Company’s
wide-ranging vegetable tray line.

In fiscal year 2006, sales of the value-adekggktable tray line grew 22%, and according to.Afglsen, for the three months ended
March 31, 2006, the Company’s market share forssafi@egetable trays to retail grocery stores euhS. was 46%.

Foster Farms recently launched a new mealthiat combines fresh cut vegetables and chickechwises the Company’s BreatheWay
technology. In addition, the Company is in marlests for new lines of fresh cut vegetable sideedisind vegetable salads.

Agricultural Seed Technology Busine:

Landec Ag's strategy is to build a verticaliyegrated seed technology company based ondtwriptary Intellicoat seed coating
technology and its direct marketing and consuleasiglling capabilities.

The Technology and Market Opportunity: Intellic&eed Coating

Landec has developed and, through Landedsfapmmercially selling its Intellicoat seed cogtnan Intelimer-based agricultural
material designed to control seed germination tinincrease crop yields and extend crop plantingdeivs. These coatings are being applied
to corn and soybean seeds. According to the U.8ciltural Statistics Board, the total planted age in 2006 in the United States for corn
and soybean seed was approximately 78 million &nchilion, respectively.

For the coating technology the strategy ideweelop a patented, functional polymer coatingnetogy that will be broadly licensed to the
seed industry. The company will initially commeti@a products for the corn and soybean marketsttaea broaden its applications to other
seed crops. Landec Ag will use its Fielder's Chd@iect marketing and sales company to launchgpieations for corn to build awareness
for this technology and then broadly license itpliations to the rest of the industry.

Landec Ag's Intellicoat seed coating applmas are designed to control seed germination timinmcrease crop yields, reduce risks and
extend crop-planting windows. These coatings aresatly available on hybrid corn, soybeans and rirdleed corn used for seed production.
In fiscal year 2000, Landec Ag launched its firstnenercial product, Pollinator Pl@coatings, which is a coating application used ladse
companies as a method for spreading pollinatidndeease yields and reduce risk in the productfdmybrid seed corn. There are
approximately 650,000 acres of seed productiohéninited States and in 2006 Pollinator Plus wasl liy 35 seed companies on
approximately 15% of the seed production acrekénd.S.

In 2003, Landec Ag commercialized Early PRnorn, its seed coating application for hybrid cdmy selling the product directly to
farmers through its Fielder's Choice Dir€dbrand. This application allows farmers to planbiobld soils without the risk of chilling injury,
and enables farmers to plant as much as four wesakier than normal. With this capability, farmare able to utilize labor and equipment
more efficiently, provide flexibility during the itical planting period and avoid yield losses caligg late planting. In 2006, nine seed
companies offered Intellicoat on their hybrid seech offerings.
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The third commercial application for seedtaanis the Relay“ Cropping system of wheat and Intellicoat coatecbhsays, which allows
farmers to plant and harvest two crops in the sgeae on the same ground in geographic areas wioetdedcropping is usually not possible.
This provides significant financial benefit espdlgito farmers in the Corn Belt who grow wheat asirggle crop.

The Business: Landec /

Landec Ag had sales of approximately $34 lianifor the fiscal year ended May 28, 2006, $2&iion for the fiscal year ended
May 29, 2005 and $23.6 million for the fiscal yeaded May 30, 2004.

On August 29, 2005, Landec Ag closed the &itipn of Heartland Hybrids, Inc., the second ksdirect marketer of seed corn after
Landec Ag’s Fielder’'s Choice Direct brand. With qdementary strengths in geographic areas and shtamels, the new combined
organization has the opportunity to develop thetrefitcient and effective sales, marketing andriistion system in the seed industry,
expanding Landec Ag’s sales of both uncoated seddrdellicoat coated seed.

Based in Monticello, Indiana, Landec Ag affercomprehensive line of corn hybrids and alfedfenore than 12,500 farmers in over forty
states through direct marketing programs. The sscokLandec Ag comes, in part, from its expelitisgelling directly to the farmer,
bypassing the traditional and costly farmer-desystem. We believe that this direct channel ofrithistion provides up to a 35% cost
advantage compared to the farmer-dealer system.

In order to support its direct marketing progs, Landec Ag has developed a proprietary dimecketing, and consultative selling
information technology that enables state-of -thtaveethods for communicating with a broad arrajaofers. This proprietary direct
marketing information technology includes a currdatabase of over 163,000 farmers.

The acquisitions by Landec Ag of Fielder’'soi@ie in 1997 and Heartland Hybrids in 2005 weratsgic in providing a cost-effective
vehicle for marketing Intellicoat seed coating pro$. The Company believes that the combinatiocpafing technology and a direct channel
of distribution, telephonic and electronic commeragpabilities will enable Landec Ag to more quickighieve meaningful market penetrat

Technology Licensing/ Research and Development Besises

We believe our technology has commercial mtidkin a wide range of industrial, consumer areinal applications beyond those
identified in our core businesses. For example coue patented technology, Intelimer materials, lmamsed to trigger catalysts, insecticides
or fragrances just by changing the temperaturlefritelimer materials or to activate adhesivesugh controlled temperature change. In
order to exploit these opportunities, we have euténto and will enter into licensing and collakiora corporate agreements for product
development and/or distribution in certain fieldawever, given the infrequency and unpredictabiityvhen the Company may enter into
any such licensing and research and developmeamgements, the Company is unable to disclosenigméial expectations in advance of
entering into such arrangements.

Industrial Materials and Adhesivt

Landec’s industrial product development sigstis to focus on coatings, catalysts, resinsitiadd and adhesives in the polymer materials
market. During the product development stage, th@@any identifies corporate partners to supporbtigoing development and testing of
these products, with the ultimate goal of licengimg applications at the appropriate time.

Intelimer Polymer Systen

Landec has developed latent catalysts ugepdtending pot-life, extending shelf life, redougiwaste and improving thermoset cure
methods. Some of these latent catalysts are ciyeging distributed by Akzo-Nobel Chemicals B.¥rdugh a licensing agreement with Air
Products. The Company has also developed Intejimgmer materials useful in enhancing the formagptions for various personal care
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products. The rights to develop and sell Landeatsrit catalysts and personal care technologies lieeresed to Air Products in March 2006.
Landec’s pressure sensitive adhesives (“P$&chnology is currently being evaluated in a vgradtindustrial and medical applications wh
strong adhesion to a substrate (i.e. steel, gidgxn, skin, etc.) is desired for a defined tipexiod and upon thermal triggering, results in a
significant peel strength reduction. For exampidea PSA systems exhibit greater than 90% redudtigeel strength upon warming, mak
them ideal for applications on fragile substrates.

Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicatstrategy is focused on supplying Intelimer mait®to industry leaders for use in lotions
and creams, and potentially color cosmetics, lijgstand hair care. The Company’s partner, Air Petgjus currently shipping products to
L'Oreal of Paris for use in lotions and creamseSalf Landec materials used in L’Oreal productshanst been material to the Company’s
financials.

Medical Applications

On December 23, 2005, Landec entered inexatusive licensing agreement with a medical deemmpany. This company paid Landec
an upfront license fee of $250,000 for the exclesights to use Landec’s Intelimer materials tedbaypin a specific device field worldwide.
Landec will also receive royalties on the salerafdoicts incorporating Landec’s technology. In additthe Company has received shares of
preferred stock valued at $1.3 million which repreis a 19.9% ownership interest in the medicalagesompany. At this time, the Company
is unable to predict the ultimate outcome of thikaboration with the medical device company andtitmng or amount of future revenues, if
any.

Sales and Marketing

Each of the Company’s core businesses aggosigul by dedicated sales and marketing resouftesCompany intends to develop its
internal sales capacity as more products progossartl commercialization and as business volumeradggeographically. During fiscal ye
2006, sales to the Company’s top five customerswatted for approximately 46% of its revenues, i top customer, Costco Wholesale
Corp., accounting for approximately 16% of the Camys revenues.

Food Products Technology Busine

Apio has 18 sales people, located in ce@adifornia and throughout the U.S., supportingéRport business and the specialty packaged
value-added produce business.

Agricultural Seed Technology Busine:

Landec Ag utilizes 49 seed sales consulimmiisassociates located in Monticello, Indiana aaddel, Minnesota for its direct marketing
seed corn and Intellicoat coated products. Cust@mmetacts are made based on direct responses@uidés from customers.

Seasonality

The Company’s sales are moderately seasdisdtrically, our direct marketer of hybrid cornesk Landec Ag, has seen its revenues and
profits concentrated over a few months during fivéng planting season (generally during the Comfzathyrd and fourth quarters). In
addition, Apio can be heavily affected by seasorether factors which have impacted quarterly tssslich as high cost of sourcing proc
in December 2003, January 2004 and March/ Aprib2@@e to a shortage of essential value-added peodieims.
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Manufacturing and Processing

Landec intends to control the manufacturihggsoown products whenever possible, as it bebaat there is considerable manufacturing
margin opportunity in its products. In additionet@ompany believes that know-how and trade secegtde better maintained by Landec
retaining some manufacturing capabilities in-house.

Food Products Technology Business

The manufacturing process for the Compangopipetary BreatheWay packaging products is coregrizf polymer manufacturing,
membrane manufacturing and label package converaitmrd party toll manufacturer currently makeguwally all of the polymers for the
BreatheWay packaging. Select outside contractareictly manufacture the breathable membranes anddahas transitioned virtually all
the label package conversion to Apio’s Guadalup#itiato meet the increasing product demand anprtwvide additional developmental
capabilities.

Apio processes virtually all of its fresh-amatlue-added products in its state-of -the-art ssing facility located in Guadalupe, California.
Cooling of produce is done through third partied Apio Cooling LP, a separate company in which Apés a 60% ownership interest and is
the general partner.

Agricultural Seed Technology Busine:

The Company performs its batch coating oparatin a leased facility in Oxford, Indiana. THegility is being used to coat other seed
companies’ inbred seed corn with the Company’sifatbr Plus seed corn coatings.

The Company has a pilot manufacturing facilitIndiana to support the commercialization effarly Plant corn and for its Relay
Cropping System for wheat/coated soybean prodiibis.facility utilizes a continuous coating proc#sat has increased seed coating
capabilities by tenfold compared to the previoustaan using batch coaters. Landec Ag contractsrfmdyztion of its hybrid seed corn from
established seed producers.

General

Many of the raw materials used in manufaotydertain of the Company’s products are currgmtischased from a single source,
including certain monomers used to synthesizeiinggl polymers and substrate materials for the Cawigabreathable membranes. In
addition, a large majority of the hybrid corn véigs sold by Landec Ag are sourced from a singéel ggoducer. Upon manufacturing
of seed coating operations and as hybrid corn satesase, the Company may enter into alternatipply arrangements. Although to date
Company has not experienced difficulty acquiringemals for the manufacture of its products nor basdec Ag experienced difficulty in
acquiring hybrid corn varieties, no assurance @giben that interruptions in supplies will not acin the future, that the Company will be
able to obtain substitute vendors, or that the Gompvill be able to procure comparable materialkydarid corn varieties at similar prices
and terms within a reasonable time. Any such iofron of supply could have a material adversecefda the Company’s ability to
manufacture and distribute its products and, camnsetty, could materially and adversely affect thenany’s business, operating results and
financial condition.

Research and Development

Landec is focusing its research and developmesources on both existing and new applicatidrits Intelimer technology. Expenditures
for research and development for the fiscal yeaded May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 200/48.0 million, $2.5 million and
$3.5 million, respectively. Research and developregpenditures funded by corporate partners we@® $00 for fiscal year ended May 28,
2006, $20,000 for the fiscal year ended May 2952&d $173,000 for the fiscal year ended May 3042The Company may continue to
seek funds for applied materials research progfeons U.S. government agencies as well as from coroialeentities. The Company
anticipates that it will continue to have signifitaesearch
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and development expenditures in order to maintainompetitive position with a continuing flow @inovative, high-quality products and
services. As of May 28, 2006, Landec had 23 em@syngaged in research and development with exyeria polymer and analytical
chemistry, product application, product formulatiomechanical and chemical engineering.

Competition

The Company operates in highly competitivd eapidly evolving fields, and new developmentsexpected to continue at a rapid pace.
Competition from large food packaging and agriaateompanies is intense. In addition, the natdtd@® Company’s collaborative
arrangements and its technology licensing busimessresult in its corporate partners and licenbeesming competitors of the Company.
Many of these competitors have substantially grdatancial and technical resources and produddioth marketing capabilities than the
Company, and many have substantially greater expegiin conducting field trials, obtaining regufstapprovals and manufacturing and
marketing commercial products. There can be norassa that these competitors will not succeed ireldping alternative technologies and
products that are more effective, easier to usessrexpensive than those which have been or &g beveloped by the Company or that
would render the Company’s technology and prodobsolete and non-competitive.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

The Companyg success depends in large part on its abilitytaio patents, maintain trade secret protectionoguadlate without infringin
on the proprietary rights of third parties. The @amy has twenty-fivactive U.S. patents with expiration dates rangmegif2009 to 2021 ai
has filed applications for additional U.S. pateatsell as certain corresponding patent applinat@utside the United States, relating to the
Company'’s technology. The Company’s issued paienbsde claims relating to compositions, deviced age of a class of temperature
sensitive polymers that exhibit distinctive propestof permeability, adhesion and viscosity confflere can be no assurance that any of the
pending patent applications will be approved, thatCompany will develop additional proprietary gwots that are patentable, that any
patents issued to the Company will provide the Camgpwith competitive advantages or will not be traded by any third parties or that the
patents of others will not prevent the commercalan of products incorporating the Company’s tetbgy. Furthermore, there can be no
assurance that others will not independently dewsimilar products, duplicate any of the Compamy@ducts or design around the
Company’s patents. Any of the foregoing resultsdd¢dave a material adverse effect on the Companyséness, operating results and
financial condition.

The commercial success of the Company wslh @lepend, in part, on its ability to avoid infiiimg patents issued to others. The Company
has received, and may in the future receive, fioind pparties, including some of its competitorstices claiming that it is infringing third
party patents or other proprietary rights. If thenghany were determined to be infringing any thiedty patent, the Company could be
required to pay damages, alter its products orge®es, obtain licenses or cease certain actiVitiesldition, if patents are issued to others
which contain claims that compete or conflict wittlose of the Company and such competing or comifjatlaims are ultimately determined
to be valid, the Company may be required to payadps, to obtain licenses to these patents, to algeelobtain alternative technology or to
cease using such technology. If the Company isiredjtio obtain any licenses, there can be no assearthat the Company will be able to do
so on commercially favorable terms, if at all. T@mpany'’s failure to obtain a license to any tedbgy that it may require to commercialize
its products could have a material adverse impathe Company’s business, operating results athéiial condition.

Litigation, which could result in substantiaists to the Company, may also be necessary eooendiny patents issued or licensed to the
Company or to determine the scope and validithwéitparty proprietary rights. If competitors oktlCompany prepare and file patent
applications in the United States that claim tedbgwalso claimed by the Company, the Company nzeaehio participate in interference
proceedings declared by the U.S. Patent and Tratte@ffice to determine priority of invention, whiawuld result in substantial cost to and
diversion of effort by the Company, even if the mwal outcome is favorable to the Company. Any dilicfation or interference proceeding,
regardless of outcome, could be expensive and time
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consuming and could subject the Company to signifitiabilities to third parties, require disputéghts to be licensed from third parties or
require the Company to cease using such technalndyonsequently, could have a material adversetedh the Company’s business,
operating results and financial condition.

In addition to patent protection, the Compalsp relies on trade secrets, proprietary know-bod technological advances which the
Company seeks to protect, in part, by confidenyiagreements with its collaborators, employeesamdultants. There can be no assurance
that these agreements will not be breached, teaCtdmpany will have adequate remedies for any breaahat the Company’s trade secrets
and proprietary know-how will not otherwise becokmewn or be independently discovered by others.

Employees

As of May 28, 2006, Landec had 186 full-tieraployees, of whom 50 were dedicated to reseaestglopment, manufacturing, quality
control and regulatory affairs and 136 were dedit@bd sales, marketing and administrative actiwitieandec intends to recruit additional
personnel in connection with the development, mactufing and marketing of its products. None ofdecis employees is represented by a
union, and Landec believes relationships with itpyees are good.

Available Information

Landec’s Web site is http://www.landec.corantec makes available free of charge its annualteply and current reports, and any
amendments to those reports, as soon as reasgabticable after electronically filing such repovtith the SEC. Information contained on
our website is not part of this Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Landec desires to take advantage of the “HBafbor” provisions of the Private Securities Latigpn Reform Act of 1995 and of
Section 21E and Rule 3b-6 under the Securities &xgh Act of 1934. Specifically, Landec wishes &rtaleaders that the followirighportan
factors, as well as other factors including, withkimitation, those described elsewhere in thioorepcould in the future affect, and in the past
have affected, Landec’s actual results and couldedandec’s results for future periods to diffatenially from those expressed in any
forward-looking statements made by or on behalfasfdec. Landec assumes no obligation to updatefsuafard-looking statements.

Our Future Operating Results Are Likely to FluctuatWhich May Cause Our Stock Price to Decli

In the past, our results of operations h&wetdated significantly from quarter to quarter @rd expected to continue to fluctuate in the
future. Historically, our direct marketer of hybdrn seed, Landec Ag, has been the primary sairtese fluctuations, as its revenues and
profits are concentrated over a few months dutiregspring planting season (generally during oudtand fourth fiscal quarters). In addition,
Apio can be heavily affected by seasonal and wed#élttors which have impacted quarterly resultshsas the high cost of sourcing product
in December 2003, January 2004 and March/ ApriB2@@e to a shortage of essential value-added peoitierms. Our earnings may also
fluctuate based on our ability to collect accouetivables from customers and note receivables fn@wers and on price fluctuations in the
fresh vegetables and fruits markets. Other fadt@saffect our food and/or agricultural operatiomgdude:

« the seasonality of our supplie

« our ability to process produce during critical restperiods
« the timing and effects of ripenin

« the degree of perishabilit

« the effectiveness of worldwide distribution syste

« total worldwide industry volume:

« the seasonality of consumer demg
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« foreign currency fluctuations; at
« foreign importation restrictions and foreign paili risks.
As a result of these and other factors, wieekto continue to experience fluctuations in tprr operating results.

We May Not Be Able to Achieve Acceptance of Our Nereducts in the Marketplac

Our success in generating significant salesio products will depend in part on the abilifyus and our partners and licensees to achieve
market acceptance of our new products and techypoldge extent to which, and rate at which, we aghimarket acceptance and penetration
of our current and future products is a functiomainy variables including, but not limited to:

* price;

« safety;

« efficacy;

« reliability;

* conversion costs

» marketing and sales efforts; a

« general economic conditions affecting purchasirtepas.

We may not be able to develop and introdwse products and technologies in a timely manneresv products and technologies may not
gain market acceptance. We are in the early sthgmduct commercialization of certain Intelimersied specialty packaging, Intellicoat seed
coatings and other Intelimer polymer products amdyrof our potential products are in developmenrg. hglieve that our future growth will
depend in large part on our ability to develop aratket new products in our target markets and vim markets. In particular, we expect that
our ability to compete effectively with existingdd products, agricultural, industrial and mediaahpanies will depend substantially on
successfully developing, commercializing, achievimgrket acceptance of and reducing the cost ofumiod our products. In addition,
commercial applications of our temperature switolymer technology are relatively new and evolvi@gyr failure to develop new products
the failure of our new products to achieve markeeatance would have a material adverse effectiohusiness, results of operations and
financial condition.

We Face Strong Competition in the Marketpla

Competitors may succeed in developing alteredgechnologies and products that are more é¥feceéasier to use or less expensive than
those which have been or are being developed by tisat would render our technology and productotiie and non-competitive. We
operate in highly competitive and rapidly evolviiiglds, and new developments are expected to aosmt a rapid pace. Competition from
large food products, agricultural, industrial anddical companies is expected to be intense. Irtiaddihe nature of our collaborative
arrangements may result in our corporate partnetdieensees becoming our competitors. Many ofetoesnpetitors have substantially
greater financial and technical resources and mtimtuand marketing capabilities than we do, ang heve substantially greater experience
in conducting clinical and field trials, obtaininggulatory approvals and manufacturing and margetommercial products.

We Have a Concentration of Manufacturing in One Lation for Apio and May Have to Depend on Third Pas to Manufacture Our
Products

Any disruptions in our primary manufacturiogeration at Apio’s facility in Guadalupe, Califearwould reduce our ability to sell our
products and would have a material adverse effectun financial results. Additionally, we may ndedconsider seeking collaborative
arrangements with other companies to manufacturprmducts. If we become dependent upon third @aftr the manufacture of our
products, our profit
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margins and our ability to develop and deliver thpsoducts on a timely basis may be affected. Feslby third parties may impair our abil
to deliver products on a timely basis and impair@ampetitive position. We may not be able to amni to successfully operate our
manufacturing operations at acceptable costs, adtleptable yields, and retain adequately trainesbpeel.

Our Dependence on Single-Source Suppliers and Sar\Rroviders May Cause Disruption in Our Operatio8sould Any Supplier
Fail to Deliver Materials

We may experience difficulty acquiring maadsior services for the manufacture of our prodactse may not be able to obtain substi
vendors. We may not be able to procure comparabtennals or hybrid corn varieties at similar prieesl terms within a reasonable time.
Several services that are provided to Apio areinbthfrom a single provider. Several of the rawemats we use to manufacture our prodi
are currently purchased from a single source, diofyisome monomers used to synthesize Intelimempeais and substrate materials for our
breathable membrane products. In addition, a ntgjofithe hybrid corn varieties sold by Landec Ag grown under contract by a single <
producer. Any interruption of our relationship waimgle-source suppliers or service providers cdeldy product shipments and materially
harm our business.

We May Be Unable to Adequately Protect Our Intelieal Property Rights

We may receive notices from third parties|uding some of our competitors, claiming infringamh by our products of patent and other
proprietary rights. Regardless of their merit, mging to any such claim could be time-consumiegult in costly litigation and require us to
enter royalty and licensing agreements which maypemffered or available on terms acceptable tdf asssuccessful claim is made agains
and we fail to develop or license a substitute ieébgy, we could be required to alter our productprocesses and our business, results of
operations or financial position could be mateyiallversely affected. Our success depends in fsgeon our ability to obtain patents,
maintain trade secret protection and operate withndtinging on the proprietary rights of third pias. Any pending patent applications we
file may not be approved and we may not be abbetelop additional proprietary products that afep@ble. Any patents issued to us may
not provide us with competitive advantages or magtmllenged by third parties. Patents held byrstiray prevent the commercialization of
products incorporating our technology. Furthermotkers may independently develop similar produtiiplicate our products or design
around our patents.

Our Operations Are Subject to Regulations that Daitly Impact Our Business

Our food packaging products are subject golation under the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act {(Fi2C Act”). Under the FDC Act, any
substance that when used as intended may reasdrabkpected to become, directly or indirectlypmponent or otherwise affect the
characteristics of any food may be regulated asd &dditive unless the substance is generallygrézed as safe. We believe that food
packaging materials are generally not considered &lditives by the FDA because these producteatrexpected to become components of
food under their expected conditions of use. Wesiotar our breathable membrane product to be afaclaging material not subject to
regulation or approval by the FDA. We have not gz any communication from the FDA concerning breathable membrane product. If
the FDA were to determine that our breathable mamdproducts are food additives, we may be requiradbmit a food additive petition
for approval by the FDA. The food additive petitiprocess is lengthy, expensive and uncertain. Ardehation by the FDA that a food
additive petition is necessary would have a mdtadaerse effect on our business, operating reanltisfinancial condition.

Federal, state and local regulations imp@s@®us environmental controls on the use, stordigeharge or disposal of toxic, volatile or
otherwise hazardous chemicals and gases used maiotime manufacturing processes. Our failure tgrobthe use of, or to restrict
adequately the discharge of, hazardous substandes present or future regulations could subjec¢bstibstantial liability or could cause our
manufacturing operations to be suspended and changavironmental regulations may impose the rieeddditional capital equipment or
other requirements.
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Our agricultural operations are subject t@aety of environmental laws including, the Fooddality Protection Act of 1966, the Clean /
Act, the Clean Water Act, the Resource ConservaimhRecovery Act, the Federal Insecticide, Fudgieind Rodenticide Act, and the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidhiability Act. Compliance with these laws amtated regulations is an ongoing
process. Environmental concerns are, however, émhén most agricultural operations, including thege conduct. Moreover, it is possible
that future developments, such as increasinglgtstrivironmental laws and enforcement policies @doesult in increased compliance costs.

The Company is subject to the PerishabledMifiral Commodities Act (“PACA”) law. PACA reguled fair trade standards in the fresh
produce industry and governs all the products bgl@pio. Our failure to comply with the PACA regements could among other things,
result in civil penalties, suspension or revocatiba license to sell produce, and in the most@gtes cases, criminal prosecution, which
could have a material adverse effect on our busines

Adverse Weather Conditions and Other Acts of GodyMzause Substantial Decreases in Our Sales andfmréases in Our Cost

Our Food Products and Agricultural Seed Tetdgy businesses are subject to weather conditimtsaffect commodity prices, crop
yields, and decisions by growers regarding crogzetplanted. Crop diseases and severe conditiartigydarly weather conditions such
floods, droughts, frosts, windstorms, earthquakestairricanes, may adversely affect the supplyegetables and fruits used in our business,
which could reduce the sales volumes and/or ineréas unit production costs. Because a signifipantion of the costs are fixed and
contracted in advance of each operating year, veldetlines due to production interruptions or ofaetors could result in increases in unit
production costs which could result in substaritiabes and weaken our financial condition.

We Depend on Strategic Partners and Licenses fotute Developmen

Our strategy for development, clinical arelditesting, manufacture, commercialization andkei@mg for some of our current and future
products includes entering into various collabaraiwith corporate partners, licensees and otkiéesare dependent on our corporate par
to develop, test, manufacture and/or market sonmeioproducts. Although we believe that our padnerthese collaborations have an
economic motivation to succeed in performing tigeintractual responsibilities, the amount and tinohgesources to be devoted to these
activities are not within our control. Our partneray not perform their obligations as expected emay not derive any additional revenue
from the arrangements. Our partners may not payadditional option or license fees to us or maydetelop, market or pay any royalty fees
related to products under the agreements. Moreswate of the collaborative agreements providettieyt may be terminated at the discre
of the corporate partner, and some of the collagh@agreements provide for termination under otti@umstances. Our partners may pursue
existing or alternative technologies in preferetaceur technology. Furthermore, we may not be &bleegotiate additional collaborative
arrangements in the future on acceptable ternas,afl, and our collaborative arrangements maybeatuccessful.

Both Domestic and Foreign Government RegulationsrCidave an Adverse Effect on Our Business Operatic

Our products and operations are subject vemgunental regulation in the United States andiforeountries. The manufacture of our
products is subject to periodic inspection by ratprly authorities. We may not be able to obtairessary regulatory approvals on a timely
basis or at all. Delays in receipt of or failureréceive approvals or loss of previously receivagravals would have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and resultsperations. Although we have no reason to belilkaewe will not be able to comply with
applicable regulations regarding the manufactucksate of our products and polymer materials, @garis are always subject to change and
depend heavily on administrative interpretationd @i country in which the products are sold. Faitiranges in regulations or interpretati
relating to matters
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such as safe working conditions, laboratory andufenturing practices, environmental controls, aisppasal of hazardous or potentially
hazardous substances may adversely affect ourdassin

We are subject to USDA rules and regulatiorscerning the safety of the food products handtatisold by Apio, and the facilities in
which they are packed and processed. Failure t@lyowith the applicable regulatory requirements,@mong other things, result in:

« fines, injunctions, civil penalties, and suspensj

 withdrawal of regulatory approval

« product recalls and product seizures, includingatsn of manufacturing and sal

« operating restrictions, ar

« criminal prosecution

We may be required to incur significant castsomply with the laws and regulations in thaufetwhich may have a material adverse
effect on our business, operating results and &ii@aondition.

Our International Operations and Sales May ExposeicBusiness to Additional Risk

For the fiscal year ended May 28, 2006, axiprately 22% of our total revenues were derivednfiaroduct sales to international
customers. A number of risks are inherent in iraamal transactions. International sales and dgp@mmay be limited or disrupted by any
the following:

« regulatory approval proces

 government controls

« export license requiremen

« political instability,

* price controls

« trade restrictions

« changes in tariffs, ¢

« difficulties in staffing and managing internatiorgderations

Foreign regulatory agencies have or may éskaproduct standards different from those inlthnited States, and any inability to obtain
foreign regulatory approvals on a timely basis ddwdve a material adverse effect on our internatibasiness, and our financial condition
and results of operations. While our foreign salescurrently priced in dollars, fluctuations immncy exchange rates may reduce the
demand for our products by increasing the priceusfproducts in the currency of the countries tacllthe products are sold. Regulatory,
geopolitical and other factors may adversely impactoperations in the future or require us to rfyodur current business practices.

Cancellations or Delays of Orders by Our Custométay Adversely Affect Our Busines

During fiscal year 2006, sales to our tofoustomers accounted for approximately 46% ofevenues, with our largest customers,
Costco Wholesale Corp. and Sam’s Club, accountingpproximately 16% and 14%, respectively, of mwenues. We expect that, for the
foreseeable future, a limited number of customeay oontinue to account for a substantial portioowfnet revenues. We may experience
changes in the composition of our customer baseedsave experienced in the past. We do not haygtlerm purchase agreements with any
of our customers. The reduction, delay or candetiadf orders from one or more major customersafoy reason or the loss of one or more of
our major customers could materially and advera#lsct our business, operating results and findugoiadition. In addition, since some of 1
products processed by Apio at its Guadalupe, Gal#dfacility are sole sourced to its customers,aperating results could be adversely
affected if one or more of our major customers werdevelop other sources of supply. Our current
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customers may not continue to place orders, ofuleexisting customers may be canceled or may nafrage at the levels of previous perii
or we may not be able to obtain orders from nevtacusers.

Our Sale of Some Products May Increase Our ExpostweProduct Liability Claims

The testing, manufacturing, marketing, arld sathe products we develop involve an inheréesk of allegations of product liability. If
any of our products were determined or allegedetodntaminated or defective or to have causedrafhbaccident to an end-customer, we
could incur substantial costs in responding to damgs or litigation regarding our products and prwduct brand image could be materially
damaged. Either event may have a material advéfiesst en our business, operating results and firsioondition. Although we have taken
and intend to continue to take what we believeappropriate precautions to minimize exposure tapebliability claims, we may not be al
to avoid significant liability. We currently maintaproduct liability insurance. While we believeethoverage and limits are consistent with
industry standards, our coverage may not be adequahay not continue to be available at an acbéptast, if at all. A product liability
claim, product recall or other claim with respextuninsured liabilities or in excess of insuredbilities could have a material adverse effec
our business, operating results and financial d¢amndi

Our Stock Price May Fluctuate in Accordance with Meet Conditions

The following events may cause the marketepof our common stock to fluctuate significantly:

« technological innovations applicable to our prody

« our attainment of (or failure to attain) milestomeshe commercialization of our technoloy

« our development of new products or the developrma&new products by our competito

* new patents or changes in existing patents appicatour products

* our acquisition of new businesses or the salespadial of a part of our business

» development of new collaborative arrangements hpuiscompetitors or other parti

« changes in government regulations applicable tdoginess

« changes in investor perception of our busin

« fluctuations in our operating results

« changes in the general market conditions in ouusiry.

These broad fluctuations may adversely atfeeztmarket price of our common stock.

Since We Order Cartons and Film for Our Productsofn Suppliers in Advance of Receipt of Customer Qeifor Such Products, W

Could Face a Material Inventory Ris

As part of our inventory planning, we entg@oinegotiated orders with vendors of cartons dmdudsed for packing our products in
advance of receiving customer orders for such prsdé\ccordingly, we face the risk of ordering tmany cartons and film since orders are
generally based on forecasts of customer orddmsr#tan actual orders. If we cannot change oeleased from the orders, we may incur
costs as a result of inadequately predicting cartord film orders in advance of customer ordersaBse of this, we may have an oversupply
of cartons and film and face the risk of not beade to sell such inventory and our anticipateémess for losses may be inadequate if we
have misjudged the demand for our products. Ounbas and operating results could be adverselgtafieas a result of these increased ¢
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Our Seed Products May Fail to Germinate ProperlydakVe May Be Subject to Claims for Reimbursemen@amages for Losses fro
Customers Who Use Such Produt

Farmers plant seed products sold by Landewiffgthe expectation that they will germinate undermal growing conditions. If our seed
products do not germinate at the appropriate tinfaibto germinate at all, our customers may insignificant crop losses and seek
reimbursement or bring claims against us for siathaes. Although insurance is generally availabloter such claims, the costs for
premiums of such policies are prohibitively expgasind we currently do not maintain such insuraAcs. claims brought for failure of our
seed products to properly germinate could matgraid adversely affect our operating and finanaalilts.

Recently Enacted Changes in Securities Laws and latjons Have and Will Continue to Increase Our (st

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Act’atibecame law in July 2002 required changes in sufroar corporate governance, public
disclosure and compliance practices. In additicesddg has made revisions to its requirements fopaaies, such as Landec, that are listed
on The NASDAQ Global Market. These developmentehaereased our legal and financial compliancescddiese changes could make it
more difficult and more expensive for us to obwiirector and officer liability insurance, and weyrze required to accept reduced coverage
or incur substantially higher costs to obtain cager. These developments could make it more difffoulus to attract and retain qualified
members for our board of directors, particulariyséove on our audit committee.

Our Controlling Shareholders Exert Significant Infience over Corporate Events that May Conflict withe Interests of Other
Shareholders

Our executive officers and directors andrthéfliates own or control approximately 23% ofraommon stock (including options
exercisable within 60 days). Accordingly, theseogffs, directors and shareholders may have thiyatailexert significant influence over the
election of our Board of Directors, the approvahofendments to our articles and bylaws and theoappof mergers or other business
combination transactions requiring shareholder @ggdr This concentration of ownership may havedffect of delaying or preventing a
merger or other business combination transactioen & the transaction or amendments would be beiaéfo our other shareholders. In
addition, our controlling shareholders may apprarendments to our articles or bylaws to implematittakeover or management friendly
provisions that may not be beneficial to our ottereholders.

We May Be Exposed to Employment Related Claims &uadts that Could Materially Adversely Affect Our Bimess

We have been subject in the past, and may the future, to claims by employees based omatlens of discrimination, negligence,
harassment and inadvertent employment of illegahalor unlicensed personnel, and we may be sutojgetyment of workerscompensatiol
claims and other similar claims. We could incurstahtial costs and our management could spenchdisamt amount of time responding to
such complaints or litigation regarding employesirok, which may have a material adverse effectusrbasiness, operating results and
financial condition.

We Are Dependent on Our Key Employees and if On&are of Them Were to Leave, We Could ExperiencéfiDulties in Replacing
Them and Our Operating Results Could Suff

The success of our business depends to dicig extent upon the continued service and perémce of a relatively small number of key
senior management, technical, sales, and markgérspnnel. The loss of any of our key personnellavtkely harm our business. In
addition, competition for senior level personnethhinowledge and experience in our different linoebusiness is intense. If any of our key
personnel were to leave, we would need to devdistantial resources and management attention taceethem. As a result,
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management attention may be diverted from manamindpusiness, and we may need to pay higher corapiengo replace these employees.

We May Issue Preferred Stock with Preferential Righthat Could Affect Your Right

Our Board of Directors has the authority hwitt further approval of our shareholders, to fig tights and preferences, and to issue sh
of preferred stock. In November 1999, we issuedsahd shares of Series A Convertible PreferredkSémel in October 2001 we issued and
sold shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stbl& Series A Convertible Preferred Stock was eded into 1,666,670 shares of
Common Stock on November 19, 2002 and the Serigeri¥ertible Preferred Stock was converted into4,7@2 shares of Common Stock
on May 7, 2004.

The issuance of new shares of preferred stoald have the effect of making it more diffictdt a third party to acquire a majority of our
outstanding stock, and the holders of such predesteck could have voting, dividend, liquidatiordasther rights superior to those of holders
of our Common Stock.

We Have Never Paid any Dividends on Our Common 8toc

We have not paid any cash dividends on oumi@on Stock since inception and do not expect teaim the foreseeable future. Any
dividends may be subject to preferential dividepagable on any preferred stock we may issue.

Our Profitability Could Be Materially And Adversebjffected if it Is Determined that the Book Valud Goodwill is Higher than Fair
Value

Our balance sheet includes an amount desidreet “goodwill” that represents a portion of ossets and our shareholders’ equity.
Goodwill arises when an acquirer pays more forsirtmss than the fair value of the tangible and rséply measurable intangible net assets.
Under Statement of Financial Accounting StandardsId?2 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, begng in fiscal year 2002, the
amortization of goodwill has been replaced witHiampairment test” which requires that we compare filair value of goodwill to its book
value at least annually and more frequently ifuinstances indicate a possible impairment. If werdehe at any time in the future that the
book value of goodwill is higher than fair valueththe difference must be written-off, which conidterially and adversely affect our
profitability.

1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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Item 2.  Properties

The Company owns or leases properties in MBakk, Arroyo Grande and Guadalupe, CaliforniasiNebanon, Oxford and Monticello,
Indiana; Danville, lllinois; Dassel, Minnesota atisisman, Ohio.

These properties are described below:

Business Acres of Lease
Location Segment Ownership Facilities Land Expiration
Menlo Park, CA Other Leasel 10,400 square feet of office anc — 12/31/0¢
laboratory spac
Monticello, IN Agricultural Ownec 19,400 square feet of office space 0.t —
Seed
Technology
West Lebanon, IN Agricultural Ownec 4,000 square feet of warehouse — —
Seed and manufacturing space
Technology
Oxford, IN Agricultural Lease! 13,400 square feet of laboratory — 6/30/0¢
Seed and manufacturing space
Technology
Danville, IL Agricultural Lease! 200,000 square feet of warehot — 12/31/0¢
Seed space
Technology
Dassel, MN Agricultural Lease! 4,600 square feet of office space — 5/31/0¢
Seed
Technology
Dassel, MN Agricultural Lease! 35,200 square feet of warehous — 5/31/0¢
Seed space
Technology
Dassel, MN Agricultural Lease! 7,200 square feet of vehicle — 5/31/0¢
Seed maintenance shop space
Technology
Kinsman, OH Agricultural Lease! 6,600 square feet of warehouse — 08/1/07
Seed space
Technology
Guadalupe, CA Food Products Ownec 106,000 square feet of office 17.7 —
Technology space, manufacturing and cold
storage
Arroyo Grande, CA Food Product Lease! 1,100 square feet of office spac — 6/30/0¢
Technology

There are bank liens encumbering all of tboen@any’s owned land and buildings.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

The Company is involved in litigation arisiimgthe normal course of business. The Companyriently not a party to any legal
proceedings which would result in the payment gf amounts that would be material to the businedgmancial condition of the Company.

ltem 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢

There were no matters submitted to a voeotirity holders during the fourth quarter of trmrpany’s fiscal year ended May 28, 2006.
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PART Il

Item 5.  Market for Registran's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securiti¢
Market Information

The Common Stock is traded on The NASDAQ Gldbarket under the symbol “LNDC". The followinglie sets forth for each period
indicated the high and low sales prices for the @om Stock as reported on The NASDAQ Global Market.

Fiscal Year Ended May 28, 200! High Low

4t Quarter ending May 28, 20( $ 9.6t $ 6.71
3rd Quarter ending February 26, 20 $ 7.84 $ 6.2¢
2nd Quarter ending November 27, 20 $ 8.01 $ 6.32
1 st Quarter ending August 28, 20 $ 6.9¢ $ 6.6€
Fiscal Year Ended May 29, 2005 High Low

4 th Quarter ending May 29, 20( $ 8.2t $ 5.77
3 Quarter ending February 27, 20 $ 71.72 $ 6.0C
2 nd Quarter ending November 28, 20 $ 8.0C $ 4.5C
1st Quarter ending August 29, 20 $ 7.4C $ 4.2¢

Holders

There were approximately 84 holders of reairéd4,935,046 shares of outstanding Common Steak duly 7, 2006. Since certain
holders are listed under their brokerage firm’s agnthe actual number of shareholders is higher.

Dividends
The Company has not paid any dividends orCiliamon Stock since its inception. The Companyeihg intends to retain all future
earnings, if any, for its business and does natigate paying cash dividends on its Common Staaké foreseeable future.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securiti

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement datee 29, 2005, the Company on August 29, 20@i$52,186 shares of Common St
valued at $960,000 to the former owners of Headltldgbrids, Inc.

The issuance of these securities was deemeel €xempt from registration under the Securgietsof 1933, as amended (the “Act”), in
reliance on Section 4(2) of the Act as a transadbipan issuer not involving any public offerinchélrecipients of the securities in such
transaction represented their intention to acchieesecurities for investment only and not withie@wto or for sale in connection with any
distribution thereof and also represented that éaah “accredited investor” with the meaning old&Rb01(a) of Regulation D under the Act.
Appropriate legends were affixed to the securigssed in such transaction. The recipients werergadequate access to information about
the Company.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitit

There were no shares repurchased by the Gonmhaing the quarter ending on May 28, 2006.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The information set forth below is not neee#yg indicative of the results of future operatioand should be read in conjunction with the
information contained in Item 7 — “Management’s @ission and Analysis of Financial Condition anduRsf Operations” and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to @iolased Financial Statements contained in Itenf #Bis report.

Seven Seven
Months Months
Year Ended Year Endec Year Ended Ended Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 28, May 29, May 30, May 25, June 2, October 27, October 28,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2002 2001
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)
Statements of Operations Data

Revenues
Product sale $225,40: $201,02( $ 185,66 $ 98,68¢ $ 96,51i $152,95¢ $ 141,31
Services revenu 3,72t 3,70¢ 5,791 12,78¢ 15,88: 26,827 48,42¢
License fee: 2,39¢ 88 88 357 1,27¢ 2,33( 374
Research, development and royalty
revenues 42€ 41€ 54¢ 42¢ 402 1,04( 52¢
Total revenue 231,95: 205,23 192,09: 112,25¢ 114,07: 183,15! 190,64t
Cost of revenue
Cost of product sale 188,90« 170,35¢ 158,91: 82,33¢ 80,68( 131,35: 122,08:
Cost of services reveni 3,00¢ 2,89¢ 3,39( 9,21¢ 12,50¢ 20,46: 40,75!
Total cost of revenu 191,90¢ 173,25t 162,30: 91,55¢ 93,18t 151,81! 162,83.
Gross profit 40,04+ 31,97: 29,79: 20,70¢ 20,88t 31,34( 27,81«
Operating costs and expens
Research and developme 3,04z 2,54 3,45z 2,11¢ 2,01¢ 3,53¢ 3,27(
Selling, general and administrati 27,97¢ 23,41 22,28¢ 15,18¢ 16,29: 26,11« 27,39¢
Exit of domestic commodity
vegetable busine: — — — 1,09t — — —
Total operating costs and
expense: 31,02! 25,95¢ 25,73¢ 18,39¢ 18,31: 29,64¢ 30,66¢
Operating profit (loss 9,02: 6,015 4,05¢ 2,30¢ 2,57¢ 1,69¢ (2,859
Interest incomq 633 214 164 144 177 247 617
Interest expens (452) (414) (811) (642) (1,097 (1,557 (2,789
Minority interest expens (52¢ (411) (537) (235 (224) (525) (28)
Other (expense)/income, r (24) (4) 29 21¢ 71 33€ 21€
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 8,651 5,40z 2,90¢ 1,791 1,502 201 (4,83¢)
Discontinued Operation
Loss from discontinued operatio — — — — — — (537)
Loss on disposal of operatio — — — — — (1,68¢) (2,500
Loss from discontinued operatio — — — — — (1,68¢) (3,037
Net income (loss $ 8,651 $ 5,40 $ 2,90 $ 1,791 $ 1,50: $ (1,48%) $ (7,879
Net income (loss $ 8,651 $ 5,402 $ 2,90( $ 1,791 $ 1,50Z $ (1,489) $ (7,879
Dividends on Series B preferred stc — — (464) (219 (202) (412) —
Net income (loss) applicable to commr
shareholder $ 8,651 $ 5,407 $ 2,43¢ $ 1,57 $ 1,30( $ (1,899 $ (7,879
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The gain of $436,000 in fiscal year 2002 fom sale of the fruit processing facility has besglassified as it appears in prior filings from
other income to selling, general and administragixpenses.

Seven Seven
Months Months
Year Ended Year Ended Year Endec Ended Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 28, May 29, May 30, May 25, June 2, October 27, October 28,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2002 2001
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share date
Statements of Operations Data:
Basic net income (loss) per she

Continuing operation $ 0.3t $ 0.2¢ $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ (0.0 $ (0.29)

Discontinued operatior — — — — — (0.09) (0.19)
Basic net income (loss) per shi $ 0.3t $ 0.28 $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ (0.10 $ (0.4%
Diluted net income (loss) per sha

Continuing operation $ 0.32 $ 0.21 $ 0.1Z $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0) $ (0.29

Discontinued operatior — — — — — (0.09 (0.19)
Diluted net income (loss) per sh: $ 0.32 $ 0.21 $ 0.12 $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ (010 $ (0.49¢
Shares used in per share computal

Basic 24,55! 23,70¢ 21,39¢ 20,94¢ 17,77 18,17: 16,37

Diluted 25,657 24,61« 23,55¢ 22,62¢ 21,08: 18,17: 16,37

May 28, May 29, May 30, May 25, October 27, October 28,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalel $ 20,51¢ $ 12,87: $ 6,45¢ $ 3,69¢ $ 7,84¢ $ 8,69t
Total asset 119,02! 100,07! 93,001 96,88 107,80: 120,12:
Debt 2,01¢ 3,08¢ 8,99¢ 13,49« 17,54 33,41¢
Convertible preferred stoc — — — 5,531 14,46 14,04¢
Accumulated defici (41,239 (49,890 (55,297 (57,72% (59,300 (57,400
Total shareholde’ equity $ 85,04¢ $ 72,06( $ 61,54¢ $ 57,90: $ 55,96: $ 49,83¢

ltem 7. Managemen’'s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read injoaction with the Company’s Consolidated Finan&tdtements contained in Item 8 of this
report. Except for the historical information cdntd herein, the matters discussed in this reperfaaward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities ExchanceoA1934. These forward-looking statements ineatertain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materiallynfrthose in the forward-looking statements. Potérisks and uncertainties include, without
limitation, those mentioned in this report andparticular, the factors described in Item 1A. “Risctors.” Landec undertakes no obligation
to revise any forward-looking statements in ordereflect events or circumstances that may arise tfe date of this report.

Overview

Since its inception in October 1986, the Camyphas been engaged in the research and develbphienintelimer technology and rela
products. The Company has launched four produes lfrom this core development — QuickC&s$plints and casts, in April 1994, which
was subsequently sold to Bissell Healthcare Cotjmorén August 1997; Intelimer packaging technoldgsythe fresh-cut and whole produce
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packaging market, in September 1995; Intelimer RelySystems in June 1997 that includes polymernmatdor various industrial
applications and beginning in November 2003 fosppeal care applications; and Intellicoat coatedh aaeds in the Fall of 1999.

With the acquisition of Apio in December 198%d Landec Ag in September 1997, the Companycissted on two core businesses —
Food Products Technology and Agricultural Seed Meldgy. The Food Products Technology segment coestiime Company’s Intelimer
packaging technology with Apio’s fresh-cut and wehproduce business. The Agricultural Seed Techyaegment integrates the Intellicoat
seed coating technology with Landec Ag’s directketing, telephone sales and distribution capaéditifhe Company also operates a
Technology Licensing/Research and Development kasiwhich develops products to be licensed outdittee Company’s core businesses.
See “Business — Description of Core Business”.

From inception through May 28, 2006, the Camps accumulated deficit was $41.2 million. Then@any may incur additional losses in
the future. The amount of future net profits, if/ais highly uncertain and there can be no asserémat the Company will be able to sustain
profitability in future years.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates
Use of Estimate:

The preparation of the Company’s financiatestnents in conformity with accounting principlengrally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assas it affect the amounts reported in the findrst&@ements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ materially from thosgtinates. The judgments and assumptions used bggaarent are based on historical
experience and other factors, which are believdibtoeasonable under the circumstances.

Notes and Advances Receivab

Apio has made advances to fruit growersterdevelopment of orchards, and to produce grofeersop and harvesting costs. Typically,
except for development advances, these advancesiareff within the growing season (less than pear) from harvested crops.
Development advances and advances not fully paidgithe current growing season are convertedteraést bearing obligations, evidenced
by contracts and notes receivable. These notewabte and advances are secured by liens on latiacrops and have terms that range
from twelve to sixty months. Notes receivable azdquically reviewed (at least quarterly) for calibility. A reserve is established for any
note or advance deemed to not be fully collectilalsed upon an estimate of the crop value or thedhie of the security for the note or
advance. If crop prices or the fair value of theentying security declines the Company may be unabfully recoup its note or advance
receivable and the estimated losses would risedrctirrent period, potentially to the extent of il note or advance receivable.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allowances for doulat@dounts for estimated losses resulting fromnhaeility of its customers to make requi
payments. The allowance for doubtful accounts getaon review of the overall condition of accouetivable balances and review of
significant past due accounts. If the financialditon of the Company’s customers were to detet@naesulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances rbayequired. Bad debt losses are partially miéidatue to low risks related to the fact 1
the Company’s customers are predominantly largenfirally sound national and regional retailers.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket. If the cost of the inventories exceedsrtexpected market value, provisions are
recorded currently for the difference between & and the market value.
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These provisions are determined based on spegiittification for unusable inventory and an addisibreserve, based on historical losses,
for inventory considered to be useable.

Revenue Recoghnitio

Revenue from product sales is recognized vihere is persuasive evidence that an arrangemists ditle has transferred, the price is
fixed and determinable, and collectibility is remably assured. Allowances are established for astidhuncollectible amounts, product
returns, and discounts. If actual future returns alfowances differ from past experience, additi@iawances may be required.

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordavitte Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 10Revenue Recognition (a replacement of SAB ]101)
(SAB 104). Initial license fees are deferred andained over the period of the agreement to reveviuen a contract exists, the fee is fixed
and determinable, and collectibility is reasonaddgured. Noncancellable, nonrefundable licenseafieerecognized over the research and
development period of the agreement, as well atetine of any related supply agreement entereddoinzurrently with the license when the
risk associated with commercialization of a prodacton-substantive at the outset of the arrangémen

Prior to November 1, 1999, the Company retzsghnoncancellable, nonrefundable license fees\asue when received and when all
significant contractual obligations of the Compaaebating to the fees had been met. Effective Nowamih 1999, the Company changed its
method of accounting for noncancellable, nonrefblelicense fees to recognize such fees over teareh and development period of the
agreement, as well as the term of any related guggpkeement entered into concurrently with thengmewhen the risk associated with
commercialization of a product is nenbstantive at the outset of the arrangement. Timep@ny believes the change in accounting prind§
preferable based on guidance provided in SAB 1fthé fiscal year ended October 29, 2000, the Cosnpecorded a charge of $1.9 million
related to the cumulative effect of the changecitoanting principle. The cumulative effect wasially recorded as deferred revenue and has
been recognized as recycled revenue over the oésaad development period or supply period commitroéthe agreement. “Recycled”
revenue refers to revenue that had previously besgnized as licensing revenue in the Companganfiial statements, but as a result of the
Company’s adoption of SAB 104, was reversed thraughmulative effect of a change in accountingsodl year 2000 and has been
recognized as revenue over the research and devetdgeriod and/or the supply period commitmerthefagreement, whichever is longer.

In July 2005, the Company amended its supghgement with Alcon, Inc. (“Alcon”) to change tiepiration date of the agreement from
November 1, 2012 to May 28, 2006. In accordanck ®AB 104, the entire amount of the deferred reeesf$638,000 as of May 29, 20(
was recognized as “recycled” revenue during figealr 2006.

During the fiscal years ended May 28, 2006yN9, 2005 and May 30, 2004, $638,000, $88,000$88¢D00, respectively, of the related
deferred revenue was recognized as “recycled” nieefis of May 28, 2006, deferred revenue associatédthe change in accounting
principles described above is zero.

Contract revenue for research and developiiis8iD) is recorded as earned, based on the perfacemeequirements of the contract. Non-
refundable contract fees for which no further perfance obligations exist, and there is no contigumvolvement by the Company, are
recognized on the earlier of when the paymentseareived or when collection is assured.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset Impairment

The Company is required to evaluate its gabbéwwd indefinite lived intangible assets for inmpaent annually. This evaluation
incorporates a variety of estimates including tiealue of the Company’s operating segmentddfdarrying value of an operating
segment’s assets exceeds the estimated fair vhkRi€ompany would likely be required to recordrapairment loss, possibly for the entire
carrying balance of goodwill and intangible ass€&tsdate, no impairment losses have been incurred.
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes inr@eewe with SFAS No. 109Accounting for Income Taxesyhich requires that deferred
tax assets and liabilities be recognized usingtedaex rates for the effect of temporary diffenbetween the book and tax bases of
recorded assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 109 @gaires that deferred tax assets be reduced biuation allowance if it is more likely than
not that some or all of the deferred tax assetisnwil be realized. The Company evaluates quarthdyealizability of its deferred tax asset:
assessing the valuation allowance and, if necesadjysts the amount of such allowance. The factsesl to assess the likelihood of
realization include the Company’s forecast of fattaxable income and available tax planning strasettpat could be implemented to realize
the net deferred tax assets. Due to the Compainyitetl tax basis earnings history, the net defetagchsset at May 28, 2006 has been fully
offset by a valuation allowance.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting for Stocl-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statementl®3 (revised 20045hare-Based Paymenor SFAS No. 123R, which is a revision of
SFAS No. 123, and supersedes APB Opinion 25. SE28R Yequires all shargased payments to employees and directors, ingjugtiants o
stock options, to be recognized in the statemenpefations based on their fair values. On Aprjl2805, the SEC adopted a new rule that
amended the compliance dates for SFAS 123R sutkhéa&ompany is now allowed to adopt the new siethdffective in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2007. The pro forma disclosures preslippermitted under SFAS 123 will no longer be hearaative to financial statement
recognition. As permitted by SFAS 123, the Compeamyently accounts for share-based payments to@mapes using APB Opinion 25’s
intrinsic value method and, as such, recognizesongpensation cost for employee stock options.

Under SFAS 123R, the Company must deternfie@ppropriate fair value model and related assompto be used for valuing share-
based payments, the amortization method for congtiemscost and the transition method to be us¢ldeatlate of adoption. The transition
methods include modified prospective and retroacsisioption options. Under the retroactive optigigrperiods may be restated either as of
the beginning of the year of adoption or for altipds presented. The modified prospective methqdires that compensation expense be
recorded for all unvested stock options and rdstlistock at the beginning of the first quarteaddption of SFAS 123R, while the retroact
method would record compensation expense for aksted stock options and restricted stock beginwitiy the first period restated. The
Company has decided to adopt the modified prospeantiethod. The Company is currently evaluatingrémiirements of SFAS 123R as well
as option valuation methodologies related to islsbption plans. The Company’s preliminary esteriatlicates that the effect of adopting
SFAS 123R could result in a pre tax charge tomeime of up to approximately $500,000 in fiscalry2@07. SFAS 123R also requires the
benefits of tax deductions in excess of recogna@dpensation costs to be reported as a financisly fbaw, rather than as an operating cash
flow as required under current literature. Thisuiegment will reduce net operating cash flows amtéase net financing cash flows in peri
after adoption.
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Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended May 28, 2006 Compared to FiscelY Ended May 29, 200

Revenues:
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 28, 2006 May 29, 2005 Change
(In thousands)
Apio Value Addec $ 136,14: $ 120,44! 13%
Apio Trading 57,99( 58,66( (D)%
Apio Tech 68¢ 52 1217%
Total Apio 194,81t 179,15° 9%
Landec Ag 34,09¢ 25,64¢ 33%
Corporate 3,041 42E 61€%
Total Revenue $ 231,95: $ 205,23( 13%
Apio Value Addec

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of reesrgenerated from the sale of specialty packagstifcut and whole value-added processed
vegetable products that are washed and packagrd jroprietary packaging and sold under Apio’s &atart brand and various private
labels and from service revenues from Apio CooliRgwhich is now combined with value-added.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenoestie fiscal year ended May 28, 2006 comparetidgcsame period last year is due to
increased product offerings, increased sales &iingicustomers, the addition of new customerspraduct mix changes to higher priced
products. Specifically, sales of Apio’s value-add@dounce specialty packaged retail product lirengt6% and sales of Apio’s value-added
vegetable tray products grew 22% during the figealr ended May 28, 2006 compared to the same plasbglear. Overall value-added sales
volume increased 10% during the fiscal year endag B8, 2006 compared to the same period last year.

Apio Trading

Apio trading revenues consist of revenuesg®rd from the purchase and sale of primarily eleoimmodity fruit and vegetable produ
to Asia through Apio’s export company, Cal-Ex amuhfi the purchase and sale of whole commodity &miit vegetable products domestically
to Wal-Mart. The export portion of trading revendiesfiscal year 2006 was $50.3 million or 87% affal trading revenues.

The decrease in revenues in Apio’s tradingjimss for the fiscal year ended May 28, 2006 coetptn the same period last year was
primarily due to a 23% decrease in the domesti¢dmliycommodity sales to Wal-Mart. Overall tradsajes volumes were lower by 2% for
the fiscal year ended May 28, 2006 compared tadinee period last year. The decrease in volumepardslly offset by higher average sa
prices due to the scarcity of product during cartabnths of the year.

Apio Tech

Apio Tech consists of Apio’s packaging tediogy business using its BreatheWaymembrane technology. The first commercial
application included in Apio Tech is the bananakaging technology. Current revenues generated fpia Tech are primarily from the
banana program with Chiquita.

The increase in Apio Tech revenues for thedi year ended May 28, 2006 compared to the senmeddast year was not material to
consolidated Landec revenues.
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Landec Ag

Landec Ag revenues consist of revenues gatefeom the sale of hybrid seed corn to farmexdeunithe Fielder's Choice Dire®tand
Heartland Hybrid® brands and from the sale of Intellicoat coated @omi soybean seeds to farmers and seed companig¢beHRiscal years
ended May 28, 2006 and May 29, 2005, over 95% aflea Ag’s revenues were from the sale of uncoaybddhseed corn.

The increase in revenues at Landec Ag dutiadiscal year ended May 28, 2006 compared ta&inge period last year was primarily due
to sales under the Heartland Hybrids brand whick agguired on August 29, 2005.

Corporate

Corporate revenues consist of revenues getefliom partnering with others under researchdeaelopment agreements and supply
agreements and from fees for licensing our progmyeintelimer technology to others and from theresponding royalties from these license
agreements.

The increase in Corporate revenues for geafiyear ended May 28, 2006 compared to the sanadpf the prior year was primarily d
to (1) $1.56 million in revenues received from bisense of our Intelimer technology in a specifedd to a medical device company in
December 2005, (2) $300,000 in licensing fees asdarch and development revenues from the licdrma dntelimer technology in specific
fields to Air Products in March 2006 and (3) theagnition of the remaining $550,000 of deferrederaye associated with the Alcon license
agreement through the revised agreement termindtitenof May 28, 2006.

Gross Profit:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Ended Ended
May 28, 2006 May 29, 2005 Change

(In thousands)
Apio Value Addec $ 23,02: $ 19,06: 21%
Apio Trading 3,212 3,11¢ 3%
Apio Tech 61¢ 15 4027%
Total Apio 26,85 22,19t 21%
Landec Ag 10,43¢ 9,44¢ 10%
Corporate 2,752 32¢ 736%
Total Gross Profi $ 40,04+ $ 31,97: 25%

General

There are numerous factors that can influgmeoss profits including product mix, customer mianufacturing costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomeridb name a few. Many of these factors influeocare interrelated with other factors.
Therefore, it is difficult to precisely quantifyghmpact of each item individually. The Companyluges in cost of sales all the costs relate
the sale of products in accordance with generaiiepted accounting principles. These costs indlnedollowing: raw materials (including
produce, seeds and packaging), direct labor, owerfiacluding indirect labor, depreciation, andilfacrelated costs) and shipping and
shipping related costs. The following discussior@unding gross profits includes management’s estiinates of the reasons for the changes
for the fiscal year ended May 28, 2006 compardatiécsame period last year as outlined in the taibtere.

Apio Value-Added

The increase in gross profits for Apio’s valadded specialty packaged vegetable businessddistal year ended May 28, 2006
compared to the same period last year was dug tbg€lncrease in value-added sales which increa3&aduring fiscal year 2006,
(2) product mix changes to higher margin produots a
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(3) improved operational efficiencies driven laggey improved raw material quality during fiscalaye2006 compared to the prior fiscal year.

Apio Trading

Apio’s trading business is a buy/sell busintmst realizes a commission-based margin in th&4ange. The increase in gross profits
during the fiscal year ended May 28, 2006 compéodtle prior fiscal year was primarily due to protmix changes to higher margin
products which more than offset the reduction irersies.

Apio Tech

The increase in gross profits for Apio Teahthe fiscal year ended May 28, 2006 comparetdésame period last year was primarily
to the revenues received from our banana packagjregment with Chiquita.

Landec Ag

The increase in gross profits for Landec #gthe fiscal year ended May 28, 2006 comparetecstaime period last year was due to the
increase in revenues as a result of the acquigifidgteartland Hybrids in August 2005, partially st by higher royalty fees on corn seed
hybrids with traits, such as genetics and certhentcals, resulting in lower gross profits as apetage of sales in fiscal year 2006 comp.
to the same period last year.

Corporate

The increase in gross profits for Corporatetiie fiscal year ended May 28, 2006 comparetidssame period last year was primarily due
to (1) $1.56 million in revenues received from license of our Intelimer technology in a specifeld to a medical device company in
December 2005, (2) $300,000 in licensing fees asdarch and development revenues from the licdrma dntelimer technology in specific
fields to Air Products in March 2006 and (3) theagnition of the remaining $550,000 of deferrederaye associated with the Alcon license
agreement through the revised agreement termindtitmof May 28, 2006.

Operating Expenses:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 28, 2006 May 29, 2005 Change
(In thousands)
Research and Developmer
Apio $ 1,10¢ $ 831 33%
Landec Ag 47C 647 27)%
Corporate 1,464 1,06¢ 37%
Total R&D $ 3,042 $ 2,545 20%
Selling, General and Administrative
Apio $ 13,63 $ 12,35¢ 10%
Landec Ag 9,61¢ 7,851 22%
Corporate 4,73( 3,201 48%
Total S,G&A $ 27,97¢ $ 23,41: 20%

Research and Developme

Landec’s research and development expensssst@rimarily of expenses involved in the develemt and process scale-up initiatives.
Research and development efforts at Apio are fatosghe Company’s
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proprietary BreatheWay membranes used for packagimduce, with recent focus on extending the difelbf bananas and other shelf-life
sensitive vegetables and fruit. At Landec Ag, #search and development efforts are focused o8ahgany’s proprietary Intellicoat
coatings for seeds, primarily corn seed. At Corfrthe research and development efforts are fdooiseises for the proprietary Intelimer
polymers outside of food and agriculture.

The increase in research and developmentergdor the fiscal year ended May 28, 2006 conapiréhe same period last year was due
to increased efforts expended at Apio Tech to eajininitiatives to programs beyond just banamasiacreased expenses at Corporate to
support new collaborations, including the additidh.andec’s COO, Dr. David Taft, who was the COCQApfo in fiscal year 2005.

Selling, General and Administrativ

Selling, general and administrative expemsesist primarily of sales and marketing expensssdaated with Landec’s product sales and
services, business development expenses and steffdministrative expenses.

The increase in selling, general and admtise expenses for the fiscal year ended May @86Zompared to the same period last year
was primarily due to (1) selling, general and adstrative expenses of $2.0 million at Heartland Hig®, (2) planned increases in selling and
marketing expenses at Apio and Landec Ag to geaémateases in revenues, (3) an increase in gesedahdministrative expenses at
Corporate for business development consulting é@eslegal fees, (4) the accrual of bonuses forexkiog our fiscal year 2006 internal plan
and (5) in fiscal year 2005 a $713,000 gain orstile of land at Apio was netted against sellingegal and administrative expenses.

Other:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 28, 2006 May 29, 2005 Change
(In thousands)
Interest Income $ 633 $ 214 19€%
Interest Expense¢ (452) (4149 9%
Minority Interest Expense (529 (417) 29%
Other Expense: (24) (4 500%
Total Other Expenst $ (372) $ (615) (40)%

Interest Income

The increase in interest income for the figear ended May 28, 2006 compared to the samegbast year was primarily due to the
increase in cash available for investing and higiverage interest rates on those investments.

Interest Expenst

The increase in interest expense duringitoalfyear ended May 28, 2006 compared to the gamed last year was due to higher ave
interest rates on the Company’s debt.

Minority Interest Expense

The minority interest expense consists ofrtiirgority interest associated with the limited pars’equity interest in the net income of Aj
Cooling, LP.

The increase in the minority interest expandescal year 2006 compared to fiscal year 20@5 wue to higher net income for Apio
Cooling in fiscal year 2006 compared to fiscal y2@d5.
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Other Expenses

Other consists of non-operating income arpgkages.

Fiscal Year Ended May 29, 2005 Compared to FiscelY Ended May 30, 200

Revenues:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 29, 2005 May 30, 2004 Change
(In thousands)
Apio Value Addec $ 116,74: $ 101,06° 16%
Apio Trading 58,66( 59,31: (D)%
Apio Tech 52 1,71¢ 9N%
Apio Service 3,70¢ 5,79: (36)%
Total Apio 179,15 167,88t 7%
Landec Ag 25,64¢ 23,64 8%
Corporate 42F 56E (25)%
Total Revenue $ 205,23( $ 192,09: 7%
Apio Value Addec

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of reesrgenerated from the sale of specialty packagstiftut and whole value-added processed
vegetable products that are washed and packagrd joroprietary packaging and sold under Apio’s &atart brand, the Dole brand and
various private labels.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenoeste fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 comparetidsame period last year is due to
increased product offerings, increased sales &iirgicustomers and the addition of new custon®pscifically, sales of Apio’s value-added
12-ounce specialty packaged retail product linevgt8% and sales of Apio’s value-added vegetablepraducts grew 60% during the fiscal
year ended May 29, 2005 compared to the same plasbgiear. Overall vali-added sales volume increased 9% during the fisel ended
May 29, 2005 compared to the same period last year.

Apio Trading

Apio trading revenues consist of revenuesggerd from the purchase and sale of primarily lvolmmodity fruit and vegetable produ
to Asia through Apio’s export company, Cal-Ex anuhfi the purchase and sale of whole commodity &miét vegetable products domestically
to Wal-Mart. The export portion of trading revendiesfiscal year 2005 was $48.8 million or 83% affal trading revenues.

The slight decrease in revenues in Apio'ditrg business for the fiscal year ended May 2952fliimpared to the same period last year
was primarily due to produce shortages during thrdew months as a result of near record rainsentestern portion of the United States.
Trading sales volumes were lower by 7% for thediigear ended May 29, 2005 compared to the saniedpesst year. The decrease in
volumes was virtually offset by higher average sgldces due to the scarcity of product duringaiennonths of the year.

Apio Tech

Apio Tech consists of Apio’s packaging tediogy business using its BreatheWaymembrane technology. The first commercial
application included in Apio Tech is our bananakaaing technology. Current revenues generated #pia Tech are from the sale of our
proprietary packaging for bananas.

The decrease in revenues from the sale airizenfor the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 contpiar¢he same period last year was due to
the Company only selling banana packaging not bem#remselves in
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fiscal year 2005. In addition, the sales of barzaekaging occurred solely during the Company’stfotiscal quarter of fiscal year 2005 and
were for market trial purposes.

Apio Service

Prior to its sale on June 30, 2003 to BeatshBiroduce, Apio operated a domestic commoditytedige business that marketed and sold
whole produce for growers. Apio charged a per castrvice fee for marketing and selling these wisol@modity products. Subsequent to
June 30, 2003, Apio’s service revenues consistwdmues generated from Apio Cooling, LP.

The decrease in service revenues duringgbelfyear ended May 29, 2005 compared to the gemed last year is due to a 2% decrease
in volumes in Apio’s cooling operation due to loveemmodity product volumes from Beachside Producbane month of commodity
revenues in fiscal year 2004 before the sale telBsde Produce.

Landec Ag

Landec Ag revenues consist of revenues gatefeom the sale of hybrid seed corn to farmedeuhe Fielder's Choice Dire@tbrand
and from the sale of Intellicoat coated corn angbsan seeds to farmers and seed companies. Fisdhkyears ended May 29, 2005 and
May 30, 2004, over 90% of Landec Ag’s revenues Virena the sale of uncoated hybrid seed corn urtteFielder’'s Choice brand.

The increase in revenues at Landec Ag duhiadiscal year ended May 29, 2005 compared taénee period last year is due to a change
in product mix to higher priced hybrid corn vargstithat resulted in a 4% increase in the averéage per unit. In addition, sales volumes
increased 5% in fiscal year 2005 compared to figeal 2004.

Corporate

Corporate revenues consist of revenues getkefieom partnering with others under researchdmalopment agreements and supply
agreements and from fees for licensing our prognyelintelimer technology to others and from theresponding royalties from these license
agreements.

The decrease in Corporate revenues for slealfyear ended May 28, 2005 compared to the saniedpof the prior year is primarily due
to the completion of two R&D contracts (UCB and edical device collaboration) in early fiscal ye@02 which resulted in R&D revenues
decreasing $152,000 in fiscal year 2005 comparéddal year 2004.

Gross Profit:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 29, 2005 May 30, 2004 Change
(In thousands)
Apio Value Addec $ 18,25 $ 15,79« 16%
Apio Trading 3,11¢ 2,89¢ 8%
Apio Tech 15 (862) 102%
Apio Service 80t 2,401 (66)%
Total Apio 22,19t 20,23: 10%
Landec Ag 9,44¢ 9,08¢ 4%
Corporate 32¢ 474 (BD)%
Total Gross Profi $ 31,97: $ 29,79: 7%
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General

There are numerous factors that can influgmoss profits including product mix, customer mmanufacturing costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iogerib name a few. Many of these factors influeocare interrelated with other factors.
Therefore, it is difficult to precisely quantifyghmpact of each item individually. The Companyluges in cost of sales all the costs relate
the sale of products in accordance with generaiiepted accounting principles. These costs indlnedollowing: raw materials (including
produce, seeds and packaging), direct labor, oadrfiacluding indirect labor, depreciation, andilfacrelated costs) and shipping and
shipping related costs. The following discussiomr@unding gross profits includes management’s estiinates of the reasons for the changes
for the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 compareatiécsame period last year as outlined in the taibtere.

Apio Value-Added

The increase in gross profits for Apio’s veladded specialty packaged vegetable businessddistal year ended May 29, 2005
compared to the same period last year was dug e 6% increase in value-added sales during fisea 2005 and (2) improved
manufacturing efficiencies through further automatdf Apio’s production process. These increasagass profits were partially offset by
produce shortages in March 2005 and the firstdfaipril 2005 due to near record rains in the Wiastéd.S. this past winter which reduced
gross profits by approximately $1.1 million.

Apio Trading

Apio’s trading business is a buy/sell busintmst realizes a commission-based margin in th&4ange. The increase in gross profits
during the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 compéodtle same period last year was primarily duegalas mix change to higher margin f
and vegetable products which increased fiscal 8856 gross margins to 5.8% compared to gross meaggib.0% for the same period last
year.

Apio Tech

The increase in gross profits for Apio Techthe fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 comparetidcsame period last year was due to Apio
only selling its proprietary banana packaging scdil year 2005 versus selling bananas in its bapacleaging in fiscal year 2004 which
resulted in significant gross profit losses.

Apio Service

The decrease in Apio’s service business guosfits during the fiscal year ended May 29, 2@805pared to the same period last year was
directly attributable to lower volume sales in Ai@ooling operation and the sale of the domestiecneodity vegetable business to Beach
Produce in June 2003.

Landec Ag

The increase in gross profits for Landec #gthe fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 comparetieasaime period last year was due to the
increase in revenues, partially offset by highgatty fees on corn seed hybrids with traits, suglgenetics or certain chemicals, resulting in
lower gross profits as a percentage of sales @alfigear 2005 compared to the same period last year

Corporate

The decrease in gross profits for Corporatdtfe fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 comparetidgcsame period last year was primarily due
to the completion of two R&D contracts (UCB and adical device collaboration) in early fiscal ye@02 which resulted in R&D gross
profits decreasing $152,000 in fiscal year 2005 parad to fiscal year 2004.
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Operating Expenses:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 29, 2005 May 30, 2004 Change

(In thousands)

Research and Developmer

Apio $ 831 $ 1,24¢ (33)%

Landec Ag 647 857 (25)%

Corporate 1,06¢ 1,34¢ (21)%
Total R&D $ 2,54: $ 3,452 (26)%

Selling, General and Administrative

Apio $ 12,35 $ 12,49¢ ()%

Landec Ag 7,851 7,017 12%

Corporate 3,201 2,76¢ 16%
Total S,G&A $ 23,41 $ 22,28¢ 5%

Research and Developme

Landec’s research and development expensssst@rimarily of expenses involved in the develemt and process scale-up initiatives.
Research and development efforts at Apio are fatosehe Company’s proprietary BreatheWay membrased for packaging produce,
with recent focus on extending the shelf life ohéaas and other shelf-life sensitive vegetablesfranitd At Landec Ag, the research and
development efforts are focused on the Companypretary Intellicoat coatings for seeds, primadirn seed. At Corporate, the research
and development efforts are focused on uses fapribygrietary Intelimer polymers outside of food agticulture.

The decrease in research and developmenhsapéor the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 conaparéhe same period last year was
primarily due to lower research and developmentasgps associated with (1) the Comparsgecialty packaging banana program as the

of the program has shifted to market testing ofghekaging technology with Apio’s partner, Chigustiaands International, (2) a greater shift
of Landec Ag research and development personm@biuction activities in fiscal year 2005 compatrediscal year 2004 and (3) a reduction

in staff at Corporate and lower facility relategperses in fiscal year 2005 compared to fiscal 26a4.

Selling, General and Administrativ
Selling, general and administrative expems@sist primarily of sales and marketing expensssdaated with Landec’s product sales and
services, business development expenses and steffdministrative expenses.

The increase in selling, general and admtise expenses, excluding the $713,000 gain osdheof land at Apio which is netted aga
selling, general and administrative expenses Heffiscal year ended May 29, 2005 compared toaheegeriod last year was primarily dus

an increase in selling and marketing expenses it &qd Landec Ag in order to increase revenues.
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Other:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Ended Ended
May 29, 2005 May 30, 2004 Change
(In thousands)
Interest Income $ 214 $ 164 30%
Interest Expenst (419 (811) (49%
Minority Interest Expense (411) (537) (23)%
Other (Expense)/ Incom 4 29 (114)%
Total Other Expenst $ (61F) $ (1,155 47)%

Interest Income

The increase in interest income for the figear ended May 29, 2005 compared to the samegbrst year was primarily due to the
increase in cash available for investing.

Interest Expense

The decrease in interest expense duringdhelfyear ended May 29, 2005 compared to the gemmed last year was due to the Company
using cash generated from operations to pay dowhatel thus lowering interest expenses.

Minority Interest Expense

The minority interest expense consists ofrtirority interest associated with the limited pars’equity interest in the net income of Aj
Cooling, LP.

The decrease in the minority interest indisear 2005 compared to fiscal year 2004 was di@aer profits generated from Apio
Cooling in fiscal year 2005.

Other
Other consists of non-operating income armkases.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of May 28, 2006, the Company had cashcasth equivalents of $20.5 million, a net incredsg/d6 million from $12.9 million at
May 29, 2005.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $10.9 million of cash floanf operating activities during fiscal year 2006npared to $13.0 million during fiscal year
2005. The primary sources of cash during the figeal ended May 28, 2006 were from (1) net incontereon-cash items, such as
depreciation, of $11.0 million and (2) increasedent liabilities of $4.5 million primarily due tmcreased royalty and technology fees in
fiscal year 2006 at Landec Ag which are not dud fistal year 2007. The primary uses of cash iarafing activities were from (1) increas
inventories, primarily seed corn at Landec Ag, 8fl$million and (2) increased accounts receivab®2d0 million primarily due to
receivables at Heartland Hybrids which was acquimelugust 2005.

Cash Flow from Investing Activitie:

Net cash used in investing activities for year ended May 28, 2006 was $5.5 million comp#oe®b.2 million for the same period last
year. The primary uses of cash from investing &&win fiscal year 2006 were for the purchasthefassets of Heartland Hybrids
$3.9 million and the purchase of $4.7 million of
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property and equipment primarily for the furthetamation of Apio’s value-added facility. Net castoyided by investing activities was
primarily from the net maturities of marketable wéttes of $2.0 million.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities floe fiscal year ended May 28, 2006 was $2.3 miliompared to net cash used in financing
activities of $1.4 million for the same period lgstr. The primary sources of cash was from the &a$3.5 million of common stock to
employees upon the exercise of stock options. Tinegpy use of cash from financing activities durfiggal year 2006 was from the pay dc
of $1.1 million of long-term debt.

Capital Expenditures

During the fiscal year ended May 28, 200&)dec purchased vegetable processing equipment@added its processing facility to
support the growth of Apio’s value added busing&s®se expenditures represented the majority od4he million of equipment purchased.

Debt

On September 1, 2004, Apio entered into Wills Fargo Bank N.A. (“Wells Fargo”) a new $10 liih revolving line of credit that
expires on August 31, 2006, a 12-month, $4.8 nmiléguipment line of credit, and a 36-month, $1.Rioni term note for equipment
purchased under the equipment line of credit wigdl$\Fargo Business Credit (collectively the “Loagreement”).

On November 1, 2005, Apio amended its revigline of credit with Wells Fargo Bank N.A. thaasvscheduled to expire on August 31,
2006. The line was reduced from $10.0 million ta0$nillion and outstanding amounts under the liheredit now bear interest at either the
prime rate less .25% or the LIBOR adjustable r&is f.75% (6.84% at May 28, 2006). The Loan Agre@meentains certain restrictive
covenants, which require Apio to meet certain fiahtests, including minimum levels of net incomeximum leverage ratio, minimum net
worth and maximum capital expenditures. Landecphedged substantially all of the assets of Apisdoure the lines with Wells Fargo. At
May 28, 2006, no amounts were outstanding underethaving line of credit or the equipment linearédit. Apio has been in compliance
with all loan covenants in the Loan Agreement sitheeinception of this loan.

Landec Ag has a revolving line of credit whadlows for borrowings of up to $7.5 million, basen Landec Ag’s inventory levels. The
interest rate on the revolving line of credit is frime rate, (8.00% at May 28, 2006). The linereflit contains certain restrictive covenants,
which, among other things, restrict the abilitLeihdec Ag to make payments on debt owed by LandetwAandec. Landec Ag was in
compliance with all of the loan covenants througH@meal year 2006. Landec has pledged substantdlibf the assets of Landec Ag to
secure the line of credit. At May 28, 2006, no antswere outstanding under Landec Ag'’s revolving lof credit.

At May 29, 2005, Landec’s total debt, inchuglicurrent maturities and capital lease obligatiares $2.0 million and the total debt to
equity ratio was 2% as compared to 4% at May 2052This debt was comprised of term debt and ddp#ése obligations. The amount of
debt outstanding on the Company’s revolving linesredit fluctuates over time. Borrowings on Landdimes of credit are expected to vary
with seasonal requirements of the Company’s buséges
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Contractual Obligations
The Company’s material contractual obligagifor the next five years and thereafter as of 8y2006, are as follows (in thousands):

Due in Fiscal Year Ended May

Obligation Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter

Long-term Debt $1,96¢ $1,96¢ $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Capital Lease 50 50 — — — — —
Operating Lease 1,86¢ 85€ 582 332 95 3 —
Licensing Obligatior 60C 10C 10C 10C 10C 10C 10C
Purchase Commitmen 98€ 98€ — — — — —
Total $5,47: $3,96( $ 688 $432 $19E $ 10¢ $ 10C

Landec is not a party to any agreements witlcommitments to, any special purpose entitiaswould constitute material off-balance
sheet financing other than the operating lease domants listed above.

Landec’s future capital requirements will deg on numerous factors, including the progrests aésearch and development programs;
the development of commercial scale manufacturagabilities; the development of marketing, salebdistribution capabilities; the ability
of Landec to establish and maintain new collabeeatind licensing arrangements; any decision toueuaslditional acquisition opportunities;
weather conditions that can affect the supply aickf produce, the timing and amount, if anypafments received under licensing and
research and development agreements; the costsaavio preparing, filing, prosecuting, defendimgdanforcing intellectual property rights;
the ability to comply with regulatory requiremeritse emergence of competitive technology and mddkees; the effectiveness of product
commercialization activities and arrangements; @heér factors. If Landec’s currently available fentbgether with the internally generated
cash flow from operations are not sufficient tasfgtits capital needs, Landec would be requiregaek additional funding through other
arrangements with collaborative partners, additibaak borrowings and public or private sales sfiecurities. There can be no assurance
that additional funds, if required, will be availalto Landec on favorable terms if at all.

Landec believes that its cash from operatiatmg with existing cash, cash equivalents anstieg borrowing capacities will be sufficie
to finance its operational and capital requiremémtsugh at least the next twelve months.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk

The following table presents information abitie Company’s debt obligations and derivativaficial instruments that are sensitive to
changes in interest rates. The table presentsipair@mounts and related weighted average inteagss by fiscal year of expected maturity
for the Company’s debt obligations. The carryintueaof the Company’s debt obligations approximatesfair value of the debt obligations
as of May 28, 2006.

Liabilities 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total
(In 000’s)
Lines of Credif $ — $I— $— $— $— $ — $ —
Avg. Int. Rate
Long term debt, including current porti
Variable Rate $2,01¢ $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $2,01¢
Avg. Int. Rate 5.9(% 5.9(%
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Iltem 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See Item 15 of Part IV of this report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

ltem 9A. Controls and Procedure
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with participatibour Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Fin@i®fficer, the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the ettaegberiod covered by this Annual Report on FdtfrK. Based on this evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial 0#r have concluded that our disclosure controts@ocedures are effective in ensuring
that information required to be disclosed in repdited under the Exchange Act is recorded, praxssummarized and reported within the
time periods specified by the Securities and Exgeabommission, and to provide reasonable assuthataformation required to be
disclosed by the Company in such reports is accatadland communicated to the Company’s manageinehitding its Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropritdeallow timely decisions regarding required distire.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

There were no changes in our internal cositoekr financial reporting during the quarter eniay 28, 2006 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf, our internal controls over financial repogtin

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishird maintaining adequate internal control ovgairfcial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange A&984, as amended). Our management assesseddbgveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of May 28, 2006. In nmakthis assessment, our management used thaagtrforth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisgié@S0”) in Internal Control — Integrated Framewo®©ur management has
concluded that, as of May 28, 2006, our internalticd over financial reporting was effective to pide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Our independent registerdalip accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, have igsuan audit report on our assessment
of our internal control over financial reportinghieh is included herein.

Our management, including our Chief Execu@féicer and Chief Financial Officer, does not esjpthat our disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal control over financedarting will prevent all error and all fraud. Ardool system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, nofiesassurance that the objectives of the cosyrsiem are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that thereraseurce constraints, and the benefits of contnaist be considered relative to their costs.
Because of the inherent limitations in all conspstems, no evaluation of controls can provide labs@ssurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within the Company hbeen detected.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Landec @rporation

We have audited management’s assessmenidattin the accompanying Management Report onnaké&ontrols over Financial
Reporting, that Landec Corporation maintained éffednternal control over financial reporting as\bay 28, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framewssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitimatof the Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). Landec Corporatismhanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and
its assessment of the effectiveness of internarabaver financial reporting. Our responsibilityto express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectivenes® @dmpany’s internal control over financial repaytbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withsthaedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovétsipard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahgaéug the design and operating effectivenessitefrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financiaporting is a process designed to provide reasersgsurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircéal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financékstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jge reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iizé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventietect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessmentdradec Corporation maintained effective internaitoal over financial reporting as of
May 28, 2006, is fairly stated, in all materialpests, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wittstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Landec Corporasiarf Bay 28, 2006 and May 29, 2005, and the relatattments of income, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for the years ended May2R86, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004 of Landec Catian and our report dated July :
2006 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
July 14, 2006
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Iltem 9B. Other Information

None

PART 1lI

Iltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrs

This information required by this item wikklzontained in the Registrant’s definitive proxgtement which the Registrant will file with
the Commission no later than September 25, 2008 da9s after the Registrant’s fiscal year end aedrday this Report) and is incorporated
herein by reference.

ltem 11. Executive Compensatio

This information required by this item wiklzontained in the Registrant’s definitive proxgtsient which the Registrant will file with
the Commission no later than September 25, 2008 ¢a9s after the Registrant’s fiscal year end aedvdry this Report) and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners athbnagement

This information required by this item wiklzontained in the Registrant’s definitive proxgtsient which the Registrant will file with
the Commission no later than September 25, 2008 ¢a9s after the Registrant’s fiscal year end aedday this Report) and is incorporated
herein by reference.

ltem 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactio

This information required by this item wikklzontained in the Registrant’s definitive proxgtement which the Registrant will file with
the Commission no later than September 25, 2008 da9s after the Registrant’s fiscal year end aedrday this Report) and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

This information required by this item wiklzontained in the Registrant’s definitive proxgtsiment which the Registrant will file with
the Commission no later than September 25, 2008 da9s after the Registrant’s fiscal year end aedrday this Report) and is incorporated
herein by reference.
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PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

(a) 1. Consolidated Financial Statementsasfdec Corporation

Page

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent RegistePethlic Accounting Firn 44
Consolidated Balance Sheets at May 28, 2006 and28a200& 45
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Yeare&imday 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2 46
Consolidated Statements of Changes in ShareholBgtsty for the Years Ended May 28, 2006, May 2Z)2and May 30,

2004 47
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEeaded May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, - 48
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 49

2. All schedules provided for in the appliGabtcounting regulations of the Securities and Brgh Commission have been omitted since
they pertain to items which do not appear in tharicial statements of Landec Corporation and ltsigiaries or to items which are not
significant or to items as to which the requiresctbsures have been made elsewhere in the finastatainents and supplementary notes and
such schedule:

3. Index of Exhibit: 73
The exhibits listed in the accompanying Indégxhibits are filed or incorporated by referemsepart of this report.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Landec Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidaé¢ahce sheets of Landec Corporation and subdias of May 28, 2006 and May 29,
2005, and the related consolidated statementscofrie, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for ediche years in the periods ended
May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004. Tliesacial statements are the responsibility of @manpany’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbatdoard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on flasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by manageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements nefd to above present fairly, in all material regpethe consolidated financial position of
Landec Corporation and subsidiaries at May 28, 20@6May 29, 2005, and the consolidated resultsedf operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the periods endeg 2822006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004, in caonfty with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wittsthedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States), the
effectiveness of Landec Corporation’s internal ocombver financial reporting as of May 28, 2006séd on criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cassion and our report dated
July 14, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinionetbier

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

San Jose, California
July 14, 2006
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LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securitie

ASSETS

May 28, 2006

May 29, 2005

(In thousands, except share
and per share amounts’

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfabants of $245 and $313 at May

2006 and May 29, 2005, respectiv:
Accounts receivable, related pa
Inventory
Notes and advances receivable,
Notes receivable, related pa
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Assets held for sal

Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill, net
Trademarks, ne
Other intangibles, n¢
Notes receivabl
Notes receivable, related pa
Other asset

Total Asset:

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ’* EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Related party payable
Accrued compensatic
Other accrued liabilitie
Deferred revenu
Current maturities of long term de
Total current liabilities
Long term debt, less current maturit
Other liabilities
Minority interest
Total liabilities
Shareholder equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 sharte®@azed; 24,917,298 and
24,086,368 shares issued and outstanding at Ma3(®8, and May 29, 2005,

respectively
Accumulated defici

Total shareholde’ equity
Total Liabilities and Sharehold¢ Equity

See accompanying notes.
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$ 2051¢  $ 12,87
— 1,96¢

17,63 15,40

561 47€

13,95¢ 9,917

37¢€ 41¢

14 89

1,637 2,047

— 1,19¢

54,70: 44,37;

19,01 17,27

29,12 25,987

13,27 11,57(

86C 58

631 42¢

— 7

1,42¢ 37¢

$ 119,028  $ 100,07
$ 2343 $ 17,51
532 792

3,30¢ 1,907

2,037 2,141

884 557

2,01¢ 54¢

32,20¢ 23,45¢

2,54(

— 55C

1,771 1,46€

33,97¢ 28,01¢

126,28 121,95

(41,239 (49,890

85,04¢ 72,06(

$ 119,028  $ 100,07
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LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Statement of Income Data:
Revenues
Product sale
Services revenu
Services revenue, related pa
License fee:
Research, development and royalty revet
Royalty revenues, related pa
Total revenue
Cost of revenue
Cost of product sale
Cost of product sales, related pe
Cost of services reveni
Total cost of revenu
Gross profit
Operating costs and expens
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrati
Total operating costs and expen
Operating incom:
Interest incom:
Interest expens
Minority interest expens
Other (expense)/income, r
Net income
Dividends on Series B preferred stc
Net income applicable to common sharehol

Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha

Shares used in per share computal
Basic

Diluted

Year Ended
May 28,
2006

Year Ended
May 29,
2005

Year Ended
May 30,
2004

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 22540: $ 201,02 $ 185,66
— — 2,08¢

3,72t 3,704 3,70¢

2,39¢ 88 88

162 18E 292

264 232 257

231,95 205,23 192,00:
184,34t 164,02 153,35
4,55¢ 6,33z 5,557

3,00¢ 2,89¢ 3,39(

191,90 173,25t 162,30
40,04+ 31,97: 29,79

3,04z 2,54: 3,45:

27,97¢ 23,41 22,28
31,02 25,95t 25,73

9,02t 6,017 4,05¢

632 214 164

(452) (414 (811)

(529) (411) (537)

(24) @) 29

$ 8,651 % 540. $ 2,90
— — (464)

$ 8,651 % 540: $ 2,43¢
$ 0.3t % 0.2 % 0.11
$ 03: % 021 % 0.1z
24,55: 23,70 21,39
25,65 24,61 23,55¢

See accompanying notes.
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Balance at May 25, 20(
Dividends on Series B preferred stc
Issuance of common stock at $0.58 to
$5.75 per shar
Conversion of Series B preferred stock to
common stocl
Net income
Balance at May 30, 20(
Issuance of common stock at $0.86 to
$7.20 per shar
Net income
Balance at May 29, 20(
Issuance of common stock at $0.86 to
$6.75 per shar
Issuance of common stock for the net ass
of Heartland Hybrid:
Net income
Balance at May 28, 20(

LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred Stock Common Stock Total
Accumulated Shareholders’

Shares Amount Shares Amount Deficit Equity

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

160,88: $ 5,531 21,107,51 $110,10( $ (57,729 $ 57,90:
13,52¢ 464 — — (464) —
— — 330,40: 74€ — 74¢€
(174,410 (5,995 1,744,10: 5,99t — —
— — — — 2,90( 2,90(
— — 23,182,02 116,84: (55,292) 61,54¢
— — 904,34t 5,10¢ — 5,10¢
— — — — 5,40z 5,40z
— — 24,086,36 121,95( (49,890 72,06(
— — 678,74« 3,37¢ — 3,37¢
— — 152,18t 96C — 96(
— — — — 8,651 8,651
- $ — 24,917,29  $126,28¢ $ (41,239 $  85,04¢

See accompanying notes
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LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 28, May 29, May 30,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 8,651 $ 5,40z $ 2,90(¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,20: 3,467 3,70
Write down of goodwill — — 12¢
Net (gain) loss on disposal of property and equipr (120) 14¢ (57
Minority interest 52¢ 414 537
Investment in unconsolidated subsidi (1,317 — —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effactsifacquisitions and discontinuec
operations
Accounts receivable, n (1,96¢) (532 1,964
Inventory (3,129 1,31( 25C
Issuance of notes and advances receiv (1,767 (44¢) (1,047
Collection of notes and advances receivi 1,88 1,25( 2,707
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 431 (51%) 58
Accounts payabl 3,68t 2,55¢ 1,02(
Grower payable — — (3,239
Related party payable (260) 363 (202)
Accrued compensatic 1,39¢ 337 347
Other accrued liabilitie (14¢) (365) (1,425
Deferred revenu (223 (337) (147)
Net cash provided by operating activit 10,86¢ 13,04¢ 7,511
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm (4,746 (3,65¢) (3,399
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu (3,860 — —
Decrease (increase) in restricted c — — 2,382
Issuance of notes and advances receiv (425) — (20
Collection of notes and advances receivi 224 40¢ 363
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipt 1,35(C 22 3
Purchase of marketable securit (997) (1,96¢) —
Proceeds from maturities of marketable secur 2,95¢ — —
Net cash used in investing activiti (5,489 (5,196 (665)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from sale of common st 3,37¢ 5,10¢ 74€
Proceeds from the exercise of subsidiary opt 10t 50 10¢
Net change in other assi 254 (140) (284)
Borrowings on lines of cred 14,90¢ 59,44 136,52:
Payments on lines of cret (14,909 (64,75%) (138,449
Payments on long term de (1,136 (1,797 (2,65¢)
Proceeds from issuance of long term c — 1,20( 87
Payments to minority intere (329) (550) (154)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 2,272 (1,439 (4,087
Net increase in cash and cash equival 7,64¢ 6,41° 2,75¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 12,87 6,45¢ 3,69¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 20,51¢ $ 12,87: $ 6,45¢
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows informat
Cash paid during the period for inter $ 312 $ 511 $ 843
Cash paid during the period for income ta $ = $ 50 $ =
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding activities
Sale of land and equipment for note receiv: $ 38C $ = $ 171
Issuance of Series B preferred stock as dividem&eties B preferred stockhold: $ — $ — $ 464
Conversion of Series B preferred stock to commoaoke $ = $ = $ 5,99t

See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary dbignificant Accounting Policies

Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (‘deai or the “Company”) design, develop, manufactarel sell temperature-activated and
other specialty polymer products for a varietyadd products, agricultural products, and licensadingr applications. In addition, the
Company markets and distributes hybrid corn seddriners in the United States through its LandeclAg. (“Landec Ag”) subsidiary and
specialty packaged fresh-cut and whole producettilers and foodservice companies primarily, & thited States and Canada through its
Apio, Inc. (“Apio”) subsidiary.

Basis of Presentatiol
Basis of Consolidatio

The consolidated financial statements coregiie accounts of Landec Corporation and its sidrgd, Apio and Landec Ag. All material
inter-company transactions and balances have bieeinated.

Reclassification:

Certain reclassifications have been madeitw period financial statements to conform to tkerent year presentation.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policie
Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements infoomity with accounting principles generally actapin the United States requires
management to make certain estimates and assumphiatnaffect the reported amounts of assets abdities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstalements and the reported results of operationisg the reporting period. Actual results
could differ materially from those estimates.

For instance, the carrying value of notes aiehnces receivable are impacted by current marlegs for the related crops, weather
conditions and the fair value of the underlyinguséyg obtained by the Company, such as, liens ap@rity and crops. The Company
recognizes losses when it estimates that the &irevof the related crops or security is insuffiti® cover the advance, note receivable or
investment.

Concentrations of Ris

Cash and cash equivalents, marketable sestitade accounts receivable, grower advances@ted receivable are financial instrume
that potentially subject the Company to conceraretiof credit risk. Corporate policy limits, amouiher things, the amount of credit
exposure to any one issuer and to any one typevestment, other than securities issued or guaedritg the U.S. government. The Comp
routinely assesses the financial strength of custerand growers and, as a consequence, believdsatteareceivables, grower advances and
notes receivable credit risk exposure is limiteckdt losses for bad debt are provided for in thiesolidated financial statements through a
charge to operations. A valuation allowance is jgled for known and anticipated credit losses. Hwwrded amounts for these financial
instruments are equal to their fair value.

Several of the raw materials used to manufadhe Company’s products are currently purch&®ad a single source, including some
monomers used to synthesize Intelifi@olymers and substrate materials for the producifdntelimer packaging used on a multitude of
Apio value-added products. In addition, a majootyhe hybrid corn varieties sold by Landec Ag soerced from a single seed producer.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

During the fiscal year ended May 28, 200&ssto the Company’s top five customers accourde@pproximately 46% of total revenue,
with the top customers, Costco Wholesale Corpanaitd Sam’s Club from the Food Products Technostegyment, accounted for
approximately 16% and 14%, respectively, of toéalenues. In addition, approximately 22% of the Canys total revenues were derived
from product sales to international customers, rafnghom individually accounted for more than 6%attl revenues. As of May 28, 2006,
Costco Wholesale Corporation and Sam’s Club reptedeapproximately 20% and 14%, respectively, taltaccounts receivable.

During the fiscal year ended May 29, 200%sto the Company’s top five customers accountedpproximately 42% of total revenue,
with the top customers, Costco Wholesale Corpandtiom the Food Products Technology segment, adedunr approximately 15% of tot
revenues. In addition, approximately 24% of the @any’s total revenues were derived from productstd international customers, none of
whom individually accounted for more than 6% oftaevenues. As of May 29, 2005, Costco Wholesalg@ration represented
approximately 18% of total accounts receivable.

Impairment Of Lon-Lived Asset

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairmengénever events or changes in circumstances tedieat their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is meddwya&omparison of the carrying amount of the asgs#te net undiscounted future cash f
expected to be generated from the asset. If thedutndiscounted cash flows are not sufficienetmvrer the carrying value of the assets, the
assets’ carrying value is adjusted to fair value.

The Company regularly evaluates its longdiessets for indicators of possible impairmentda@te, no impairment has been recorded.

Financial Instrument:

The Company’s financial instruments are prima&omposed of marketable debt securities, conciabterm trade payables and grower
advances, notes receivable and lines of creditiedisas long-term notes receivables and debt imstnts. For short-term instruments, the
historical carrying amount is a reasonable estiroifair value. Fair values for long-term financiastruments not readily marketable are
estimated based upon discounted future cash floysegailing market interest rates. Based on tlassemptions, management believes the
fair market values of the Company’s financial ingtients are not materially different from their netexd amounts as of May 28, 2006.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

The Company maintains allowances for doulatfwounts for estimated losses resulting fromrheility of its customers to make requi
payments and sales discounts. The allowance fdstlidiaccounts is based on review of the overafidition of accounts receivable balances
and review of significant past due accounts. Ttanges in the Company'’s allowances for doubtful ant®are summarized in the following
table.

Balance at Additions Charged Balance at
Beginning of to Costs and End of
Period Expenses Deductions Period

Year ended May 30, 20(
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and
notes receivabl $ 607 $ 27¢€ $ (423 $ 46(
Year ended May 29, 20(
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and
notes receivabl $ 46( $ 80 $ (182 $ 35¢
Year ended May 28, 20(
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and
notes receivabl $ 35¢ $ 47 $ (13%) $ 27C

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue from product sales is recognized vihere is persuasive evidence that an arrangemists ditle has transferred, the price is
fixed and determinable, and collectibility is remably assured. Allowances are established for astidhuncollectible amounts, product
returns, and discounts.

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordavitte Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 10/Revenue Recognition (a replacement of SAB ]101)
(SAB 104). Initial license fees are deferred andaired over the period of the agreement to reveviuen a contract exists, the fee is fixed
and determinable, and collectibility is reasonasgured. Noncancellable, nonrefundable licensedieesecognized over the research and
development period of the agreement, as well atetine of any related supply agreement entereddoinzurrently with the license when the
risk associated with commercialization of a prodacton-substantive at the outset of the arrangémen

Prior to November 1, 1999, the Company retsghnoncancellable, nonrefundable license fees\asue when received and when all
significant contractual obligations of the Compaaebating to the fees had been met. Effective Nowamih 1999, the Company changed its
method of accounting for noncancellable, nonrefblelicense fees to recognize such fees over geareh and development period of the
agreement, as well as the term of any related guggpkeement entered into concurrently with thengmewhen the risk associated with
commercialization of a product is nenbstantive at the outset of the arrangement. Tmepa@ny believes the change in accounting prinég
preferable based on guidance provided in SAB 1f)thé fiscal year ended October 29, 2000, the Cosnpecorded a charge of $1.9 million
related to the cumulative effect of the changecitoanting principle. The cumulative effect wasially recorded as deferred revenue and is
being recognized as revenue over the researcheuvgdophment period or supply period commitment efdlgreement. During the year ended
October 29, 2000, the impact of the change in attog was to increase the net loss by approxima&&!g million which was comprised of
the $1.9 million cumulative effect of the changedascribed above, net of $374,000 of the relatéeraa revenue which was recognized as
“recycled” revenue during 2000. “Recycled” revematers to revenue that had previously been recegréz licensing revenue in the
Company’s financial statements, but as a resuh®Company’s adoption of SAB 104, was reversealitin a cumulative effect of a change
in accounting in fiscal year 2000 and is now be®gpgnized as revenue over the research and dewefdgperiod and/or the supply period
commitment of the agreement, whichever is longer.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

In July 2005, the Company amended its supghgement with Alcon, Inc. to change the expiratlate of the agreement from
November 1, 2012 to May 28, 2006. In accordanck ®AB 104, the entire amount of the deferred reeesf$638,000 as of May 29, 20(
was recognized as “recycled” revenue during figealr 2006.

Contract revenue for research and developis8D) is recorded as earned, based on the perfaceneequirements of the contract. Non-
refundable contract fees for which no further perfance obligations exist, and there is no contigumvolvement by the Company, are
recognized on the earlier of when the paymentsea@ived or when collection is assured.

Other Accounting Policies and Disclosure
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Secur

The Company records all highly liquid sedastwith three months or less from date of purcti@seaturity as cash equivalents. Short-
term marketable securities consist of high qualdgporate debt securities with original maturitiésnore than three months at the date of
purchase and less than one year from the datedfalance sheet. The Company classifies all debtites with readily determined market
values as “available for sale” in accordance wiA\S No. 115Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgS8iecuritiesThese
investments are classified as marketable secudtighe consolidated balance sheet as of May 2% 2tbne at May 28, 2006) and are cal
at fair market value. Unrealized gains and losseseported as a component of shareholders’ equitiywere immaterial in fiscal year 2005.
The cost of debt securities is adjusted for amatitin of premiums and discounts to maturity. Thigdization is recorded to interest income.
Realized gains and losses on the sale of avaifablgale securities are also recorded to interesime and were immaterial in fiscal year
2005. The cost of securities sold is based onpbeific identification method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cosing the first-in, first-out method) or market. &sMay 28, 2006 and May 29, 2005 inventories
consisted of (in thousands):

May 28, May 29,
2006 2005
Finished good $ 10,017 $ 6,132
Raw material 3,76¢ 3,65¢
Work in proces: 177 13C
Inventory $ 13,95¢ $ 9,91

If the cost of the inventories exceeds tegwected market value, provisions are recordecdkntlyrfor the difference between the cost and
the market value. These provisions are determiasddon specific identification for unusable ineeptand an additional reserve, based on
historical losses, for inventory considered to beable.

Advertising Expens

The Company defers certain costs relatedréztdresponse advertising of Landec Ag's hybridncgeeds. Such costs are amortized over
periods (less than one year) that correspond testimated revenue stream of the advertising agtididvertising expenditures for Landec
and Apio that are not direct-response advertisesnaat expensed as incurred. The advertising exgenttee Company for fiscal years 2006,
2005 and 2004 was $1.6 million, $2.2 million andi$aillion, respectively. The amount of deferred
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

advertising included in prepaid expenses and athieent assets at May 28, 2006 and May 29, 2005582900 and $192,000, respectively.

Notes and Advances Receiva

Apio has made advances to fruit growerstierdevelopment of orchards, to produce growersrimp and harvesting costs and to the
buyer of the fruit processing facility. Notes amtyances receivable related to operating activdresfor the sourcing of crops for Apio’s
business and notes and advances receivable rétaitegesting activities are for financing transans with third parties. Typically, except for
development advances, these advances are paidtloifi the growing season (less than one year) fhamested crops. Development
advances and advances not fully paid during theentigrowing season are converted to interest hgafligations, evidenced by contracts
and notes receivable. These notes and advancegateleeare secured by perfected liens on land amiléps and have terms that range from
twelve to sixty months. Notes receivable are pécalty reviewed (at least quarterly) for collectityi. A reserve is established for any note or
advance deemed to not be fully collectible basexhign estimate of the crop value or the fair valiine security for the note or advance.

Related Party Transactior

Apio provides packing, cooling and distrilmgtiservices for farms in which the Chief Executdficer of Apio (the “Apio CEQ”) has a
financial interest and purchases produce from tifenses. Apio also purchases produce from BeacHhaidduce, LLC (formerly known as
Apio Fresh), a related party, for sale to thirdtigarand provides cooling and distribution servimeBeachside Produce. Revenues, cost of
product sales and the resulting receivables andipjey are classified as related party in the aceoipg financial statements as of May 28,
2006 and May 29, 2005 and for the fiscal years éiday 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004.

Apio leases, for approximately $429,000 oraanual basis, agricultural land that is either esrcontrolled or leased by the Apio CEO.
Apio, in turn, subleases that land at cost to grewého are obligated to deliver product from tlead to Apio for value added products. TF
is generally no net statement of operations imfzaépio as a result of these leasing activitiesAypip creates a guaranteed source of supply
for the value added business. Apio has loss expasuthe leasing activity to the extent that itfgble to sublease the land. For fiscal years
ended May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 28@1Company subleased all of the land leased fhemApio CEO and received suble
income of $554,000, $1.0 million and $1.3 millisaspectively, which is substantially equal to theant the Company paid to lease that |
for such periods.

Apio’s domestic commodity vegetable busingas sold to Beachside Produce, effective June@B.2The Apio CEO is a 12.5% owner
in Beachside Produce. During fiscal years 2006520t 2004, the Company recognized revenues of,$203$238,000 and $890,000,
respectively, from the sale of products to Beaah§itbduce and royalty revenues of $264,000, $283%6d $257,000, respectively, from the
use by Beachside Produce of Apio’s trademarks.rélaed accounts receivable is classified as rlpéety in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of May 28, 2006/&yd29, 2005.

In addition, the Apio CEO has a 6% ownershiprest in Apio Cooling LP, a limited partnersimpwhich Apio is the general partner with
a 60% ownership interest. Included in minority retd as of May 28, 2006 and May 29, 2005 is $23¥d@@ $201,000, respectively, related
to the Apio CEO’s ownership interest.

All related party transactions are monitoge@rterly by the Company and approved by the AGdinmittee of the Board of Directors.
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Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment are stated at cogteitkitures for major improvements are capitalizédlevepairs and maintenance are charged
to expense. Depreciation is expensed on a striighbasis over the estimated useful lives of #spective assets, generally three to thirty
years for buildings and leasehold improvementstarek to seven years for furniture and fixturesnpoters, capitalized software, machine
equipment and autos. Leasehold improvements aretizetbover the lesser of the economic life ofitherovement or the life of the lease on
a straight-line basis.

The Company capitalizes software developmests for internal use in accordance with StateroERDsition 98-17 Accounting for Cos
of Computer Software Developed or Obtained forrtraeUse” (“SOP 98-1"). Capitalization of software developrheosts begins in the
application development stage and ends when tlet isgslaced into service. The Company amortizeb sasts using the straight-line basis
over estimated useful lives. The Company capitdl&226,000 and $209,000 of software developmeris chging the fiscal years ended
May 28, 2006 and May 29, 2005, respectively.

Intangible Asset

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Stadsl®8oard issued Statements of Financial AccourSiitasndards No. 14Business
Combinations and No. 142Goodwill and Other Intangible AssgSFAS 142), effective for fiscal years beginningeaDecember 15, 2001.
Under the new rules, goodwill and intangible asdetmed to have indefinite lives are no longer éimext but are subject to annual
impairment tests in accordance with the Statem@ttser intangible assets will continue to be anzediover their useful lives.

The Company is required under SFAS 142 tevegoodwill and indefinite lived intangible assatdeast annually. During fiscal year
2006, the Company completed its annual impairmeview. The review is performed by grouping thelmmtk value of all long-lived assets
for reporting entities, including goodwill and othietangible assets, and comparing this value éa¢fated estimated fair value. The
determination of fair value is based on estimatedré discounted cash flows related to these loregtlassets. The discount rate used was
based on the risks associated with the reportitiesn The determination of fair value was perfediby management using the services «
independent appraiser. The review concluded tleatdin value of the reporting entities exceededctireying value of their net assets and thus
no impairment charge was warranted as of May 28620

Equity Investment in N-public Compan)

The Company’s equity investment in a non-gubbmpany is carried at cost, as adjusted for impent losses, if any. Since there is no
readily available market value information, the @amy periodically reviews this investment to detiewif any other than temporary
declines in value have occurred and then the cagryalue of the investment is adjusted as necessary

Deferred Revenu

Cash received in advance of services perfdrfpencipally revenues related to upfront licefises) or shipment of products (primarily
hybrid corn seed) are recognized as a liability eambrded as deferred revenue. At May 28, 2006;cxppately $73,000 has been recognized
as a liability for advances on future hybrid coeed shipments, $600,000 as a liability for defetiezhse fee revenues and $211,000 for
advances on ground lease payments from growers.

At May 29, 2005, approximately $97,000 hasrbeecognized as a liability for advances on fuhyierid corn seed shipments, $638,00
a liability for deferred license fee revenues aB@2000 for advances on ground lease paymentsdromers.
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Minority Interest

In connection with the acquisition of Apicahdec acquired Apio’s 60% general partner intéredpio Cooling, a California limited
partnership. Apio Cooling is included in the coidaled financial statements of Landec for all pgsipresented. The minority interest balé
of $1.8 million at May 28, 2006 is comprised of Shillion of limited partners’ interest in Apio Chiog LP and $296,000 of third party
ownership in Apio and Landec Ag. The minority irgstrbalance of $1.5 million at May 29, 2005 is casgdl of $1.3 million of limited
partners’ interest in Apio Cooling LP and $141,@0@hird party ownership in Apio and Landec Ag.

Per Share Informatio

Financial Accounting Standards Board issutiefhent No. 128Earnings Per Share”’(SFAS 128) requires the presentation of basic anc
diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings peeshariudes any dilutive effects of options, warsaarid convertible securities and is
computed using the weighted average number of canshare outstanding. Diluted earnings per shatectsfthe potential dilution if
securities or other contracts to issue common stk exercised or converted into common stoclkutBil common equivalent shares consist
of convertible preferred stock and stock optionagishe treasury stock method.

The following table sets forth the computatad diluted net income per share (in thousandsegixper share amounts):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended
May 28, 2006 May 29, 2005 May 30, 2004
Numerator:
Net income $ 8,651 $ 5,40z $ 2,90(
Less: Minority interest in income of subsidiz (55€) (294) (11€)
Net income for diluted net income per sh $ 8,09t $ 5,10¢ $ 2,78¢
Denominator
Weighted average shares for basic net income pee 24,55 23,70t 21,39¢
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 1,10¢ 90¢ 60z
Convertible preferred stoc — — 1,55¢
Total dilutive common share 1,104 90¢ 2,16(
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipaire 25,657 24,614 23,55¢
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.32 $ 0.21 $ 0.12

Options to purchase 276,313, 622,452 andd]1138 shares of Common Stock at a weighted averagieise price of $6.70, $6.78 and
$6.31 per share were outstanding during fiscals/eaded May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2@&pectively, but were not includ
in the computation of diluted net income per stmeause the options’ exercise price were greaderttie average market price of the
Common Stock and, therefore, the effect would hiliutive.

Cost of Sale

The Company includes in cost of sales alldbs related to the sale of products in accorlarnth generally accepted accounting
principles. These costs include the following: raaterials (including produce,
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seeds and packaging), direct labor, overhead @liroduindirect labor, depreciation, and facilityatdd costs) and shipping and shipping rel
costs.

Research and Development Expent

Costs related to both research contract€Caimdpany-funded research is included in researcldamdlopment expenses. Costs to fulfill
research contracts generally approximate the qooreling revenue. Research and development cosgsiararily comprised of salaries and
related benefits, supplies, travel expenses armubcate allocations.

Accounting for Stocl-Based Compensatio

The Company accounts for its stock optiompland its employee stock purchase plans in aceoedaith the provisions of the
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB 2Afcounting for Stock Issued to Employees.

The Company has elected to follow APB 25doaainting for its employee stock options.

Under APB 25, no compensation expense iggrazed in the Company’s financial statements urles®xercise price of the Company’s
employee stock options is less than the markeemi¢he underlying stock on the date of grant.

Pro forma information regarding net income aet income per share has been determined as @ampany had accounted for the Lar
stock option plans under the fair value methodthed andec Ag stock plan and Apio stock plans utigeminimum value method
prescribed by Statement of Financial Accountingn@ad No. 123 (SFAS No. 123). The fair value ofi@mp granted in fiscal years 2006,
2005 and 2004 reported below has been estimatbe date of grant using a Bla8choles options pricing model with the followingiglged
average assumptions:

Landec
Employee Stock Options
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended
May 28, 2006 May 29, 2005 May 30, 2004
Expected life (in years 4.5¢ 4.3¢ 6.0z
Risk-free interest rat 4.31% 3.7(% 3.0¢%
Volatility 0.52 0.57 0.57
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

The assumptions used for the Landec stodkmptor the expected life, the risk-free intenege and the dividend yield are the same
assumptions used to determine the fair value of #melec Ag and Apio options granted in the fiseadng ended May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005
and May 30, 2004. The fair value for Landec Ag Apib options was estimated using the minimum vahethod since the stock of these
subsidiaries is not publicly traded.

The BlackScholes option valuation model requires the inpitighly subjective assumptions, including the estpd stock price volatility
The change in the volatility in the fiscal yearsled May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 20Gissult of basing the volatility on
Landec’s stock price.

The weighted average estimated fair valueamidec employee stock options granted at grantrdat&et prices during the fiscal years
ended May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2084 $8.36, $3.54 and $2.89 per share, respectMelgtock options were granted
above or below grant date market prices durindiital years ended May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 aag BD, 2004. The weighted average
estimated fair value of shares granted under timelé@ Employee Stock Purchase Plan during the fisaats ended
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May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004 wa3%251.98 and $0.88 per share, respectively. Thghietl average estimated fair value
of options granted under the Landec Ag Stock Plaing the fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 was $p£¥3hare. No options were granted
under the Landec Ag Stock Plan in fiscal years 286 2005. There were no grants under the ApiokSeten during fiscal years 2006, 2005
and 2004.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, thien@sed fair value of the options is amortized xp@nse over the options’ vesting period. The
Company’s pro forma information follows (in thousianexcept per share amounts):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 28, May 29, May 30,
2006 2005 2004

Net income— as reporte! $ 8,651 $ 5,40z $ 2,90(
Deduct:

Stocl-based employee expense determined under SFA (1,160 (1,51 (967)
Pro forma net incom $ 7,491 $ 3,891 $ 1,93¢
Basic net income per she— as reportet $ 0.3F $ 0.28 $ 0.11
Diluted net income per sha— as reportet $ 0.32 $ 0.21 $ 0.12
Basic pro forma net income per sh $ 0.31 $ 0.1€ $ 0.07
Diluted pro forma net income per shi $ 0.27 $ 0.1f $ 0.0¢

The effects on pro forma disclosures of ajpghy\5FAS No. 123 are not likely to be representatif’the effects on pro forma disclosure:
future years due to the impact of granting optionfsiture periods.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen
Accounting for Sto-Based Compensatic

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statementl®3 (revised 20045hare-Based Paymenor SFAS No. 123R, which is a revision of
SFAS No. 123, and supersedes APB Opinion 25. SE28R Tequires all shagased payments to employees and directors, indugtiants o
stock options, to be recognized in the statemenpefations based on their fair values. On Aprjl2805, the SEC adopted a new rule that
amended the compliance dates for SFAS 123R sutkthéa&ompany is now allowed to adopt the new stethdffective at the beginning of
fiscal year 2007. The pro forma disclosures preslippermitted under SFAS 123 will no longer be hearaative to financial statement
recognition. As permitted by SFAS 123, the Compeunyently accounts for share-based payments tomraes using APB Opinion 25’s
intrinsic value method and, as such, recognizesongpensation cost for employee stock options.

Under SFAS 123R, the Company must deternfie@ppropriate fair value model and related assompto be used for valuing share-
based payments, the amortization method for congiemscost and the transition method to be usdldeatlate of adoption. The transition
methods include modified prospective and retroactistoption options. Under the retroactive optigmrperiods may be restated either as of
the beginning of the year of adoption or for altipds presented. The modified prospective methqdires that compensation expense be
recorded for all unvested stock options and rdstlistock at the beginning of the first quarteaddption of SFAS 123R, while the retroact
method would record compensation expense for akksted stock options and restricted stock beginwiitiy the first period restated. The
Company has decided to adopt the modified prospeantiethod. The Company is currently evaluatingréggiirements of
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SFAS 123R as well as option valuation methodologgésted to its stock option plans. The Company&iminary estimate indicates that the
effect of adopting SFAS 123R could result in afarecharge to net income of up to approximatelyd$800 in fiscal year 2007. SFAS 123R
also requires the benefits of tax deductions ireeg®f recognized compensation costs to be repastadinancing cash flow, rather than a
operating cash flow as required under currentditee. This requirement will reduce net operatiaghcflows and increase net financing cash
flows in periods after adoption.

2. Purchase of Heartland Hybrids Assets

On August 29, 2005, Landec Corporation, tgtoitis agricultural seed subsidiary, Landec Ag,,lacquired the assets of Heartland
Hybrids, Inc. (“Heartland”), which is based in DaksVIN, for $6.0 million. The consideration at dlug consisted of 152,186 shares of
Landec Common Stock valued at $960,000 and ca$B.6® million. In addition, the Company incurred3®1000 in acquisition related
expenses. The agreement also provides for futym@iats to the former owners of Heartland of upt®3% million. These payments consist
of a cash earn-out of $1.2 million based on Headtlachieving certain financial targets for fiscahys 2006 and 2007 and a $150,000 hold
back for any post closing adjustments, $100,000t6€h was earned and paid in May 2006. In July 20@6Company determined that
approximately $400,000 of the earn out was earaefidcal year 2006 and will be subsequently paid eecorded as additional goodwill in
the first quarter of fiscal year 2007. Heartlan@mgions are included in Landec’s consolidatedltesidi operations commencing August 29,
2005. The purchase price has been allocated tacingired assets and liabilities based on theitivel&air market values, subject to final
adjustments predominantly related to earn-out paysn& hese allocations are based on independamti@ls and other studies.

The following is a summary of the purchasegallocation (in thousands):

Net assets and liabilitie $ (757
Customer Bas 80C
Trademark 1,70C
Goodwill 3,137

$ 4,88(

Under Statements of Financial Accounting 8gaids No. 141Business Combinationsand No. 142Goodwill and Other Intangible Asst
(SFAS 142), goodwill and intangible assets deerdthve indefinite lives are no longer amortizeddretsubject to annual impairment tests
in accordance with the Statements. All of the gatidyenerated from the acquisition of Heartlandssets is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes. No pro forma information is deemed necgsss the operations of Heartland are immatesiabindecs annual revenues and resi
of operations.

3. License Agreement:

On December 23, 2005, Landec entered inexatusive licensing agreement with a medical deemmapany. This company paid Landec
an upfront license fee of $250,000 for the exclesights to use Landec’s Intelim®&materials technology in a specific device field
worldwide. Landec will also receive royalties oe gale of products incorporating Landec’s technploig addition, the Company received
shares of preferred stock valued at $1.31 millidviclv represents a 19.9% ownership interest in théical device company. The
$1.31 million is included in other assets in theampanying Consolidated Balance Sheet. The $1.8®mof value received under this
agreement is recorded as licensing revenue indb@mpanying Consolidated Statements of Operatioieg $ andec has no further
obligations under this agreement.

On March 14, 2006, Landec entered into atusike license and research and development agreemith Air Products and Chemicals,
Inc. Landec received an upfront licensing fee @800 at close and will
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receive up to an additional $1.6 million of licems®yments that will be paid in quarterly installrteeaf $200,000 each during years two and
three of the agreement for the exclusive rightsst Landec’s Intelimer materials technology in #pefields worldwide. In addition, Landec
received at close $100,000 for technology transfak that was performed by Landec prior to May 2806. Landec will provide research
and development support to Air Products for threarg with a mutual option for two additional yedrse license fees will be recognized as
license revenue over a three year period begindiagh 2006. In addition, in accordance with theeggnent, Landec will receive 40% of the
gross profits generated from the sale of produgtaibProducts occurring after March 14, 2007, timebrporate Landes’Intelimer material:
The Company recognized $300,000 in license revennésr this agreement during the fourth quartdisctl year 2006.

4. Licensing and Supply Agreemen

In July 2005, the Company amended the supgigement with Alcon, Inc. to change the expiratiate of the agreement from
November 1, 2012 to May 28, 2006. As a resultpflhe deferred revenue has been reclassifiedrteruliabilities in the accompanyir
Consolidated Balance Sheets. In addition, in acurd with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 10Revenue Recognition (a replacement of
SAB 101) the entire amount of the deferred revenue of $&&Bas of May 29, 2005, has been recognized agcied” revenue during fiscal
year 2006

5. Purchase and Sale of Fruit Lanc

On January 14, 2005, the Company enteredaimt@greement to purchase approximately 155 aéfegitdand from an individual for
$812,500. This amount was paid to the seller thnahg funding of an escrow account on March 235200 a separate unrelated transaction,
on January 31, 2005, the Company entered into @eawent to sell approximately 45 acres of grapé taran individual for $452,500. Upon
entering into the agreement, the Company recei280H0 in cash and promissory notes receivabl&48d4,500. The sale closed on
January 3, 2006. As of February 26, 2006, paymamthie notes receivable totaled $56,000 with theairing balance to be paid from net
profits from the sale of grapes produced from fhperty with a final payment due on December 809 if not previously paid off. Interest
accrues at the prime rate and is payable quarterBnother transaction which closed on Januar2Q@6, the Company sold to an individual
the remaining 110 acres for $936,000 in cash, hedles commissions. The Company recorded a ge&#ti@®,000 during fiscal year 2006 on
these sales.
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6. Notes and Advances Receivab

May 28, May 29,
2006 2005

Notes and advances receivable at May 28, 2006 aayd29, 2005 consisted of the following

thousands)
Note receivable due from buyer of fruit processiggipment in annual installments of $98,143 |

interest at prime rate plus 1.0%, with final paytndue October 20, 2009, secured by purchased assets

(2) $ 413 $ 507
Note receivable due from grower in annual instaliteén an amount equal to 50% of net prc

realized by borrower from the sale of grapes preducom this property, plus interest at prime

(8.00% at May 28, 2006), with final payment due &maber 31, 2009, secured by a deed of tru: 38C —
Advances to a grower under an agricultural subleasemi-annual installments of $214,500 through

October 31, 2006, to be repaid at $12,000 per Wgekithholding proceeds from crop produced on

this property(1 15€ —
Note receivable from grower, with principal anceirgst at the prime rate plus 3%, payments t

withheld from proceeds derived from crop sales, ttiueugh October 31, 2005, secured by crop — 21¢€
Note receivable due from grower in annual instaliteef $33,437 plus interest at prime rate plu&dl

with final payment due December 31, 2007, unsedgj¢ 67 117
Note receivable due from Beachside Produce (refeaety) in monthly installments of $7,043 includi

interest at 5%, with final payment due June 30628@@cured by lien and security interes 14 89
Notes receivable due from growers, with principad interest of prime rate plus 1.75%, secure:

their respective partnership interest in Apio CagILP. Payments to be deducted from distributions

until notes are paid in full, with balances due &aber 31, 2008(1 4 34
Note receivable due from buyer of fruit trademarkannual installments of $2,857 plus interes

prime rate plus 1.0%, with final payment due Octdi® 2009(2, 12 15
Note receivable due from Beachside Produce (refgaety) in monthly installments of $7,512 includi

interest at 5%, with final payment due June 3052@@cured by lien and security interes — 8
Gross notes and advances receiv. 1,04¢ 98¢€
Less allowance for doubtful not (25) (45)
Net notes and advances receive 1,021 941
Less current portion of notes and advances reciei (390 (50€)
Non-current portion of notes and advances receiv $ 631 $ 43%

(1) Represents notes and advances receivable assowitttezberating activities
(2) Represents notes and advances receivable assowitttedvesting activities

Interest income from interest bearing noteeivable for the fiscal years ended May 28, 2008y 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004 was
$89,000, $62,000 and $137,000, respectively.
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7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the falhgw(in thousands):

Years of
Useful Life May 28, 2006 May 29, 2005
Land and building 15-3C $ 11,757 $ 11,05:
Leasehold improvemen 3-20 1,044 1,177
Computer, capitalized software, machinery, equipraen autc 3-7 22,58 20,40:
Furniture and fixture 5-7 44¢ 42¢
Construction in proces 2,171 142
Gross property and equipme 38,00: 33,20:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (18,987 (15,926)
Net property and equipme $ 19,01« $ 17,27¢

Depreciation expense for the fiscal yearedriday 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004 $82 million, $3.4 million and
$3.4 million, respectively. Equipment under capliéalses, which is the security for the relateddessigation, at May 28, 2006 and May 29,
2005 was $103,000 and $103,000, respectively. &latad accumulated amortization for equipment undpital leases is $58,000 and
$37,000, respectively. Amortization related to talfied software was $661,000, $742,000 and $989@8pectively, for fiscal years ended
May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004. Thenuortized computer software costs at May 28, 20@6May 29, 2005 were
$2.1 million and $1.8 million, respectively.

8. Intangible Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfee fiscal years ended May 28, 2006, May 29, 2&td May 30, 2004 by reportable
segment, are as follows (in thousands):

Food Agricultural
Products Seed
Technology Technology Total
Balance as of May 25, 20! $ 21,36: $ 4,75¢ $26,11¢
Gooduwill disposed during the peri (129) — (129
Balance as of May 30, 20( 21,23: 4,75¢ 25,987
Gooduwill changes during the peri — —
Balance as of May 29, 20( 21,23: 4,75¢ 25,98
Goodwill acquired during the peric 3,137 3,137
Balance as of May 28, 20! $ 21,23: $ 7,891 $29,12¢
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Information regarding Landec’s other intahgiassets is as follows (in thousands):

May 28, 2006 May 29, 2005
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Unamortized Intangible Asset
Trademark $1500C $ (1,730  $13,27C  $1330( $ (1,730  $11,57(
Amortized Intangible Asset
Other 1,244 (384) 86( 434 (376) 58

$16,24¢ $ (2,119 $14,13( $13,73¢ $ (2,106 $11,62¢

Amortization expense, including amortizatafrother assets, for fiscal years 2006, 2005 arid 2¢as $0, $103,000 and $218,000 for
Food Products Technology and $8,000, $1,000 and@8$8@Xor Agricultural Seed Technology, respectivélynortization expense, including
amortization of other assets, for fiscal years driday 29, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 2004 w&8@®, $104,000 and $259,000,
respectively.

9.  Shareholders’ Equity

Holders of Common Stock are entitled to oote\per share.

Convertible Preferred Stoc
The Company has authorized two million shafgsreferred stock, and as of May 28, 2006 hasutistanding preferred stock.

Common Stock, Stock Purchase Plans and Stock Opfiens

At May 28, 2006, the Company had 4,099,53throon shares reserved for future issuance underdcastdck option plans (3,976,054)
and the employee stock purchase plan (123,477).

On October 14, 2005, following shareholderapal at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders ofGmenpany, the 2005 Stock Incentive
Plan (the “Plan”) became effective. The Plan repieihe Company’s four then existing equity pland ao shares remain available for grant
under these existing plans. Employees (includifigefs), consultants and directors of the Comparnyits subsidiaries and affiliates are
eligible to participate in the Plan.

The Plan provides for the grant of stock @msi (both nonstatutory and incentive stock optioste)ck grants, stock units and stock
appreciation rights. Awards under the Plan wilelv@enced by an agreement with the Plan participamdler the Plan, 861,038 shares of the
Company’s Common Stock (“Shares”) are availableafgards. Under the Plan no recipient may be awaadgdf the following during any
fiscal year: (i) stock options covering in exce$8@0,000 Shares; (ii) stock grants and stock wuigering in excess of 250,000 Shares in the
aggregate; or (i) stock appreciation rights cavgmore than 500,000 Shares. In addition, award®h-employee directors are
discretionary. However, a non-employee director matybe granted awards covering in excess of 303b@0es in the aggregate during any
fiscal year.

The 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (theéréators’ Plan”) provided that each person who beza non-employee director of the
Company, who has not received a previous granll, lIsb@ranted a nonstatutory stock option to puseh20,000 shares of Common Stock on
the date on which the optionee first becomes aamployee director of the Company. Thereafter, endidite of each annual meeting of the
shareholders each non-employee director shalld®ep an additional option to purchase 10,000 sh@r€ommon Stock if, on such date, he
or she shall have served on the Company’s BoaRirettors for at least six months prior

62




Table of Contents

LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

to the date of such annual meeting. The exercise pf the options is the fair market value of @@mpany’s Common Stock on the date the
options are granted. Options granted under this afa exercisable and vest upon grant.

The 1996 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan ad#ed the Board of Directors to grant non-quatifstock options to employees, including
executive officers, and outside consultants of@benpany. The exercise price of the options wasldquhe fair market value of the
Company’s Common Stock on the date the options wyemneted. Options are generally exercisable upstinggand generally vest ratably
over four years and are subject to repurchasecifoised before being vested.

The 1996 Stock Option Plan authorized therBad Directors to grant stock purchase rightseirteve stock options or non-statutory stock
options to Landec executives. The exercise pride@sttock purchase rights, incentive stock optamds non-statutory stock options may be
no less than 100% of the fair market value of Laf&al€ommon Stock on the date the options were gdar@ptions generally are exercisable
upon vesting, generally vest ratably over four geard are subject to repurchase if exercised bbefirg vested.

The New Executive Stock Option Plan authatitee Board of Directors to grant non-statutorycktoptions to officers of Landec or
officers of Apio or Landec Ag whose employment watlich of those companies began after October 29, 2he exercise price of the non-
statutory stock options may be no less than 10088&#%, for named executives and non-named exesytigspectively, of the fair market
value of Landec’s Common Stock on the date theooptivere granted. Options generally are exercisgibe vesting, generally vest ratably
over four years and are subject to repurchaseeifoised before being vested.

On April 15, 2005, the Board of Directorstioé Company approved the accelerated vesting ohatsted options previously granted to
employees under the Company’s 1996 Stock OptionsRleollectively, the “Plans”) which have an exsecprice greater than $6.25 (the
“Acceleration”) the closing price of the CompangZemmon Stock on April 15, 2005 in order to avoidagnizing an expense in future
periods once the Company adopts SFAS 123R.

Pursuant to the Acceleration, options granteder the Plans to purchase 192,026 shares @fdh®any’s common stock that would
otherwise have vested at various times within tiyeses from April 15, 2005 became fully vested.aA®sult of the Board’s decision to
approve the Acceleration, each option agreemengnlyidg options subject to the Acceleration is dedrto be amended to reflect the
Acceleration as of the effective date, but all otleems and conditions of each such option agreémemains in full force and effect. On the
date of the Acceleration no compensation expenser@arded because the fair market value of thepgaoyis Common Stock was below
exercise price of the options that were accelerated
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Activity under all Landec Stock Option Plaass follows:

QOutstanding Options

Shares Weighted
Available Number of Average
for Grant Shares Exercise Price

Balance at May 25, 20( 1,179,85! 4,054,24. $ 4.6
Additional shares reservt 400,00( —

Options grante: (161,00() 161,00( $ 5.2C
Options exercise — (152,659 $ 2.6¢
Options forfeitec 139,82: (139,829 $ 4.77
Expired in 1988 Pla (20,139 —

Balance at May 30, 20( 1,538,54! 3,922,76. $ 4.81
Options grante (625,00() 625,00( $ 6.54
Options exercise — (397,779 $ 3.8C
Options forfeitec 27,49: (27,499 $ 4.9¢
Balance at May 29, 20( 941,03¢ 4,122,49 $ 5.0¢€
Additional shares reservt 861,03t —

Options/ RSUs grante (83,33)) 83,33 $ 6.6¢
Options exercise (1,027,71) $ 5.8t
Options forfeitec 59,76: (59,767) $ 6.3€
Terminated plan (920,800 —

Balance at May 28, 20( 857,70! 3,118,34! $ 4.8t

At May 28, 2006 and May 29, 2005 options tiochase 2,934,930 and 3,636,106 shares of Lan@ecsnon Stock were vested,
respectively. No options have been exercised poibeing vested.

The Company issued 833 restricted stock (Ri®&Js) during fiscal year 2006 at a price of $5B6Bshare. The restricted stock units vest
at the end of three years. These units are includ#te table above under options granted.

The following tables summarize informatioroablLandecs options outstanding and exercisable at May 286 Z6xcluding the 833 RSl
granted in fiscal year 2006).

Options Outstanding

Weighted
Average Weighted
Contractual Average
Number of Life Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Shares (In Years) Price
$1.660- $2.950 315,83 6.64 2.2¢
$3.180- $3.375 454,60( 4.9¢€ 3.3C
$3.400- $3.800 325,17° 4.84 3.5¢
$4.094- $4.938 210,50( 3.5¢ 4.87
$5.000- $5.000 735,60( 1.5¢ 5.0C
$5.250- $6.130 425,53 5.4¢ 6.0t
$6.250- $7.625 650,27 6.32 6.84
$1.660- $7.625 3,117,511 4.5¢ 4.8t
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Options Exercisable

Weighted
Number of Average
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Exercise Price
$1.660— $2.950 271,37¢ 2.2¢
$3.180— $3.375 450,22 3.3C
$3.400— $3.800 321,11 3.5¢
$4.094— $4.938 210,50( 4.87
$5.000— $5.000 735,60( 5.0C
$5.250— $6.130 298,34t 6.0:
$6.250— $7.625 647,77 6.84
$1.660— $7.625 2,934,93 4.8:

Employee Stock Purchase Plame Company has an employee stock purchase plahygkrmits eligible employees to purchase
Common Stock, which may not exceed 10% of an eng@@ycompensation, at a price equal to the low@&566 of the fair market value of
the Company’s Common Stock at the beginning obffiering period or on the purchase date. As of M8y2006, 851,523 shares have been
issued under the Employee Stock Purchase PlarEifipdoyee Stock Purchase Plan was terminated on1J2@06.

Landec Ag Stock Platinder the 1996 Landec Ag Stock Plan, the Boardioddiors of Landec Ag could grant stock purchaghbts,
incentive stock options or non-statutory stock amsito employees and outside consultants. Theisggudce of the stock purchase rights,
incentive stock options and non-statutory stockomst may be no less than 85%, 100% and 85%, raéeelctof the fair market value of
Landec Ag’s common stock as determined by Landes Bgard of Directors. 2,000,000 shares were aighdrto be issued under this plan.
Options generally are exercisable upon vestinggamerally vest ratably over four years and areestihp repurchase if exercised before
being vested. The Landec Ag Stock Plan terminatedamuary 1, 2006.
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The following table summarizes activity untlee Landec Ag Stock Option.

QOutstanding Options

Weighted
Average
Options Number of Exercise
Available Shares Price
Balance at May 25, 20( 228,91¢ 1,445,00! $ 0.41
Options grante: (10,000 10,00( $ 1.5C
Options exercise — — —
Options forfeitec 195,15( (195,15() $ 0.5C
Balance at May 30, 20( 414,06¢ 1,259,85! $ 0.41
Options grante: — — —
Options exercise — (503,89) $ 0.1C
Options forfeitec 165,85! (165,859 $ 1.0C
Balance at May 29, 20( 579,92: 590,10( $ 0.71
Options grante: — — —
Options exercise — — —
Options forfeitec 52,31 (52,319 $ 0.94
Expired in Plar (632,236 —
Balance at May 28, 20( — 537,78 $ 0.6¢

At May 28, 2006, options to purchase 532 31&res with an average exercise price of $0.68mme of Landec Ag'common stock we
vested. For the options outstanding at May 28, 208800 options were granted with an exerciseepfc$0.10, 127,900 options were
granted with an exercise price of $0.20 and 335y8&% granted with an exercise price of $1.00. fglay 28, 2006, the Company has
537,787 common shares reserved for future issuamder the Landec Ag stock option plan.

Apio Stock Planln connection with the acquisition of Apio, the Bdaf Directors of Landec authorized the establishtrof the 1999
Apio Stock Option Plan (1999 Plan”). Under the @9an, the Board of Directors of Apio may grargdntive stock options or nastatutory
stock options to employees and outside consult@hts.exercise price of the incentive stock optiangd nonstatutory stock options may be
less than 100% and 85%, respectively, of the fairket value of Apio’s common stock as determined\pip’s Board of Directors. Five
million shares were authorized to be issued undsmian. Options were exercisable upon vestinggamrally vested ratably over four years
and were subject to repurchase if exercised béfeireg vested. As of May 28, 2006, options for twiiom shares had been granted at an
exercise price of $2.10 per share.

In May 2000, the 1999 Plan was terminatedefilsting grants remain outstanding, and no fugremts will be made from the plan.
Concurrently, the 2000 Apio Stock Option Plan (“@@an”) was authorized by Apio’s Board of Diregowhich authorized the issuance of
two million shares under the same terms and camditas the 1999 Plan. As of May 28, 2006, option268,695 shares are outstanding
under the 2000 Plan at an exercise price of $2etGlpare.
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The following table summarizes activity untlee Apio Stock Option Plan.

QOutstanding Options

Weighted
Average
Options Number of Exercise
Available Shares Price
Balance at May 25, 20( 1,483,79: 2,515,62! $ 2.1C
Options grante: — — —
Options exercise — (49,16¢) $ 2.1C
Options forfeitec 79,68( (79,680 $ 2.1C
Balance at May 30, 20( 1,563,47. 2,386,77! $ 2.1C
Options grante: — — —
Options exercise — — —
Options forfeitec 59,457 (59,459 $ 2.1C
Balance at May 29, 20( 1,622,92! 2,327,32 $ 2.1C
Options grante: — — —
Options exercise — (50,15¥) $ 2.1C
Options forfeitec 8,46¢ (8,469) $ 2.1C
Balance at May 29, 20( 1,631,39:i 2,268,69! $ 2.1C

At May 28, 2006, options to purchase 2,268 §i%ares of Apio common stock were vested. As of R 2006, the Company has
3,900,093 common shares reserved for future isguamder the Apio stock option plans.

10. Debt
Revolving deb

On September 1, 2004, Apio entered into Wifklls Fargo Bank N.A. (“Wells Fargo”) a new $10 lwih revolving line of credit that
expires on August 31, 2006, a 12-month, $4.8 mmileguipment line of credit, and a 36-month, $1.Bioni term note for equipment
purchased under the equipment line of credit witll§argo Business Credit (collectively the “Loagreement”). At May 29, 2005, no
amounts were outstanding under the revolving lineredit or the equipment line of credit.

On November 1, 2005, Apio amended its revg\line of credit with Wells Fargo Bank N.A. thahsvscheduled to expire on August 31,
2006. The line was reduced from $10.0 million to0$million and outstanding amounts under the liheredit now bear interest at either the
prime rate less .25% or the LIBOR adjustable r&ie fp.75% (6.84% at May 28, 2006). The Loan Agregngentains certain restrictive
covenants, which require Apio to meet certain foiahtests, including minimum levels of net incomeximum leverage ratio, minimum net
worth and maximum capital expenditures. Landecgiedged substantially all of the assets of Apigdoure the lines with Wells Fargo. At
May 28, 2006 and May 29, 2005, no amounts wergauding under the revolving line of credit or tlirugment line of credit.

Landec Ag has a revolving line of credit whadlows for borrowings of up to $7.5 million, basen Landec Ag’s inventory levels. The
interest rate on the revolving line of credit ie fhrime rate (8.00% at May 28, 2006). Landec hadg#d substantially all of the assets of
Landec Ag to secure the line of credit. At May 2806 and May 29, 2005, no amounts were outstandider this revolving line of credit.
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Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following {frousands):

May 28, May 29,
2006 2005
Note payable of Apio to a commercial finance compalue in monthly installments of $12,7
including variable interest currently at 7.23% wifitial payment due December 20 $ 1,33¢ $ 1,40(C
Note payable of Apio to a bank; due in monthly atistents of $33,333 including interest at 4.96%h
final payment due August 20( — 934
Note payable of Apio to a bank; due in monthly atistents of $7,739 including variable inter
currently at 7.76% with final payment due Decenb@t5 63C 67%
Capitalized lease obligations in monthly installtseof $1,979 with an interest rate of 5.90% withafi
payment due August 20( 50 79
2,01¢ 3,08¢
Less current portio (2,019 (548
$ — 8 254

At May 28, 2006, all of the debt is classifigs current as the Company repaid in June 2006ates payable balances due to escalating
interest rates on the debt.

The term debt and revolving note agreememtsains various financial covenants including mimimfixed coverage ratio, minimum
current ratio, minimum adjusted net worth and maximeverage ratios.

Landec has pledged substantially all of Apiahd Landec Ag’s assets to secure their term debt.

11. Income Taxes

The Company recorded an income tax provibesed on the federal alternative minimum tax rathé amount of $11,000 for the fiscal
year ended May 28, 2006, $6,000 for the fiscal wealed May 29, 2005 and $50,000 for the fiscal gealed May 30, 2004. These amot
are included in other (expense)/income in the agaoming Consolidated Statements of Income.

The actual provision for income taxes diffmn the statutory U.S. federal income tax ratéolews (in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 28, 2006 May 29, 2005 May 30, 2004
Provision at U.S. statutory rate of 3¢ $ 2,94¢ $ 1,83¢ $ 1,00z
State income taxes, net of federal ber 50€ 31t 17z
Change in valuation allowan (3,789 (2,017 (709
Tax credit carryforward 37¢ (200 (39€)
Other (32) 69 (26)
Total $ 11 $ 6 $ 50

As of May 28, 2006, the Company had fedenal state net operating loss carryforwards of agprately $42.0 million and $9.7 million,
respectively. These losses expire in differentqurithrough 2025, if not utilized. The Company dlad federal and state tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $1.3 million and Znillion, respectively. The research and develapntex credit carryforwards expire in
different periods
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through 2026 for federal purposes and have an itelincarryforward period for state purposes. Tleepstate tax credit carryforwards expire
in different periods through fiscal year 2013.

Utilization of the net operating losses aretlis may be subject to a substantial annualdioih due to the ownership change limitations
provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. atraual limitation may result in the expiration &ftoperating losses and credits before
utilization.

Significant components of the Company’s defiétax assets are as follows (in thousands):

May 28, May 29,

Deferred Tax Assets: 2006 2005

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 14,90( $ 16,70(

Research and AMT credit carryforwai 2,10¢ 2,30C

Capitalized research and developnr 10C 10C

Other— net (4,700 (3,200
Net deferred tax asse 12,40( 15,90(
Valuation allowanct (12,400) (15,900
Net deferred tax asse $ — $ —

Included in the other net deferred tax asseapproximately $5.8 million of deferred tax lities that primarily relate to book/tax basis
differences in fixed assets and intangibles.

Due to the Company’s limited tax basis eagsihistory, the net deferred tax asset has bendfiset by a valuation allowance. The
change in the valuation allowance was a decrea$8.6fmillion, an increase of $700,000 and a deseredi $1.3 million for the fiscal years
ended May 28, 2006, May 29, 2005 and May 30, 268hectively. Approximately $840,000 of the valaatallowance for deferred tax
assets as of May 28, 2006 relates to benefitsooksiption deductions which, when recognized, balallocated directly to contributed
capital.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Lease

Landec leases facilities and equipment ungerating lease agreements with various terms anditions, which expire at various dates
through 2010. The approximate future minimum lgzegments under these operating leases, excludingaiad leases, at May 28, 2006 are
as follows (in thousands):

Amount
FY2007 $ 85€
FY2008 58¢
FY2009 332
FY2010 95
FY2011 3
$ 1,86¢

Rent expense for operating leases, includingth to month arrangements was $1.4 million ferftacal year ended May 28, 2006,
$1.6 million for the fiscal year ended May 29, 2@0% $1.4 million for the fiscal year ended May 3004.
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Land Leases

Landec, through its Apio subsidiary, alsesk=safarmland under various non-cancelable leaggdraxthrough October 2006. Landec
subleases substantially all of the farmland to gn®wn an annual basis. The subleases are genawaliyancelable and expire through
October 2006. The approximate future minimum leasessublease amounts receivable under farmlasddest May 28, 2006 are $207,000
for fiscal year 2007.

Rent income for land leases net of subleastsyincluding month to month arrangements was0B®6for the fiscal year ended May 28,
2006. Rent expense for land leases net of subteas® including month to month arrangements wads&® for the fiscal year ended
May 29, 2005 and $16,000 for the fiscal year eridagt 30, 2004.

Employment Agreement

Landec has entered into employment agreemeétitsertain key employees. These agreements ¢edor these employees to receive
incentive bonuses based on the financial performaifcertain divisions in addition to their annbabke salaries. The accrued incentive
bonuses amounted to $506,000 at May 28, 2006 a6, $20 at May 29, 2005.

Licensing Agreemen

In fiscal year 2001, the Company entered amt@greement for the exclusive worldwide rightmtirket grapes under certain brand nai
Under the terms of the amended agreement (amendetal year 2004), the Company is obligated t&er@nnual payments of $100,000 for
fiscal years 2005 through 2012.

Purchase Commitment

At May 28, 2006, the Company was committegucchase $986,000 of produce during fiscal ye@720 accordance with contractual
terms. Payments of $704,000 were made in fiscal 3@@6 under this arrangement.

13. Employee Savings and Investment Plans
The Company sponsors a 401(k) plan whiclvadlable to substantially all of the Company’s eayges.

Landec’s Corporate Plan, which is availablalt Landec employees (“Landec Plan”), allows ipgyaints to contribute from 1% to 50% of
their salaries, up to the Internal Revenue Serf{fR€) limitation into designated investment funBeginning in fiscal year 2001, the
Company amended the plan so that it contributeenaount equal to 50% of the participants’ contribaitup to 3% of the participants’ salary.
In May 2003, the Company again amended the plamatce the Company’s matching contribution to thena behalf of participants
voluntary, and to make employees participatiorhaplan voluntary. Participants are at all timdlyfuested in their contributions. The
Company'’s contribution vests over a four-year ppkaba rate of 25% per year. The Company retamsigfint, by action of the Board of
Directors, to amend, modify, or terminate the plkaor. the fiscal years ended May 28, 2006, May 2852and May 30, 2004, the Company
contributed $335,000, $294,000 and $287,0@3pectively, to the Landec Plan.
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14. Business Segment Reportin

Landec operates in two business segment§&dbe Products Technology segment and the Agrialleeed Technology segment. The
Food Products Technology segment markets and paiolisice and specialty packaged fresh-cut veget#idesncorporate the Intelimer
packaging technology for the fresh-cut and whotelpce industry through its Apio subsidiary. The iBgltural Seed Technology segment
markets and distributes hybrid seed corn to thmifag industry and is selling seed coatings usingdes’s proprietary Intelimer polymers
through Landec Ag and other seed companies. Thedtate and Other segment includes the operations thhe Company’s Technology
Licensing/ Research and Development business apdrete operating expenses. The Food Products dkxdyand Agricultural Seed
Technology segments include charges for corposatéces allocated from the Corporate and Other seginCorporate and Other amounts
include non-core operating activities, corporaterafing costs and net interest expense. Virtudlllyfahe Company’s international sales are
to Asia. Operations and identifiable assets byrirss segment consisted of the following (in thodsgn

Food Agricultural
Products Seed Corporate
Technology Technology and Other Total

Fiscal Year Ended May 28, 20!

Net sales $ 194,81t $ 34,09¢ $ 3,041 $231,95:
International sale $ 50,337 $ — $ — $ 50,33}
Gross profit $ 26,85 $ 10,43¢ $ 2,752 $ 40,04«
Net income (loss $ 9,12¢ $ (1,387) $ 91C $ 8,651
Identifiable asset $ 83,53 $ 32,61 $ 2,881 $119,02¢
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,572 $ 53¢ $ 98 $ 3,20:
Capital expenditure $ 4,26: $ 43¢ $ 44 $ 4,74¢€
Interest incom: $ 502 $ 75 $ 56 $ 632
Interest expens $ 30C $ 152 $ — $ 452
Income tax expense (benet $ — $ — $ — $ —
Fiscal Year Ended May 29, 20

Net sales $ 179,15 $ 25,64¢ $ 42°¢ $ 205,23
International sale $ 48,77 $ — $ — $ 48,77:
Gross profi $ 22,19 $ 9,44¢ $ 32¢ $ 31,97:
Net income (loss $ 5,621 $ (31€) $ 97 $ 5,407
Identifiable asset $ 72,51 $ 22,71 $ 4,85: $100,07!
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,89( $ 472 $ 10E $ 3,46
Capital expenditure $ 3,13¢ $ 42€ $ 98 $ 3,65¢
Interest incomi $ 13C $ 57 $ 27 $ 214
Interest expens $ 30E $ 10¢ $ — $ 414
Income tax expense (benet $ — $ — $ — $ —
Seven Months Ended May 30, 2C

Net sales $ 167,88t $ 23,64 $ 56& $192,09.
International sale $  48,67¢ $ — $ — $ 48,67¢
Gross profit $ 20,23: $ 9,08¢ $ 474 $ 29,79
Net income (loss $ 3,232 $ (247 $ (92) $ 2,90C
Identifiable asset $  72,08¢ $ 19,72: $ 1,197 $ 93,00%
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 3,11(C $ 484 $ 111 $ 3,70¢
Capital expenditure $ 2,991 $ 32C $ 76 $ 3,39
Interest incom: $ 14¢ $ 9 $ 7 $ 164
Interest expens $ 682 $ 12¢ $ — $ 811
Income tax expense (benet $ — $ — $ — $ —
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15.  Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information (unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unauditederly results of operations for fiscal years@@005 and 2004 (in thousands, except for
per share amounts):

FY 2006 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter FY 2006
Revenue! $ 49,70t $ 53,71: $ 57,24¢ $ 71,28 $231,95:
Gross profit $ 6,59( $ 7,08¢ $ 11,41t $ 14,95( $ 40,04«
Net income (loss $ (527) $ (1,037) $ 3,51« $ 6,69t $ 8,651
Net income/(loss) per basic sh: $ 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.1« $ 0.27 $ 0.3t
Net income/(loss) per diluted sh: $ 0.0 % 0.0 $ 0.1: $ 0.2¢ $ 0.32
FY 2005 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter FY 2005
Revenue: $ 46,85¢ $ 50,67 $ 51,53: $ 56,17: $205,23(
Gross profit $ 5,741 $ 5,991 $ 9,24z $ 10,99: $ 31,97:
Net income (loss $ (692 $ (80¢) $ 2,29: $ 4,60¢ $ 5,402
Net income/(loss) per basic shi $ (0.09) $ (0.09) $ 0.1c $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2¢
Net income/(loss) per diluted she $ (0.09) $ (0.09) $ 0.0¢ $ 0.17 $ 021
FY 2004 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter FY 2004
Revenue: $ 41,80¢ $ 43,26¢ $ 48,587 $ 58,43’ $192,09:
Gross profit $ 6,082 $ 5,03( $ 7,44 $ 11,23: $ 29,79:
Net income (loss $ 629 % (158) % 724 $ 4,38: $ 2,90C
Net income/(loss) per basic sh: $ (0.09 % (0.0 % 0.02 $ 0.2C $ 0.11
Net income/(loss) per diluted she $ (0.09) $ (0.0¢) $ 0.0z $ 0.17 $ 0.1z
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Exhibit
Number: Exhibit Title
2.4 Stock Purchase Agreement between The Lubrizol Gatipm and the Registrant dated as of October @d22
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K datetb@er 24,
2002.
25 Purchase Agreement between the Registrant andpih LLC and the Growers listed therein, dateofas
July 3, 2003, incorporated herein by referencexoilit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report omr@-K datec
July 3, 2003
31 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant, incaedrherein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Biegint's
Current Report on Formr-K dated May 19, 200¢
32 Ninth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatid Registrant, incorporated herein by referenx
Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Stagatron Form S-1 (File No. 33-80723) declared eiifecbn
February 12, 199¢
33 Certificate of Determination of Series A Preferf&tdck, incorporated herein by reference to Ex!8t8tto the
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1€
34 Certificate of Determination of Series B Prefer&tdck, incorporated herein by reference to ExfiHtitto the
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K dated October 25, 200
101 Form of Indemnification Agreement, incorporateddierby reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registméthnual
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended May 29, 20I
10.3* 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amendedpranaf Subscription Agreement, incorporated hefsin
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s ArrR@port on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endeddber 31,
1996.
10.5* Form of Option Agreement for 1995 Directors’ St@ggtion Plan, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registre’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1€
10.6 Industrial Real Estate Lease dated March 1, 1988d®n the Registrant and Wayne R. Brown & Bibbitevin,
Trustees of the Wayne R. Brown & Bibbits Brown lngiTrust dated December 30, 1987, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Regigon Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33-80723)lared
effective on February 12, 19¢
10.15* 1996 Landec Ag Stock Option Plan and form of Op#gmeements, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 to the Registre’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1€
10.16* Form of Option Agreement for the 1996 Non-ExecuBteck Option Plan, as amended, incorporated hésein
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s AalriReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endedober 31,
1996.
10.17* 1996 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan, incated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 29, 20
10.18* Form of Option Agreement for 1996 Amended and Redt&tock Option Plan, incorporated herein by mfee
to Exhibit 10.17 to the Registr¢ s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 19
10.25* Stock Option Agreement between the Registrant antddias Tompkins dated as of November 29, 1999,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 102k Registrant’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fuoe fiscal
year ended October 31, 19¢
10.26* 1999 Apio, Inc. Stock Option Plan and form of Optiégreement, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.26 to the Registre’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1€
10.28* 2000 Apio, Inc. Stock Option Plan and form of Optibgreement, incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.28 to the Registre’s Annual Report on Form -K filed for the fiscal year ended October 29, 2C
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10.29 Credit Agreement between Landec Ag, Inc. and Oltiddal Bank dated as of June 5, 2000, as amended,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10@2¢he Registrant’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fuoe fiscal
year ended October 29, 20(

10.30* New Executive Stock Option Plan, incorporated hebsi reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Regisf's Annual
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended October 29, 2C

10.35* 1996 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan, as amendwdrporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3théo
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended October 28, 2C

10.45* Employment Agreement between the Registrant angt Gabteele effective as of January 1, 2006, inc@ted
herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Regig's Current Report on Forn-K dated December 15, 20(C

10.46 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of Ma 2003, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.46 to the Registre’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 27, 20

10.47 Non-Competition Agreement between the Registrant and Epesh LLC and the Growers listed therein, das
of July 3, 2003, incorporated herein by referemcExhibit 2.2 to the Registrant’s Current Reportramm 8-K
dated July 3, 200:

10.48 Supply Agreement between the Registrant and ApishiFtLC and the Growers listed therein, dated akilyf 3,
2003, incorporated herein by reference to Exhildtta the Registrant’s Current Report on Forid 8ated July 2
2003.

10.53* 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended,rpm@ted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.53 & th
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 25, 20

10.54+ 2007 Cash Bonus Pla

10.55+ Director Compensation Schedu

10.56 Form of Notice regarding acceleration of stock @aptvesting , incorporated herein by reference toiltik10.56
to the Registra’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended May 29, 20!

10.59 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and apitg Inc. as Borrower, and Wells Fargo Bank, Naéib
Association, dated as of November 1, 2005, incateal herein by reference to Exhibit 10.57 to thgiReant's
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended November 27, 2!

10.60 Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as obBet 7, 2004, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.58 to the Registre’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended November 27, 2!

10.61 Credit Agreement dated as of October 7, 2005, pamated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.59 to the
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended November 27, 2!

10.63+# License and research and development agreemengdretive Registrant and Air Products and Chemiael, |
dated March 14, 2001

10.64 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated hereindfgrence to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s CurfReport on
Form ¢-K dated October 14, 200

10.65 Form of Stock Grant Agreement for 2005 Stock InisenPlan, incorporated herein by reference to BExBi®.2 tc
the Registrar's Current Report on Forn-K dated October 14, 200

10.66+ Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock OptAgreement for 2005 Stock Incentive P

10.67+ Form of Stock Unit Agreement for 2005 Stock InceatPlan.

10.68 Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement for 2@t6ck Incentive Plan incorporated herein by refeeeto
Exhibit 99.5 to the Registre’s Current Report on Forn-K dated October 14, 200
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Subsidiary State of Incorporation
Landec Ag, Inc. Delaware

Apio, Inc. Delaware

23.1+ Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

24.1+ Power of Attorney— See page 7¢

311+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb8ne-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002

* Represents a management contract or compensatoryphrrangement required to be filed as an extulthis report pursuant to item 1
of Form 10-K.

+ Filed herewith

# Confidential treatment requested as to certaitigns. The term “confidential treatment” and thark “*” as used throughout the
indicated Exhibit means that material has beentethénd separately filed with the SE
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,Rlegistrant has duly caused this Report on

Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the unideesd, thereunto duly authorized, in the City ofiltePark, State of California, on July 27,
2006.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /sl Gregory S. Skinng

Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President of Finance and Administration anie€Rinancial Officel

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persn whose signature appears below hereby constitutasd appoints
Gary T. Steele and Gregory S. Skinner, and each tfiem, as his attorney-in fact, with full power of substitution, for him in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments to thReport on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with ehxibits thereto and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securiés and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying andooifirming our signatures as
they may be signed by our said attorney to any anall amendments to said Report on Form 10-K.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Examnge Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has baesigned by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicate

Signature Title Date
/sl Gary T. Steele President and Chief Executive Officer and Dire July 27, 2006
Gary T. Steels (Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Gregory S. Skinner
Gregory S. Skinner

Vice President of Finance and Administration and  July 27, 2006
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

/sl Nicholas Tompkins Chief Executive Officer of Apio, Inc., Senior Vice July 27, 2006

Nicholas Tompkin:

President and Director

/sl Robert Tobin Director July 27, 2006
Robert Tobir

/sl Duke Bristow Director July 27, 2006
Duke Bristow

/sl Frederick Frank Director July 27, 2006

Frederick Fran}
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Signature Title Date
/sl Stephen E. Halprin Director July 27, 2006
Stephen E. Halpri
/s/ Richard S. Schneider Director July 27, 2006
Richard S. Schneid:
/sl Kenneth E. Jones Director July 27, 2006

Kenneth E. Jone
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Exhibit 10.5¢

2007 Cash Bonus Plan

On June 15, 2006, the Board of Directors {(Bward”) of Landec Corporation (the “Company”) apped the performance criteria and
structure for cash bonuses that may be awardeahpdogees of the Company and its subsidiaries fer2B07 fiscal year (the “Plan”). These
arrangements are not contained in a formal wriplan, but a summary of the manner in which castubes will be determined for fiscal year
2007 is set forth below.

Employees of the Company and its subsidianiag earn cash bonuses based upon the achievensaygarfite income and revenue targets
for the Company, Apio, Inc. and Landec Ag, Inc. Bses are calculated by multiplying a percentageach participant’s base salary by the
percentage of the aggregate performance goalathattained. The percentage of base salary usiteéomine each participant’s cash bonus
payment ranges from 40% to 100% of base salargXecutive officers (up to 198% for Nick Tompkind)i€f Executive Officer of Apio) and
from 10% to 79% for other employees. Participantsinattain a minimum percentage of the aggregaferpeance goals to receive a bonus
under the Plan. Also, participants must be empldyethe Company or one of its subsidiaries atithe that bonuses are paid. Bonus
payments, if any, will be made in single lump swsltpayments as soon as practicable after theféhd Gompany’s fiscal year.






Exhibit 10.5¢

LANDEC CORPORATION
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

Non-employee Directors (the “Directors”) will receittee annual retainers, meeting fees, meeting exparstequity-based awards described
below as compensation for serving as a membereoBtard of Directors.

Annual Retainers
Board Retaine- Each Director will receive an annual board regaiof $20,000 to be paid in quarterly installmenift$5,000.

Compensation Committee Chairman Retain&aeh Director who serves as the Chairman of thegemsation Committee will receive an
annual retainer of $5,000.

Audit Committee Retain— Each Director who serves on the Audit Committdereceive an annual retainer of $10,000, with @teirman
receiving an annual retainer of $15,000.

Lead Independent Director Retair— Each Director who serves as the Lead Indeperidiesttor of the non-employee executive sessions of
the Board shall receive an annual retainer of $iM,0

Meeting Fees

Each Director will receive $1,000 for each reguieeting, adjourned regular meeting or special mgeif the Board attended in person by
the Director ($500 if attended by phone), $500efach regular meeting, adjourned regular meetirgpecial meeting of a Committee atten
in person by the Director as a member of the Cotemitand $1,000 for each shareholder meeting aiteby the Director.

Meeting Expenses

Reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred byecioir to attend Board meetings, Committee meetinghareholder meetings in his or her
capacity as a Director will be reimbursed.

Equity Compensation Awards

On June 15, 2006, Directors were granted optiomsitohase 5,000 shares of the Company’s Commork &tat 1,667 restricted stock units
pursuant to the terms of the Company’s 2005 Stockritive Plan. The stock options are fully vested exercisable on the date of grant and
have an exercise price equal to the fair marketevaf the Common Stock on the date of grant. Thgicted stock units will vest on the first
anniversary of the grant date.






Exhibit 10.63

LICENSE AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This License and Research and Developmentehgeat (this “ Agreemeri) is entered into as of March 14, 2006 (the “Effee Date”),
by and between LANDEC CORPORATION, a Californiammation (together with its Affiliates referredherein as “ Lande®, and AIR
PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS, INC., an entity organizeddaexisting under the laws of Delaware (togethéh s Affiliates referred to
herein as “ APD). APD and Landec are sometimes referred to henglividually as a “ Party and collectively as the “ Partie’s

Background

Landec has certain proprietary know-how atinelogy relating to certain polymer materials. A@&velops, manufactures and
distributes, among other things, gases and spgciaétmicals to diversified markets and geograpfiibs. Parties desire that Landec and APD
collaborate using Landec’s know-how and technolmggevelop certain personal care, latent catatysfning and nonwoven products using
Landec’s know-how and technology and to licens@R® certain of that know-how and technology, forBAB® exploit, as more fully
described herein.

The Parties agree as follows:

Agreement

1. Certain Definitions. For the purposes @ thgreement, the capitalized words and phrasdaeet&in the preamble of this Agreement
have the respective meanings set forth thereinttanébllowing capitalized words and phrases h&aeemieanings ascribed to them below:

1.1 “ Adhesives shall mean a viscoelastic material that remaesranently tacky and will adhere to a wide var@tgolid surfaces.

1.2 “ Affiliate ” shall mean with respect to a party: (i) any compat least fifty percent (50%) of whose issued amithg capital is owned
or controlled, directly or indirectly, by said paror (i) any company which owns or controls, ditg or indirectly, at least fifty percent (50¢
of the issued and voting capital of said partyjiigrany company owned or controlled, directlyindirectly, to the extent of at least fifty
percent (50%) of the issued and voting capitalaiy of the foregoing.

1.3 “Ag Field” shall mean: (a) the treatmeartating, sale and/or use of seeds or agricultumdyxcts including without limitation corn,
soybean, cotton and the like for farming, ornamlesntd/or other uses, (b) tubers, seeds and/or gtaffs, (c) all other crops, and (d) all other
fruits, vegetables, flowers and the like.

1.4 “ APD Fields shall mean the Exclusive Fields together with Resserved Fields provided, however, that the AREdBishall exclude
the Excluded Fields.
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1.5 “ APD Improvementsshall only mean Improvements to the Patent Pritgseor the Existing Know-How created solely by APD
without any assistance or involvement by LandedARprovements shall exclude Improvements by thiodiriduals without knowledge of
any of the Existing Know-How or any portion of theelimer Instruction.

1.6 “ APD IP" shall mean (i) the APD Improvements and (ii) feént Use Improvements in the APD Fields.
1.7 “ BuyOut Option” shall have the meaning given to it in Section. 6.5

1.8 “ Commercializetior “ Commercialize’ shall mean that Net Sales of Products in a palgicReserved Field have exceeded one
hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) or more ingivgn calendar year.

1.9 “ Direct Profits shall mean Net Sales arising out of sale or afqion of Products (or *** products as providedSections 4 and 6.2)
minus the following: (a) container purchase codisfreight and warehouse costs; (c) raw mateonats; (d) variable manufacturing costs
including additional toll charges for third partyopessors; (e) fixed manufacturing costs (includiegreciation) allocated in the same manner
that APD allocates such fixed manufacturing coststé general accounting purposes and (f) suplphirccosts that are directly related to the
manufacture and internal product management ofuRtedas sourced from third party processors dioimse production.

1.10 “ Excluded Fieldsshall mean Pharmaceuticals, the Food Field, thexhnd Adhesives.

1.11 “ Exclusive Field$shall mean products for: (a) personal care, whighnot regulated by the FDA, including withomiliation i)
cosmaceutical products (which may be regulatedhby=DA), ii) sunscreen products which are regulatethe FDA and iii) non-pharma
transdermal even if applied via an adhesive sy3t@mllectively the “Personal Care Field”), (b) Theset Latent Catalysts, (¢) household,
industrial and institutional cleaning, excludingdt finishes (e.g. and not by way of limitation)yroers and polymer-based formulations used
in the manufacture of hard surface cleaners, eqeiipiieaning, vehicle cleaning, laundry cleanidgacing for food & beverage institution
and (d) disposable nonwovens (e.g., and not byofiéignitation, polymers and polymer-based formwdas used in the manufacture of
disposables such as paper towels, industrial wipegjcal gowns, diapers, similar hygiene produatsong other disposable nonwoven
products).

1.12 “ Existing KnowHow " shall mean all information relating to the Landatelimer Materials which is necessary or usefutie
manufacture, use or sale of the Products, whictheitffective Date Landec owns or is free to lieettsAPD and shall include, but not be
limited to, the Intelimer Instruction. For the agtance of doubt, the Existing Know-How shall consétat least part of the Proprietary
Information of Landec or Landec’s licensor(s) if/an

1.13 “ Food Field shall include, without limitation, the followinghe packaging, including bulk, pallet and contaip@ckaging, of any
food related products including without limitatifresh produce, such as fruits and vegetables, flaweeat, fish and the like.

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdhl treatment has been requested
with respect to the omitted portior
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1.14 “ Governmental Authorifyshall mean any government or agency, instrumiwptait other subdivision thereof, including couatsd
tribunals, and the states, provinces and otherigigimhs thereof.

1.15 “ Improvementsshall mean all improvements to the Patent Pragedr the Existing Know-How developed by eithertiPa
hereunder (solely or jointly by the Parties or,jeabto Section 2.5, jointly with third parties)cinding but not limited to inventions, patents,
know-how, trade secrets and confidential informationalutis recorded, developed, conceived of, creatdébameduced to practice during 1
Term.

1.16 “ Infringement Noticéshall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.this Agreement.

1.17 “ Intelimer Instructiof shall have the meaning given to it in Exhibit B.

1.18 “ Joint Use Improvemeritshall mean Improvements created jointly by thetiBa which result in one or more patent appligagior
issued patents covering a field of use (as opptesagrocess or composition of matter).

1.19 “ Landec Fiell shall mean all fields other than the APD Fields.

1.20 “ Landec Improvemeritshall mean Improvements: (i) created solely bydec without any assistance or involvement by APD;
(i) created jointly by APD and Landec or otherwisgng the resources of both Parties, (iii) credgdandec and a third party provided that
such improvements are licensable to APD, or (iguired, or licensed by Landec and sublicensabheRD.

1.21 “ Landec IP shall mean the Licensed Technology and the Jdg® Improvements in the Landec Field.

1.22 “ Landec Intelimer Materidlshall mean any of Landec’s proprietary tempemtt@sponsive materials exhibiting a pre-defined
thermal transition.

1.23 “ Laws' shall mean laws, statutes, ordinances, rulesjla¢igns, judgments or decrees administered, prgatetl or issued by any
Governmental Authority.

1.24 “ Licensed Technologyshall mean the Patent Properties, the ExistingwdtHow and any Landec Improvements.

1.25 “ Licensed Trademarkshall mean the mark “INTELIMER?”, including all géstered and common law rights thereto and goodwill
associated therewith, and any foreign equivalem¢presentation thereof where Landec has the rigltach mark. Exhibit C sets forth the
territories in which the mark is currently register

1.26 “ Minimum Paymenfsshall have the meaning given to it in Section. 6.2

-3-




1.27 “ Net Sales shall mean all money received from sales of pradlodhus amounts paid to unaffiliated third par{iistributors, agen
and the like) for sales costs directly relatech gale of such products.

1.28 “ Patent Propertiéshall mean the patents and patent applicatiatiedion Exhibit A covering the Landec Intelimer bftéls, the
inventions described and claimed therein, and anyimuations, continuations-in-parts, divisionaégxamination certificates, reissuances,
renewals or extensions thereof or related by aipriolaim therewith, and any and all foreign pagmtility models (i.e., petty patents),
registrations and patent applications correspontfiageto (and any extension, reissue, reexaminatisubstitute of any of the foregoing,
which will be automatically incorporated in and addo this Agreement and shall periodically be addeExhibit A).

1.29 “ Persof shall mean an individual or entity of any kindcluding a Governmental Authority.
1.30 “ Personal Care Fi€lghall have the meaning given to it in Sectionl1.1

1.31 “ Pharmaceuticdlshall mean therapeutics requiring FDA approval.

1.32 “ Product shall mean a product for use in the APD Fieldsh@t is developed using the Licensed Technolaggndmprovement;
(i) which comprises any of the Landec Intelimertitéals, or (iii) that is covered by any of the &#tProperties.

1.33 “ Proprietary Informaticghof a disclosing Party disclosed to the receivitagty hereunder shall mean any confidential infaioma
relating to the disclosing Party’s business ant##fohnology and which is labeled as confidentigbrmprietary or identified in writing as
confidential or proprietary.

1.34 “ Proprietary Rightsshall mean all intellectual property rights whethegistrable or not of any sort anywhere in tloeley
1.35 “ R&D Period shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

1.36 “ Reserved Fieldsshall initially mean the fields of (i) architecl and industrial coatings (excluding powder augd) and
(i) electronics (e.g. processing materials for emductor component manufacturing, battery matedaflat panel displays); or such other
fields as replace these initial Reserved Fieldscitordance with Section 5.

1.37 “ Ternt shall have the meaning given to it in Section110.

1.38 “ Thermoset Latent Catalystshall mean Landec Intelimer Materials used aalgats, effectors, activators, cross-linkers, atdrs
and/or precursors thereof to enhance or inhibigmetization.

1.39 “ Work Plari shall mean the work plan that is attached heast&xhibit B, which is incorporated by referenceeig as amended,
modified, extended or replaced upon mutual agreéwfghe Parties.
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1.40 “ Year’ shall mean a year of this Agreement (i.e. Yeahall mean that period commencing on the Effediiaée and ending on the
first anniversary of the Effective Date).

2. Licenses

2.1 Technology License to APD. Subject totdrens and conditions of this Agreement, Landeclheggants to APD an exclusive,
worldwide, non-transferable, non-sublicensablerige for all rights to use, make, have made, maskét offer for sale, import and export
and otherwise exploit the Licensed Technology withie APD Fields; provided, however, that Landealsietain the right to use the
Licensed Technology within the APD Fields solelynagded to perform its obligations under Sectitel®dw. For the avoidance of doubt, the
forgoing license shall include the right to haviedhparties manufacture Products on behalf of ARD the right of APD’s customers to use
Products delivered to them by or on behalf of ARBtwithstanding the forgoing, the license grantethis Section 2.1 shall be subject to the
terms of License and Development Agreement betwaadec and ******+++xxx ynder which *** retains a non-exclusive right to use and
sell ¥xrxxeekkkirr gnd which, without APD’s consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheid]l not be amended, renewed,
expanded or extended by Landec.

2.2 Technology License to Landec. Subjechéotérms and conditions of this Agreement, APD legrants to Landec an exclusive,
worldwide, non-transferable, non-sublicensablerae for all rights to use, make, have made, maskét offer for sale, import and export
and otherwise exploit the APD Improvements withia tandec Field; provided, however, that APD skehin the right to use the APD
Improvements within the Landec Field solely as ekt perform its obligations under Section 3 belbar the avoidance of doubt, excep
may be explicitly set forth in the Supply Agreemehe forgoing license shall include the right avé third parties (who are not primary
polymerization competitors of APD) manufacture proid utilizing the APD Improvements on behalf ohac and the right of Landec’s
customers to use products utilizing the APD Improeats delivered to them by or on behalf of Landethé Landec Field. To the extent that
Landec generates any revenue by selling produotiuped using the APD Improvements in the LandeldFieen Landec shall pay APD a
royalty of two percent (2%) of the Net Sales fag thtelimer polymer included in any product whishmade using the APD Improvements.

2.3 Ownership. Except for the licenses expyagmnted under this Section 2, Landec retainggttit, title and interest in and to the Landec
IP. Thus, Landec is free to transfer, license ahdravise exploit the Landec IP in the Landec Fietdldwide. Except for the licenses
expressly granted under this Section 2, APD retalingght, title and interest in and to the APD Thus, APD is free to transfer, license and
otherwise exploit the APD IP in the APD Fields vawide.

2.4 Restrictions. APD will not use the Liceti§eechnology for a purpose other than to explaitdBcts for use within the APD Fields as
expressly permitted in this Agreement. Landec mll use the APD Improvements for a purpose othaer #s expressly permitted herein.

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdhl treatment has been requested
with respect to the omitted portior
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2.5 Improvements Developed with Third Partiesch Party shall use commercially reasonabletsfforinclude provisions in third party
development contracts that would permit the otreatyPhereto to receive a license to any Improvemeatdeveloped with a third party and a
Party hereto. For those Improvements co-develogetiarty with a third party under a developmemitiart containing the forgoing
provisions, the developing Party hereby grantother Party hereto a license to such Improvemersiaunt to Section 2.1 or Section 2.2, as
applicable.

2.6 Trademark License and Restrictions.

(a) License Grant. Subject to the provisiohthis Agreement, Landec grants to APD a non-exetysion-transferable, worldwide,
royalty-free license to use the Licensed Trademarks solagnnection with the manufacture, marketing, atisiag, sale and offer for sale
the Products in the APD Fields. The foregoing isaroobligation upon APD to use such Licensed Traatks and APD shall have sole
discretion as to whether such Licensed Trademagkssed.

(b) Restrictions. APD agrees that the Prodbetsing any Licensed Trademarks (which may, amddeppropriate by APD, be co-
branded with APD trademarks) will be manufactuseadd and distributed in accordance with all apfiliesLaws and regulations and that s
products and APD shall use all reasonable efforts/bid adversely upon the name of Landec or APBD Ahall not challenge or diminish
any of Landec’s rights in the Licensed Trademanksndj the term of this Agreement or thereafter. A§Hall not sublicense, explicitly or
implicitly any rights in the Licensed Trademarkgheiut the prior express written consent of Landd®D shall not at any time incorporate
any of the Licensed Trademarks or any mark or msoksearly resembling the same as to be likelyet@eibe or cause confusion, in its
corporate or business name or logo. APD shall hahg time use or apply to register in its namelticensed Trademarks or any mark or
marks confusing similar thereto. Except for APDd&rmarks associated with co-branding hereundeusellof the Licensed Trademarks shall
accrue to the benefit solely of Landec. APD agtegmovide test samples of Products upon Landeeisanable request.

(c) Procedure. APD shall provide to Landecifigpection a certificate of analysis, label anodoict and marketing literature (including all
materials using any of the Licensed Trademarks)Heifirst commercial product in each product faniihtended for a specific application)
that incorporates a Licensed Trademark or whichlvelmarketed or distributed using a Licensed Tzt a reasonable time prior to the
initial sale or distribution of each such produandec shall have the right to make reasonablega®rincluding without limitation changes
in the color and font of the mark. At Landscequest, APD will reasonably assist Landec initodng the use of the Licensed Trademark:
conducting an annual review with Landec of APD’e n§the same. APD will at all times comply withydrademark usage guidelines that
may be provided by Landec. In the event of infrimgat of any of the Licensed Trademarks by any thady, APD will cooperate and assist
Landec in the enforcement of Landec’s rights theriiothing herein shall require APD to use the himd Trademarks.

(d) Failure to Comply. In the event that ARdlS to comply with the provisions of this Sect®®, Landec may give written notice
specifying the failure to comply. Unless the
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failure to comply is remedied within thirty (30)ydaafter such notice, Landec may terminate APRjbta solely under this Section 2.6
immediately upon written notice to APD. Upon suehrtination, APD shall cease all use of the LicenBedlemarks subject to allowing AF
and its customers to exhaust any preexisting cempinventory and compliant advertising bearingltloensed Trademarks for up to ninety
(90) days thereafter. Termination of this Sectighshall not terminate the license under the LiedriBechnology.

3. Work Plan and Research Obligations.

3.1 Work Plan. The specific research and agraknt activities to be performed by Landec, togettith any assistance to be provided by
APD are set forth in the Work Plan. Each of thetiBarshall perform its obligations under the WolkrPduring the time period in which the
Work Plan is in effect which shall be for a periwfdhree (3) Years following the Effective Date amdich may be extended by the Parties as
provided herein. Prior to the second anniversahefEffective Date, the Parties shall mutuallyeggon whether or not to continue the Work
Plan for Years four (4) and five (5) of this Agresmhand the Parties shall mutually agree on thpesobthe R&D that will occur under such
Work Plan (e.g., what R&D shall occur, and whichtypavill conduct such R&D). As more fully describ@dthe Work Plan, Landec shall
provide to APD agreed upon levels of research aveldpment services, in connection with the LicernBechnology, and technical service
and manufacturing support within the APD Fieldsinigithe R&D Period. The Work Plan is divided inteotparts: the Intelimer Instruction
Period and the R & D Period (as defined below).

(a) Intelimer Instruction Period. During theripd commencing on the Effective Date and contiguintil May 28, 2006 (the “Intelimer
Instruction Period”), Landec shall transfer coméits technology and teach APD about Landec’slimir technology by delivering the
Intelimer Instruction, as more fully described lie tWork Plan, to an extent and a degree reasosalffigient for APD to replicate the
Existing Know-How and manufacture of Landec IntemMaterials.

(b) R & D Period. The period commencing on Hfiective Date and continuing until the expiratmntermination of the Work Plan shall
be referred to herein as the “R&D Period”. Durihg R & D Period, Landec shall provide mutually &greipon levels of research and
development services, application development,nieahservice, customer support and manufactunipgasrt in connection with the licensed
technology within the APD Fields as further desedlin the Work Plan. Each of the Parties shall jp@to the other Party reasonable
technical information and assistance in conneatitth such other Party’s work under the Work PlaariBg the R&D Period, on a mutually
agreed upon regular basis, each Party shall stpphe other Party reasonable documentation coimgesuch Party’s progress and
Improvements under the Work Plan.

(c) A breach of the Work Plan shall not be@elsh of this Agreement unless a Party materiallg to satisfy a material obligation under
the Work Plan. With respect to the Intelimer Instion, APD shall notify Landec in writing of suchaterial failure by June 6, 2006 and
Landec shall have sixty (60) days to remedy sueladir from receipt of notice thereof.
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With respect to the R&D Period, APD shall notifyrideec in writing of such material breach within thi¢30) days of its knowledge of such
breach and Landec shall remedy such breach witkiyn (0) days of receipt of notice thereof. Thetjgs agree that APD may request
changes to the Work Plan (preferably during thertgulg review meetings as described in Section &i2) that Landec will use its reasonable
efforts to meet such requests provided; howevat,lthndec shall retain sole discretion over theaideandec’s resources.

(d) The completion or termination of the WéHan shall not cause a termination of this Agreemen

3.2 Review Meetings and Customer Visits. Asteonce per calendar quarter during the R&D Pedbdhutually agreeable times and
locations, representatives of the parties’ reseanthdevelopment teams and business developmérglsll meet either in person or by
videoconference to discuss the progress under thx Rian. For in-person customer or toll produdsity or review meetings requested by
APD at a non-Landec facility and a non-APD facilipther than a limited number of customer visiteead to in the Work Plan), APD shall
pay all reasonable and previously authorized trawell and lodging expenses of Landec personradtéad each meeting that is conducte
person if APD so requests the attendance of thrabpeand the Parties shall otherwise bear their cwsts associated with the Work Plan,
participating in such meetings or customer visifeead to in the Work Plan.

4. Supply Agreement. Within sixty (60) days of tkective Date, the parties shall sign an agreerftbet“Supply Agreement”) for APD to
supply Landec with its polymer requirements for *#*x*+* ‘nrovided that APD is able to supply suchproducts to Landec, either from
third party tollers or APD’s in-house productiohat meet the volume requirements and quality sjgatiéns provided by Landec. APD shall
apply a *** percent (***%) markup over Total Manwfturing Cost (as defined in the Supply Agreemér,“TMC”) to arrive at the final
sales price to Landec. The Direct Profits arisiogf the difference between the sales price to Leuatie the TMC will be shared with Lanc
in the same percentages as for Direct ProfitsrayiBiom Product sales under Section 6.2 of thissagrent. If APD achieves TMC reductions
resulting from any or all of increased producticale, decreased raw material costs, process yigldbivements, and overhead cost reduc
then the sales price to Landec will be reduceccttfe in the calendar quarter following the ondetuch cost reductions. APD shall be
obligated to either: (i) match competitive offessliandec for such *** products, provided the quimtas are from suppliers capable of
sustained production in similar quantities and iquals provided to Landec by APD for such prodattthat time, or (ii) if APD is unwilling
or unable to do so, APD hereby releases Landec ifionbligation to purchase its requirement of products from APD. Unless otherwise
agreed by the Parties, the Supply Agreement shabbe terminated by any termination of this Agreatrend shall not be affected by any
exercise of the Buy-Out Option. Any failure to eriteo a Supply Agreement or termination of the lypAgreement shall not terminate this
Agreement.

5. Reserved Field Commercialization. There maym&ouwo (2) Reserved Fields at any time duringTihem. Each Reserved Field shall h
a period of three (3) Years to be

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdal treatment has been requested
with respect to the omitted portior
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Commercialized. If such Reserved Field is Comméead during such three (3) Year period, it shalheert to an Exclusive Field and the
Parties may mutually agree to add a replacemerdriRes Field. If a Reserved Field is not Commerz@liduring such three (3) Year period,
then: (i) it automatically reverts back to Landéi;it ceases to be a “Reserved Field” as defiherkin; and (iii) the Parties may mutually
agree to add a replacement Reserved Field. Foy eesv Reserved Field that is added, such Reseredd $hall have three (3) years to
become Commercialized or it will revert to Landethwio further APD rights in such field as providaioove.

6. Fees; Payment; Taxes.
6.1 Scheduled Payments.

(a) Payments upon Agreement Signing. In camaiibn for the Intelimer Instruction to be giveeréunder, APD shall make a non-
refundable reimbursement to Landec of one hundredsand U.S. dollars ($100,000.00) upon the sigofrigis Agreement. In partial
consideration for the license to the Licensed Tetiigy granted hereunder, APD shall pay net to Larigewire transfer a non-refundable fee
of eight hundred thousand U.S. dollars ($800,000up0n the signing of this Agreement. For the asnik of doubt, the total non-refundable
fee due upon the signing of this Agreement shaliihe hundred thousand U.S. dollars ($900,000.00).

(b) Quarterly Payments. In partial considemafior the license to the Licensed Technology gttereunder, prior to the start of each
calendar quarter beginning with the first calerglaairter in Year 2 and continuing through the lastiedar quarter in Year 3, APD shall pay
net to Landec by wire transfer a non-refundableofe®vo hundred thousand U.S. dollars ($200,000.86) the avoidance of doubt, the total
non-refundable quarterly payments payable hereusttat be one million six hundred thousand U.Slaasl($1,600,000.00) and the total non-
refundable amounts due under this Section 6.1 beailvo million five hundred thousand U.S. dollé$2,500,000.00). Notwithstanding the
foregoing, no quarterly payments shall become dysagable hereunder for the post termination pernadtie event this Agreement is
terminated under Section 10.2.

6.2 Profit-Sharing. Commencing on the firshigarsary of the Effective Date and continuing tigb the tenth anniversary of the Effective
Date, subject to Sections 10.2 and 11.4 and prdvidat Landec is not in material breach of thisefgment, APD shall pay net to Landec,
forty percent (40%) of Direct Profits from the ARHelds together with forty percent (40%) of Dir€gbfits from *** products delivered to
Landec under the Supply Agreement. From the temtiivarsary of the Effective Date through the enthef Term, APD shall pay net to
Landec, ten percent (10%) of Direct Profits frora &kPD Fields together with ten percent (10%) ofebirProfits from *** products delivered
to Landec under the Supply Agreement. Notwithstagdie forgoing and subject to Sections 10.2 and, WAPD shall make the following
minimum payments (the “Minimum Payments”) to Lan@eginning in Year 2 and continuing through Year 5:

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdhl treatment has been requested
with respect to the omitted portior
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Year 2: $500,000

Year 3: $1,000,000

Year 4: $1,000,000 (Note: Subject to Section 6.4)
Year 5: $1,000,000 (Note: Subject to Section 6.4)

In the event that the Direct Profits payabléandec in any given Year (the “Direct Profit Pagntl) is less than the Minimum Payment
due for that Year, APD shall pay Landec the diffeebetween the Direct Profit Payment and suchmlinh Payment prior to the end of si
Year. In the event that APD fails to make paymemider this Section 6.2 meeting the Minimum Paynaeietin any given Year, Landec may
convert the license in the Exclusive Fields to a-erclusive license and revoke the license in teselRved Fields. For the avoidance of doubt,
there are no Minimum Payment obligations from Y@d#nrough the end of the Term. A failure to makeniium Payments because the ac
sales of Products were not high enough to triggeMinimum Payments shall not entitle Landec tmniaate this Agreement but shall entitle
Landec to the remedies contained in this paragraph.

6.3 Continued Technical Support. During thahthree (3) Years, Landec will provide resowste reasonably facilitate the objectives
described at Exhibit G, as modified by the Paiitiethe Work Plan from time to time to reflect conmgial or technical circumstances and
objectives. Such commitment from Landec will beateged in good faith by the Parties and will belidled in future versions of the Work
Plan. The foregoing commitment may continue, in ho in part, during Years 4 and 5, in accordanite the Work Plan and as mutually
decided by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.4tHeoavoidance of doubt, there are no ongoing stgitigations from Year 6 through the
end of the Term.

6.4 Changes to Minimum Payments. Notwithstagdihe provisions of Sections 6.2 and 6.3, withirty (30) days following the mutual
determination of the Parties of the existence aope of R&D efforts in Years 4 and 5 pursuant totfse 3.1, APD and Landec shall
negotiate in good faith reducing Minimum Paymentbé commensurate with any reduction in Landecuress provided under Section 6.3
for Years 4 and 5; provided, however, that APD Isteshain obligated to pay Landec, forty percen®d®f Direct Profits as provided in
Section 6.2.

6.5 Buy-Out Option. At any time commencingdla start of Year 11, or commencing at the staanyfsucceeding Year, APD may pay
Landec *** percent (***%) of the Direct Profits aing from the sale or license of Products fromitheediate prior Year, excluding any non-
recurring charge that occurred in such Year and AR&I have no further obligations to make Direwifff Payments under Section 6.2. This
balloon payment shall be in lieu of the 10% Diréobfit Payments that would otherwise be due pursieaBection 6.2 for the remainder of
the Term and is referred to herein as the “Buy-Option”.

6.6 Sales, General and Administrative CosBD/Ahall pay all of its costs related to sales, iathtmation and other general costs related to
development, sale and distribution of the Produ&th costs shall include, without limitation, pges engineering support and costs of
technical services related to sales and markefiR@ shall dedicate adequate working capital to ieitto Commercialize the Products in
Reserved Fields and meet all of its obligationgteder related to the APD Fields. All of the foregpcosts and working capital paid by A
shall be in amounts deemed solely by APD to be aateq It is contemplated by the

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdhl treatment has been requested
with respect to the omitted portior
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Parties that all of the forgoing will be provideg APD after completing the Work Plan; however,hie £vent that APD reasonably requests
that Landec provide any of the forgoing, APD shaiinburse Landec for the previously authorizedststreof. For the avoidance of doubt,
except to the extent that the Work Plan explicsthys that Landec is paying for any of the costsrileedd in this Section 6.6, after the Intelir
Instruction period, any and all of the costs désatiin this Section 6.6 requested by APD and perorby Landec or contained in the Work
Plan shall be paid for by APD.

6.7 Payment and Taxes. Payments due undeéoSéc? shall be paid monthly within thirty (30)ydaof such time as APD receives
payments from its customers for Products or fromdex under the Supply Agreement. All payments sfathade in United States dollars in
immediately available funds. APD shall pay all apgible sales, use, excise and similar taxes andsdiat connection with the Products and in
connection with all payments made under this Sedicas well as any applicable bank and/or cleashagges, unless such charges are paid
by the customer. Amounts payable under this Se@ionany other part of this Agreement that arepaad when due shall bear interest at the
rate of Prime plus one and one-half percent (1.5%pre “Prime” means the prime U.S. intank lending rate on the first business day o
calendar quarter in which such interest accruesg@srted in the Wall Street Journal.

6.8 Audit. Landec shall have the right to d@ppan independent third party auditor, not unreasdy objectionable to APD and bound by
confidentiality obligations, to audit APD’s bookisdarecords related solely to this Agreement, saféroducts and *** products and the
calculation of Direct Profits hereunder. The cadtsuch audit shall be paid for by Landec providealyever, that (i) APD shall immediately
pay the amount of the underpayment revealed bgulé (if any); and (i) in the event that such auedveals an underpayment of five percent
(5%) or more, APD shall pay all costs associatei wbnducting such audit. The audits permitted dneder will not be performed more often
than annually. Any Direct Profit Payments not digglwithin three (3) years of their quarter shalldeemed acceptable and accurate.

6.9 To the extent that a Landec patent intth&ield is invalidated and, as a result, a pastar Product exploited by APD hereunder is not
covered by any Landec patent, then the Partie$ rsleglt and reasonably discuss a Direct Profit Paymegluction with respect to such
Product; provided, however, that if such Productlie manufacture thereof) involves the use oratqtion of Landec Intelimer Materials,
Existing Know-How, Improvements or Proprietary Infation (provided that the foregoing have not eedehe public domain) then no
reduction in the Direct Profit Payments payableshader shall occur.

7. Representations and Warranties.

7.1 Each Party hereby represents and wartati® other Party that it has been duly incorpatand is validly existing in good standing
as a corporation under the laws of its jurisdictidincorporation, with the requisite corporate govand authority to enter into this
Agreement.

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdhl treatment has been requested
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7.2 Landec hereby represents and warrant$ that, to the best of Landec’s knowledge ther@®eoperties and exploitation of Landec
Intelimer Materials in the APD Fields may be exf#diin such a manner as to not infringe any thadyppatents.

7.3 Landec hereby represents and warrantst thalely owns all right, title and interest irethicensed Technology or otherwise has the
right to grant the licenses granted hereunder tlaatdExhibits A, C, F and, to the best of Landéeiewledge, E are complete and accurate as
of the Effective Date.

7.4 Landec hereby represents and warrantshtbd®atent Properties are valid and enforceabtéfteat a portion of the Licensed
Technology in the APD Field (excluding disposabb@wovens and electronics) is covered by the P&operties.

7.5 Landec hereby represents and warrantsahié best of its knowledge: (i) the Existing Knbélow and Patent Properties can be
manufactured in accordance with the Intelimer retton and used for the APD Fields, and (ii) thenofacture, shipment, disposal and use of
the Existing Know-How and Patent Properties inARD Fields does not violate any federal, stateamegnmental regulations or standards
(including, without limitation, OSHA, EPA, amonghetr US and non-US regulatory agencies, in each ta#iee extent they have
jurisdiction) when manufactured and used in acamedavith Lande’s published specifications and recommended useoaained in produ
data sheets, formulation sheets and product mdletprovided that an immaterial failure to follewch recommended uses shall not relieve
Landec of its responsibilities hereunder.

7.6 Landec hereby represents and warrantst vk disclose all of Landec’s Existing Know-Hgw.andec Improvements and Proprietary
Information, in sufficient detail to allow APD toanufacture, use and sell the Product in the APRIEie

7.7 Landec hereby represents and warrantsabatf the Effective Date, the Landec Intelimertéials do not infringe on those patents
patent applications in the *** Field listed on EkItiE. If APD suffers damages arising out of a loteaf this representation and warranty its
only remedies shall be termination under Sectio2,lidemnification under Section 11.1 and the limpant provisions of Section 11.4 and
APD may set off the amounts for which it would Imgitled to an indemnity against Direct Profit Payrgethat would otherwise be due to
Landec hereunder.

8. Confidentiality.

8.1 Confidential Information. Each Party shieht as confidential all Proprietary Informatiminthe other Party, shall not use such
Proprietary Information except as set forth in thigeement, and shall use its best efforts noigolase such Proprietary Information to any
third party except to is professional advisors uradduty of non-disclosure. Without limiting therégoing, each of the Parties shall use at
least the same degree of care which it uses teptekie disclosure of its own Proprietary Inforroatof like importance to prevent the
disclosure of Proprietary Information disclosedt oy the other Party under this Agreement. EaattyPshall disclose Proprietary Information
of the other Party only to its directors, officers,

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdal treatment has been requested
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employees, consultants and advisors who are haeedto know such information in order for suchtyPtr carry out the activities and
transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Eacty Bhall promptly notify the other Party of arstwal or suspected misuse or
unauthorized disclosure of the other Party’s Pedpry Information.

8.2 Exceptions. Notwithstanding the abovethegiParty shall have liability to the other witgard to any Proprietary Information of the
other which the receiving Party can prove:

(i) was in the public domain at the time itaadisclosed or has entered the public domain thraegfault of the receiving Party;
(i) was known to the receiving Party, withaastriction, at the time of disclosure;
(iii) is disclosed with the prior written amwal of the disclosing Party;

(iv) was independently developed by employaesonsultants of the receiving party that haveraotived access to the Proprietary
Information of the disclosing party; or

(v) is disclosed pursuant to the order or megoent of a court, administrative agency, or oth@rernmental body; provided, however, that
the receiving Party shall provide prompt noticesoéh court order or requirement to the disclosiagyPo enable the disclosing Party to seek
a protective order or otherwise prevent or restiinth disclosure.

8.3 Regulatory Filings. Landec agrees thaw#sion of this Agreement that it files with theSJSecurities and Exchange Commission
shall include a request to seek confidential trestnm a manner mutually agreed upon by the Pafesept as required to be submitted tc
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission or as it@utan a mutually acceptable announcement or pedsase, the terms of this
Agreement shall be maintained confidential.

9. Intellectual Property; Patent Matters.
9.1 Licensed Technology and Improvements.

9.1.1 Subject to the terms and condition$isf Agreement, any APD Improvements and Joint dgardvements with at least one claim
applicable to or covering at least one of the AR&dS shall be solely owned by APD and any Lanaegrbvements and other Joint Use
Improvements with at least one claim applicablertaovering at least one of the Landec Fields Swély be owned by Landec. Subject to
Section 9.1.5 below, Landec hereby assigns to AlPiight, title and interest in and to any APD Inepements and Joint Use Improvemen
the APD Fields that Landec has or may hereaftenieegSubject to Section 9.1.5 below, APD herelsigas to Landec all right, title and
interest in and to any Landec Improvements andratbiat Use Improvements in the Landec Field theDfas or may hereafter acquire. The
Parties agree that a patent application may inchiither or all of a Joint Use Improvement, a conitpms of matter Improvement and/or a
process Improvement. The Parties will and herebgssign ownership of patents and other intelleqitmberty covering such Improvements
in
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accordance with the terms and conditions of thiss&ment and such Improvements may be pursued agmsepatents.

9.1.2 Subject to Section 9.1.3, Landec shath the full co-operation of APD, and in Landssole discretion, be responsible for prepa
filing, prosecuting, maintaining and renewing amygmt applications and patents covering the Lafideeorldwide and shall do so at its sole
cost and expense. Subject to Section 9.1.3, AP, slith the full co-operation of Landec, and in BR sole discretion, be responsible for
preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining ande@img any patent applications and patents covehagdAPD IP worldwide and shall do so at
its sole cost and expense. The prosecuting Paaty/momptly provide copies of all U.S. and foreigatent office correspondences to the ¢
Party, and the prosecuting Party shall have thedistretion as to prosecution strategy for Impneeets, including appeals, abandonment,
claim coverage, maintenance fee payment and anfagitgayment, without liability to the other Party.

9.1.3 If a Party (the “Requesting Party”) wattt broaden the other Parties’ patent coveradenegipect to the APD Fields (where APD is
the Requesting Party) or the Landec Field (wheralka is the Requesting Party), the Parties wiloaably discuss such action and the
Requesting Party will bear all costs for preparfiling, prosecuting, maintaining and renewing gagent applications and patents related to
such request.

9.1.4 In the event that either party wishealtandon any Improvements it owns hereunder wahinpart of the applicable territory that
party shall notify the other party in writing anfimutually agreed between the parties, shall fiem@wnership and prosecution responsibility
for such Improvements in the applicable territarghe other party. Such abandonment shall not dechormal claim amendments,
cancellations or other limitations made to patéaints during routine prosecution.

9.1.5 The parties shall make their reasonaintkzavors to divide all Improvements so it canddelys owned by one or other Party
according to their respective fields in accordanith Section 9.1.1 above. However, notwithstandssgtion 9.1.1 above, if by mutual writi
agreement the Parties agree that some Improvermeuldsbe owned jointly, the Parties shall grantheather exclusive cost-free licenses in
their respective fields worldwide under that jojnthwvned Improvement. Notwithstanding Section 9.th2,procedures for filing, prosecuting,
maintaining and renewing any such jointly ownedliggtions for protection of Improvement worldwidieadl be agreed between the Parties in
writing on a case by case basis. Except as othemgeeed by the Parties, to the extent that anydwement is useful in the Landec Field and
the APD Fields: (a) Landec hereby grants to APRm@@tual, worldwide, non-sublicensable, non-tranadfle license to exploit within the
APD Fields such Improvement as may be owned by éanahd APD shall pay Landec a license fee equaldgercent (2%) of the Net
Sales resulting from the sale of Intelimer polymssataining such Improvements and (b) APD herelaypigrto Landec a perpetual,
worldwide, non-sublicensable, non-transferableniggeto exploit within the Landec Fields such APptavement or Joint Use Improvement
as may be owned by APD and Landec agrees to paytAB[Percent (2%) of the Net Sales resulting frowa $ale of Intelimer polymers
containing such Improvements. Notwithstanding aimgttherein to the contrary, in the event that ARDelops an APD Improvement or a
Joint use Improvement in a Reserved Field that A& to Commercialize, then APD hereby grants
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to Landec an exclusive, perpetual, worldwide, signisable and transferable license to sell andwiberexploit within the Reserved Field
such Improvement as may be owned by APD and Laageses to pay APD two percent (2%) of the Net Sasglting from the sale of
Intelimer polymers containing such Improvements baddec further agrees that any third party mariufac of such Improvement will not
be a primary polymerization competitors of APD. Withstanding anything herein to the contrary, withAPD’s prior written approval,
Landec shall not have the right to transfer oriseblse any APD Improvement to a direct polymergattompetitor of APD. For the
avoidance of doubt, during the Term of the Agreetmamy amounts payable by APD under this SectitrbShall be included within and not
be in addition to the Direct Profit Payments.

9.1.6 Each Party agrees to cooperate witlotier Party or its designee(s) (at such other Paeypense if not otherwise expressly set 1
herein), both during and after the term of this@ament, in applying for, obtaining, perfecting,dmricing, sustaining and enforcing their
respective or jointly owned rights in Improvemeintg|uding, without limitation, executing such weih instruments (including, without
limitation, declarations, assignments and powegtiiiney) as may be prepared by such Party, yswtgcols appropriate to research and
development activities to ensure all inventors sigpropriate documents, coordinating and agreeintipuing of filing patent applications a
scope of claims for related inventions in the refipe Fields and doing such other acts as may bessary in the opinion of such Party to
obtain a patent, register a copyright, or otherweisrce such Party’s rights in such Improvementsuch products, respectively.

9.1.7 The parties hereto agree that Improvésmgenerated within this Agreement are part ofirat j@search agreement and effort, purs
to 35 U.S.C. §103(c), and that each party will pptisnexecute any document, including a terminatidisner, and other documents deemed
necessary by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Offd®RTO”) to comply with this statutory provision. This secti9.1.7 is excluded from a
confidentiality restrictions provided for in thisgleement and can be filed with the USPTO.

9.2 Enforcement of Rights

9.2.1 Notice of Alleged Infringement. Eachtiyahall provide written notice (an “Infringemenbtite”) promptly to the other Party of any
alleged infringement by a third party of the LicedsTechnology or Improvement in the APD Field, whilecomes known to the first Party
and, together with such notice, provide the ottatyPwith all evidence in the notifying Party’s gession of such alleged infringement.

9.2.2 Enforcement. Following an Infringemermtide from either Party, the party that owns tHewant Proprietary Rights shall have the
first right, but not the obligation, to enforce,igtown expense and utilizing counsel of its owpice, any actual or alleged infringement or
misappropriation of the Proprietary Rights. In &went that the owning Party does not elect toatgta suit or action as provided above within
six (6) months of the applicable Infringement Netithe other Party shall have the right, but netdhligation, to prosecute or defend against,
at its expense and utilizing counsel of its cho@®; actual or alleged infringement or misapprdpiaof the Proprietary Rights.
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9.2.3 Party to the Suit. In the event oneyPgistes notice to the other Party that in the fiRatty’s opinion they should both take action
against a third party with respect to infringemehany jointly owned Improvement, and in the evimatt the Parties cannot promptly agree to
a joint enforcement course of action, or if a Partlicates its intent not to act (“the Non-EnfogiRarty”), the Party which desires to take
action through licensing, litigation or arbitratianay take such action (“the Patent Enforcing Party that event, the Patent Enforcing Party
shall solely be responsible for all enforcemerdteyy, and attorneys’ fees and costs associatéddtenforcement, and shall solely receive
all damages, awards, proceeds and compensatiortti@mfringer, whether from licensing, litigatian arbitration, and even if the Non-
Enforcing Party joined pursuant to Fed. R.Civ. ®ot the like but is not an actively paying papamt in the enforcement action. The Non-
Enforcing Party shall voluntarily join if deemedaessary by a court or arbitrator pursuant to FedCiR P. 19 or the like, but only if the
accused infringer is not a current customer, ctija@nt venturer, or current supplier to the joigiNon-Enforcing Party. The Patent Enforcing
Party shall promptly reimburse the Non-EnforcingtiPéor all reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs@ated with the litigation or arbitration
initiated by the Patent Enforcing Party.

9.2.4 Damages. Any award of damages or argr @imounts awarded, recovered or obtained in ctionewith a disposition of any suit or
legal action under this section shall be for thedfi¢ of the Party bringing or entering the suilegal action, but only to the extent arising
from infringements or misappropriation within th&®B Fields; all other proceeds shall be the propafrgnd shall be retained by or provided
to Landec. In the event that Landec refuses tasuit for an infringement within the APD FieldsdaAPD successfully concludes such an
action where a third party was found to infringetie APD Field, then the amount of Direct Profityable hereunder shall be reduced by a
mutually agreed amount that represents the royiadtlywould have been due from such infringer iatieh to the sales that were made by :
infringer over the period of two (2) years priorth@ date of final resolution of such action. ARalsbe permitted to settle such an action
provided, however, it must obtain Landec’s prioitign consent, which will not be unreasonably witlah prior to agreeing to any such
settlement in which there is a reasonable likelihtiamt Landec would be adversely affected by aich settlement.

9.2.5 Options Upon Notice of Infringement. Hdan and APD agree to work cooperatively regardisges concerning Proprietary Rights
and similar matters and to exercise reasonablebssijudgment in carrying out the objectives of thjjreement to avoid exposing either
Party to liability under patent or similar Lawsany of the countries in the applicable territory.

10. Term and Termination.

10.1 Term. The term of this Agreement shathomence upon the Effective Date and continue thexeahtil the later of (i) the last to
expire of any of the Patent Properties or (ii) ttyef20) years from the Effective Date (the “Terraf)less terminated earlier, as provided
herein.
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10.2 Early Termination.

(a) Upon any material breach of, or materefhdlt under, this Agreement (including failuremiake any payment due hereunder or
abandonment of a substantial portion of the Licdrigechnology by APD) by a Party, if the non-breaghiParty notifies the breaching Party
within ninety (90) days of gaining knowledge of Blareach, the nohreaching Party may terminate this Agreement upitten notice to th
breaching Party unless the breaching Party cum@sisteach or default within sixty (60) days (ortwiespect to late payments under
Section 6, within thirty (30) days) after the dafesuch written notice. If APD exercises the Buyt@uyption in accordance with Section 6.5,
then this Agreement shall terminate as of the daseich exercise. In the event that the aggregatnues of APD in the *** Field are
*rxxekx helow those Revenue Projections listed inxBibit D in any one of the *** and such shortfadl taused by ******** then, at either
Party’s request, the Parties shall engage in gaitid discussions regarding terminating this Agrestnaed transferring customer relationships
and the licenses granted hereunder back to Landec.

(b) At anytime during the ***, APD may termitgathis Agreement upon ninety (90) days prior writhotice if there is a ***x***¥*xrxx gp
based upon opinion from counsel which has been rkiaolen to Landec (in a manner to preserve attodtient privilege),

K*kkkkkkkkkkhkkkkhkkk

10.3 Effect of Expiration or Termination. Ttegmination or expiration of this Agreement shait:r(a) relieve a Party hereto of any
obligation accruing to such Party prior to suchmi@ation; or (b) result in the waiver of any ridit a Party hereto accruing to such Party
to such termination.

10.4 Survival. The following sections of tiligreement shall survive expiration or terminatidrihis Agreement for any reason:
Sections 1, 2.1 (only to the extent necessary tmp@&PD to exploit the APD Improvements or JoirdéJmprovements created prior to such
termination on a non-exclusive basis and APD gbefl Landec a license fee of two (2%) percent oiNbBeSales of Intelimer polymers), 2.2
(only to the extent necessary to permit Landecxpioét the APD Improvements or Joint Use Improvetsarreated prior to such termination
on a non-exclusive basis and Landec shall pay AR&ease fee of two percent (2%) of Net Sales télimer polymers to the extent that they
use the APD Improvements or Joint Use Improvemegt8) 2.4, 4 (pursuant to the terms of the Supgiseement), 6.8, 8, 9, 10, and 12
through 15. Notwithstanding the forgoing, (i) t@ tbxtent that Landec terminates this AgreemenARID’s material breach, Section 2.1 (only
to the extent necessary to permit APD to explatA?D Improvements or Joint Use Improvements ceept®r to such termination on a non-
exclusive basis) shall survive and APD shall pagdex a license fee of five percent (5%) of Net Safdntelimer polymers; and (ii) to the
extent that APD terminates this Agreement for Larelenaterial breach, Section 2.2 shall survive moa-exclusive basis (only to the extent
necessary to exploit APD Improvements or Joint ldgerovements created prior to such termination) laavatdlec shall pay APD a license fee
of five percent (5%) of Net Sales of Intelimer polgrs to the extent that they use the APD Improvésa&iotwithstanding the forgoing,
Section 2.1 shall not survive in the event of amynination under Section 10.2 (b), except for AP&Bstinued right to exploit the APD
Improvements or Joint Use Improvements

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdhl treatment has been requested
with respect to the omitted portior
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created prior to such termination provided that Adhall pay Landec a license fee of five percent)(6#iNet Sales of Intelimer polymers.

10.5 Not Sole Remedy. The foregoing termimatights are in addition to, and not in lieu ofyather remedy available under this
Agreement unless otherwise expressly provided herei

11. Indemnification.

11.1 By Landec. Subject to Section 11.3 beldwving the first three (3) Years of the Term a§tAgreement, Landec shall indemnify,
defend and hold APD and its directors, employegsnts and affiliates harmless from and againstatiages, losses, liabilities, costs
(including without limitation reasonable attornejsés) and expenses (including any pre-approvéigsent) in connection with (i) any third
party claim to the extent arising out of the actuadlleged infringement or violation of any thjperty right by exploitation of the Licensed
Technology in the manner contemplated by this Agwexg; or (i) any breach of the representations\aadanties hereunder.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, La’s obligations under this Section 11 will not appdyany claims, damages, liabilities, costs or
expenses to the extent that they arise out osgkifications provided by APD that are prepareithovit collaboration with Landec; (y)
modifications of any Licensed Technology in the APiglds, which are not covered by Landec ImprovemenJoint Use Improvements, or
that materially alter the form or functionality teef or (z) combinations of any of the Licensedhreslogy in the APD Fields with any
product not provided by Landec; provided that stmmbination materially alters the form or functiointhe Licensed Technology or that st
claim, damage, liability, cost or expense arisesopor relates to such non-Landec product ((xX),afyd (z), collectively, “Held Back Claimg”
Following the three (3) year indemnity period, ABRall have no claim and Landec shall have no otitiga with respect to (i) and (ii) above
for claims made after the first three (3) Yearshef Term of this Agreement. Notwithstanding anyghio the contrary, Landec shall not be
obligated to indemnify APD pursuant to this Sectidnl unless and until the total amount of loseearred by APD exceeds fifty-thousand
dollars ($50,000.00 USD) in the aggregate, in wieieant Landec shall indemnify APD for all losseo#®rwise provided herein.

11.2 By APD. Subject to Section 11.3 belowrjmythe Term of this Agreement and thereafter, AdP@ll indemnify, defend and hold
Landec and its directors, employees, agents af@dt&E$ harmless from and against all damagesefdmbilities, costs (including without
limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees) and expe(isetiding any pre-approved settlement) in conioactvith: (i) any Held Back Claim; or
(i) any third party claim to the extent arisingtaf any Product manufactured and/or sold by APReet to the extent that APD is entitled to
indemnification from Landec under Section 11.1 ahd\WD’s indemnification obligation under this Sent11.2 shall be capped at a total
amount of two and one-half million dollars.

11.3 Conditions to Indemnification. In anyioigor defense or indemnification hereunder, thdemnified party must (i) give the
indemnifying party prompt written notice of the dipable claim; (ii) reasonably cooperate with thdémnifying party at the indemnifying
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party’s request and expense, in the defense asetfbement of the claim; and (iii) give the indefgimig party the right to control the defense
and/or settlement of the claim, except that theimnuifying party will not enter into any settleméat adversely affects the indemnified
party’s rights or obligations without the indemaiparty’s proper express written consent, whidhnet be unreasonably withheld or
delayed. The indemnified party may participatehi@ defense and/or settlement of any such claits atin expense with counsel of its
choosing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any falof the indemnified party to comply with the prsiens of this Section 11.3 will not
relieve the indemnifying party of any defense ateimnity obligations hereunder except to the exteattthe indemnifying party is prejudiced
by such failure.

11.4 Impairment.

(a) For the first three (3) Years, in the dwbat the Revenue Projection (as defined belov@niyn such Year listed in Exhibit D (*** Field
Customer Sales Forecast) are not met due to: {j)a¢ reasonably documented, confirming that ttanry reason for *** not meeting ***
the Revenue PI’OjeCtlon at EXthIt D |S that *******************************, andlor (") |f *kkkkkkk *kkkkkkkkkkhkkhkhkkkhkkkkkkkkx
terminate or reduce the sale of Products *** *#sckkkkiriidikktkkkiaakikres ((i) and (i) are re ferred to herein as “Impairment”);
then APD'’s Direct Profit Payments payable undettiSe®.2 to Landec shall be reduced as describéuisrSection 11.4. In any or all of the
first 3 Years, if an Impairment occurs during siYaar, then APD’s Direct Profit Payments to Landealkbe reduced by the Impairment
Amount (as defined below) in the immediate follog/iviear as described below.

(b) A “Revenue Projection” for a particular afeshall mean the revenues in the Personal Cale prigiected for that Year, as described on
Exhibit D.

(c) A “Direct Profit Projection” for a partitar Year shall mean the Direct Profits in the Peed&Care Field projected for that Year, as
described on Exhibit D.

(d) The “Impairment Amount” shall be calculdtey obtaining the percentage by which the reveiuédse *** Field in any of the first
three (3) Years falls below the Revenue Projedtioa to an Impairment for that Year and then muyliig) that percentage by the Direct Profit
Projection for that Year to obtain a dollar amowhich shall be the Impairment Amount. Notwithstargdthe forgoing, for the purpose of
calculating the Impairment Amount, the total revemior a Year shall include revenues from all cugtis of APD in the *** Field, whether
or not listed in Exhibit D and, for the avoidandedoubt, shall also include the revenues from theipt owner(s) listed on Exhibit E and shall
include all revenues from those customers on EkBilthat purchase more Products than was projdoteslich customer.

(e) The Direct Profit Payments to Landec wlaoh reduced in accordance with this Section 1adl be reduced in the Year immediately
following the Year during which an Impairment hasworred by reducing each monthly Direct Profit Papirby one twelfth of the
Impairment Amount. By way of example, if revenues’ear 2 were thirty percent (30%) below the ReeeRtpjection ((Revenue Projection-
Actual Revenues from Customers in Exhibit D)/ReveRuojection) in the *** Field, and this reductiaras caused by Impairment, then this
percentage multiplied by the Direct Profit Projentfor Year 2 would determine the Impairment

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftéhl treatment has been requested
with respect to the omitted portior
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Amount for Year 2 to be subtracted in equal monih$tallments from the Direct Profit Payments ina¥ 8. If the Direct Profit Projection w
$200,000 in Year 2, the Impairment Amount wouldss6,000 and the monthly Direct Profit payments ealvy3 would be reduced by $5,000
per month. As a further example, if this same yhpeercent (30%) Impairment was offset by a fivecpet (5%) (as a percent of the Revenue
Projection) increase in revenues from a custom#rart** Field in Exhibit D and an additional teregzent (10%) of revenues from a custa
in the *** Field not listed in Exhibit D then, inceaordance with Section 11.4 (d), fifteen perces£4) would be multiplied by the Direct Prc
Projection to determine the Impairment Amounthé Direct Profit Projection was $200,000 in Yeath2, Impairment Amount would be
$30,000 and the monthly Direct Profit payments &al'3 would be reduced by $2,500 per month.

(f) APD agrees to provide Landec with inforfoaton the appropriate customer contacts and atogksse customers listed on Exhibit D
in order to verify the terms of this Section 118y amounts withheld from Landec in accordance whik Section 11.4 shall count towards
Landec’s total aggregate liability under Sectior?1Zhe Minimum Payments described at Section i6a® be reduced in the Year
immediately following the Year during which the laipnent has occurred by the same dollar amouriteaBirect Profit Payments are
reduced by an Impairment under this Section 11h4. Harties may agree to pay certain amounts **théo*** which will count towards the
Impairment Amount.

11.5 Sole Remedy. The indemnification obligasi under this Section 11 shall be the indemnifyiagy’s sole obligation and the
indemnified party’s sole remedy with respect to Brgach of Section 7 or other event giving rissnttemnification hereunder.

12. Limitation of Liability and Disclaimers.

12.1 INCIDENTAL AND CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. NHIHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE UNDER ANY CONTRACT,
NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER LEGAL OR EQUIABLE THEORY FOR ANY INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUBJECT MATTER OF THISGREEMENT, EXCEPT IN CONNECTION WITH A BREACH C
SECTION 8 ABOVE OR AS EXPRESSLY DESCRIBED IN SECNQ1.4 OR FOR LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF A PARTY
EXCEEDING THE SCOPE OF ANY LICENSE GRANTED TO SURARTY HEREUNDER.

12.2 LIMITATION OF OBLIGATIONS AND LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT WILL LANDEC BE LIABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT
WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS AGREEMHENUNDER ANY CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT
LIABILITY OR OTHER THEORY FOR COST OF PROCUREMENTRBUBSTITUTE GOODS, SERVICES, TECHNOLOGY OR
RIGHTS OR FOR ANY AMOUNTS AGGREGATING IN EXCESS OHE CUMULATIVE AMOUNTS ACTUALLY PAID BY APD TO
LANDEC PURSUANT TO SECTION 6.1 OF THIS AGREEMENT ORNVO AND ONE HALF MILLION DOLLARS; WHICHEVER IS
LESS. FURTHERMORE, THE AMOUNT OF ANY REDUCTION INIBECT PROFIT PAYMENTS THAT WOULD HAVE

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdhl treatment has been requested
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BEEN PAID TO LANDEC PURSUANT TO SECTION 11.4 HEREGHALL FURTHER REDUCE LANDEC’S TOTAL MAXIMUM
LIABILITY HEREUNDER.

12.3 DISCLAIMERS. TO THE EXTENT THAT LANDEC H8 PUBLISHED SPECIFICATIONS OR OTHERWISE PROMOTED
USAGE OF THE INTELIMER TECHNOLOGY FOR A CERTAIN ARRCATION, THEN LANDEC HEREBY WARRANTS THAT
SUCH TECHNOLOGY MAY BE USED FOR SUCH APPLICATIONR®VIDED THAT IT IS USED IN COMPLIANCE WITH SUCH
PUBLISHED SPECIFICATIONS AND RECOMMENDED USES. OTIRETHAN THE FORGOING REPRESENTATION AND THOSE
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES CONTAINED AT SECTIOR, THE LANDEC INTELIMER MATERIALS AND THE
LICENSED TECHNOLOGY ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND WITHOU WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR
NON-INFRINGEMENT.

13. Independent Contractors. The Parties are imdkgme contractors and not partners, parties tandyenture or otherwise affiliated, and
neither has any right or authority to bind the otheany way.

14. Assignment. The rights and obligations of thetiBs under this Agreement may not be assignéduwosferred (and any attempt to do so
will be void) except (a) to an Affiliate , and (thlis Agreement and the rights and obligations hedteumay be assigned to an acquirer of ¢
substantially all of the assets of the assigningyRa which this Agreement relates, or to an aceudf a majority of the voting power of the
then outstanding capital securities of the assigRarty. In the event that Section 14 (b) abovd apaly to an Affiliate of a Party hereto,
then such Affiliate shall continue to be bound hg tights and obligations of this Agreement. Anypouted assignment in violation of this
section is void. Subject to the foregoing, this égmnent is binding upon and shall inure to the bieakthe Parties and their respective
successors and assigns.

15. Miscellaneous.

15.1 Amendment and Waiver. Except as otherexgeessly provided herein, any provision of thggement may be amended and the
observance of any provision of this Agreement mayvhived (either generally or any particular inse&aand either retroactively or
prospectively) only with the written consent of thexties.

15.2 Governing Law; Jurisdictions. This Agregrmshall be governed by and construed in accoedaitb the Laws of the State of New
York applicable to contracts made and to be peréarmholly therein between parties residing in Nearky without regard to conflicts of
laws provisions thereof and without regard to thétéH Nations Convention on
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Contracts for the International Sale of Goods.didbputes arising out of or in connection with tAgreement shall be finally settled by
binding arbitration under the rules of the Ameridabitration Association (“AAA”) in accordance witkaid rules. The location of such
arbitration shall be in New York, New York. The #ration shall be conducted by a panel of threétiators who are knowledgeable in the
subject matter which is at issue in the disputeatridast two of which shall be a registered UZ&eR Attorneys or patent agents (the
“Panel”). Each Party shall have the right to appoime member of the Panel, with the third membdretonutually agreed by the two Panel
members appointed by the Parties, or, failing sagrieement, shall be selected according to the Af\dsr In conducting the arbitration, the
Panel shall determine what discovery will be petedit consistent with the goal of limiting the castl time which the Parties must expenc
discovery (and provided that the Panel shall pesanth discovery deemed necessary to permit anadsdgiitesolution of the dispute). The
decision of the Panel shall be in writing and skatlforth the basis therefore. The Parties slhidleaby all awards rendered in arbitration
proceedings, and such awards may be enforced amuditex] upon in any court having jurisdiction over Party against whom enforcemen
such award is sought. The Panel shall also deterthmsteps, if any, that a Party should take tcecbany failure or breach by such Party
pertaining to any such dispute. The Parties shallesequally the Panel’s fees and expenses urtlessvise determined by the Panel.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party mayksiegunctive relief, to the extent permitted herdmany court of competent jurisdictic

15.3 Headings. Headings and captions arediovenience only and are not to be used in thepgrdtation of this Agreement.

15.4 Notices. All notices, requests, apprgvamsents or other communications required or fierdto be given herein shall be in writing
and shall be sulfficiently given if delivered peratiy, forwarded by certified mail with proper pogéaprepaid and return receipt requested (or
by other prepaid commercial delivery service tr@tuinents delivery) or transmitted by email withemmail acknowledgement confirming
delivery by the recipient, in each case to theyP@artvhich directed at its address indicated belsuch communications shall be deemed
given upon delivery on a business day to the addsteded herein of the Party to which directedwitbstanding any acceptance, rejection or
acknowledgment of such delivery) or, if not dele@mon a business day, the next succeeding busiags#&ny Party may from time to time
designate in writing any other address to whicthstmmmunications shall be sent.

If to APD, to:

Air Products And Chemicals, Inc.

7201 Hamilton Boulevard

Allentown, Pennsylvania 18195

Atten: Business Manager Personal Care Products

With a copy to: Office of Chief Patent Counsel
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If to Landec, to:

Landec Corporation

3603 Haven Avenue

Menlo Park, California 94025-1010

Telephone Number: Main — (650) 306-1650; Direct 65Q) 261-3686
Email: sbitler@landec.com

With a copy to: dtaft@landec.com
Attention: Steven P. Bitler, Vice President, CogterTechnology

with a copy to: APD Relationship Manager

15.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, togettith all attachments and exhibits hereto, suphrsall prior proposals, oral or written,
negotiations, conversations, or discussions betweamong the parties relating to the subject maftéhis Agreement. The foregoing
language shall not be read to supersede the Ségpéement to be negotiated by the Parties purdoa®éction 4 provided, however, this
Agreement shall govern any conflicts between thepBuAgreement and this Agreement, unless the gmetkplicitly state otherwise in the
Supply Agreement.

15.6 Force Majeure. Neither Party hereto dtmllesponsible for any failure to perform its gations under this Agreement (other than
obligations to pay money) if such failure is caubgdcts of God, war, terrorism (actual or threatBnstrikes, revolutions, lack or failure of
transportation facilities, Laws or other causes #na beyond the reasonable control of such P@ttligations hereunder, however, shall in no
event be excused but shall be suspended onlythatdessation of any cause of such failure. Irethent that such force majeure should
obstruct performance of this Agreement for moretsia (6) months, the Parties hereto shall consitit each other to determine whether this
Agreement should be modified. The Party facing\amneof force majeure shall use its reasonablatsffo order to remedy that situation as
well as to minimize its effects. A case of forcejenae shall be notified to the other Party by emadihin five (5) days after its occurrence and
shall be confirmed by a letter. In no event sha#i Section 15.6 serve to extend the term of tilgseAment.

15.7 Severability. If any provision of this ks@ment is held illegal, invalid or unenforceabjeabcourt of competent jurisdiction, then that
provision shall be interpreted to preserve theninté the Parties if possible, and if not, thert fpi@vision will be limited or eliminated to the
minimum extent necessary so that this Agreemerit steerwise remain in full force and effect anddrdorceable.

15.8 No Implied License. Each Party recognthes the other Party grants no license, by impiiceor otherwise, except for the licenses
expressly set forth in this Agreement.

15.9 Basis of Bargain. Each Party recogninesagrees that the warranty disclaimers and ligtaind remedy limitations in this Agreem
are material bargained for bases of this Agreerardtthat they have been taken into account angctefl in determining the consideration to
be given by each Party under this Agreement arldeirecision by each Party to enter into this Agreet.
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15.10 Counterparts. This Agreement may bewredn one or more counterparts (including by ifade or electronic transmission), each
of which shall for all purposes be deemed to beraginal and all of which shall constitute the saimgrument.

15.11 Bankruptcy. The Parties agree thatitem$es granted hereunder are subject to Sectis(m)36f the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

(Signature Page Follows)
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The Parties have caused their duly authoriepresentatives to execute and deliver this Agre¢ae of the Effective Date.

AIR PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS, INC. LANDEC CORPORATION

By: By:

Name: Name: Gary T. Steele

Title: Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

ATTACHED AND INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE EXHIBITS AT HROUGH G
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Exhibit A
Patent Properties

The Landec Patents licensed in the Exclusive FizhdsReserved Fields include but are not limitethéofollowing:
(1) Landec patents and patent applications relatnigandec internal docket 11551-X

a. US 6,199,318 Aqueous Emulsions of Crystalline P@ggrfor Coating Seec

b. US 6,540,984 Aqueous Dispersions of Crystalling/ielrs and Use

US 20030147946 Aqueous Dispersions of CrystalliolgrRers and Use

d. CIP's, continuations, divisionals and foreign equivés
(2) Landec patents and patent applications relatnigandec internal docket 12969-X

a. US 20010018484 Polymeric Thickeners for-Containing Composition

b. US 6,989,417 Polymeric Thickeners for-Containing Composition

c. CIP's, continuations, divisionals and foreign equivés
(3) US 6,831,116 Polymeric Modifying Agents
(4) US 6,255,367 Polymeric Modifying Agents
(5) US 6,224,793 Encapsulated Active Materials
(6) All other Landec patents and patent applicatimnthe extent that they relate to the ExclusivBReserved Fields.




Exhibit B

Work Plan

() “Intelimer Instruction” shall mean the instrimm to APD given by Landec’s V.P. of Corporate Tealogy (currently Steven P. Bitler) who
will commit up to *** hours and Landes’Chief Operating Officer (currently David D. Taftho will commit up to *** hours commencing ¢
the Effective Date and continuing until May 28, 8Qthe period from the Effective Date through May 2006 is sometimes referred to as
“Intelimer Instruction Period”) and which shall inde, without limitation:

a) Detailed review of relevant patents, patent appbos, and patent claims and trade sec

b) Side Chain Crystalline (SCC) chemistry and prodissign fundamental

¢) Manufacturing process knchow;

d) Introduction to tollers; toller process familiarizm;

e) EH&S, including regulatory and Personal Care-regulation requiremen

f)  Applications development knc-how;

0) Enc-use customer introductions and familiarization vat-going product developme

h)  Technical service (including with customers) anchafacturing suppor!

i)  Other fundamental aspects of Intelimer technolagjgite, including regulatory compliance and reditns, and

)i Any other of Landec’s Existing Knowlow, and Proprietary Information in sufficient déta allow APD to manufacture, use and :
the Products, including, without limitation, comi@elocumentation, drawings, samples and auiioal materials supporting same
each case as reasonably necessary to permit ARRrafacture, use and sell the Produ

During the Intelimer Instruction Period, APBadl provide adequate and trained resources, elgmit/to at least one full time staff person,
to receive the Intelimer Instruction to assure thitreceived with clear understanding. Landelt prbvide written documentation of the
Intelimer Instruction to assist in the transfeicopies of the Licensed Technology. APD will retwrith a written list of questions on the
Licensed Technology within thirty (30) days of th#ective Date to allow Landec adequate time t@oes! to these questions before May 28,
2006.

To complete the Intelimer Instruction Lande¢'®. of Corporate Technology and Landec’s Chieé@fing Officer will visit APD’s
headquarter facility in Allentown, PA. to assurdidey of Intelimer Instruction a minimum of twanties before May 28, 2006.

(i R&D Plan: Within thirty (30) days of the Efféige Date and during the R&D Period, the Partiegado meet to develop a detailed R&D
plan for Year 1 that can be modified from timeitod, preferably during the quarterly review meesingy agreement of the parties but at the
direction of APD. Annual work plans for Years 2 a@hdill be developed at the appropriate time.

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdhl treatment has been requested
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As a part of the R&D Plan, Landec will detgecific research and development activities tpdréormed and APD will detail any
assistance it will provide for the Work Plan aslvasl application development, technical servicastamer support and manufacturing
support APD requires from Landec. During the R&Di&#, Landec shall provide the equivalent of astaaree (3) full time staff persons as
well as appropriate facilities to provide suchétgs. APD assistance will be determined by APM aiill include the resources of sales,
business development, application development teahservice and process engineering staffing delespropriate required to meet the
R&D Plan and to assist in accomplishing the WorknPds detailed and modified according to SectiénThe parties agree to collaborate to
prepare detailed plans, objectives and milestohbstb parties to meet the short term and long tebjectives of the R&D Plan.
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Exhibit C

Territories in which Licensed Mark is Registered
Landec has registered the INTELIMER mark
— Temperature sensitive polymers for use in manufaatéifilms, coatings and adhesiv
In the following countries

United States: Registration Number 1,653,
Canada: Registration Number 383,¢
Japan: Registration Numbers 4095860 (English), 438@English), 4124857 (Katakana), 423935 (Katak

Landec is permitted to grant APD a licenséemthe following trademarks which Landec’s eye=qaairtner, Alcon, has registered the
INTELIMER mark as:

Class 1 — Polymers alone and in combinatioh wiher ingredients for the manufacture of filmsatings, adhesives and medical
devices,

In the following countries

Algeria, Argentina, Armenia, Australia, Austrizerbaijan, Belarus, Benelux, Bolivia, Brazil, IBaria, Chile, China, Colombia, Costa
Rica, Croatia, Cuba, Denmark, Dominican Republaydfior, Egypt, El Salvador, Estonia, Finland, Feai@ermany, Greece,
Guatemala, Honduras, Hong Kong, Hungary, Icelamdial Indonesia, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Japan, &dustan, Korea North, Korea
South, Kyrgyzstan, Latvia, Lebanon, Liechtenstkithuania, Macedonia, Malaysia, Mexico, Moldova, h@o, Morocco, New
Zealand, Nicaragua, Norway, Pakistan, Panama, Raya&eru, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Russian Bgdey San Marino, Saudi
Arabia, Serbia-Montenegro, Singapore, Slovakiay&iia, South Africa, Spain, Sweden, Switzerlandwaa, Tajikistan, Thailand,
Turkey, Turkmenistan, Ukraine, United Kingdom, Uunag, Uzbekistan, Venezuela, Vietnam, WIF




Exhibit D
*** Field Customer Sales Forecasts

* Certain information on this page has been aditind filed seperately with the Commission. Canftdhl treatment has been requested
with respect to the omitted portior




Exhibit E

See attached patent list.

* k k k
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Exhibit F
Reserved




Exhibit G

APD Fields Customer Sales Forecasts

* k k k
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Exhibit 10.66

LANDEC CORPORATION
2005 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF STOCK OPTION GRANT

Optionee:

You have been granted an option (the “Optidaa’purchase Common Stock of Landec Corporatiom ‘{@ompany”), as follows:

Date of Grant

Exercise Price Per Shai

Total Number of Shares Grante

Total Exercise Price

Type of Option:

Term/Expiration Date

Vesting Commencement Da

Vesting Schedule: So long as your Service continues, the Shares Iyiraethis Option
shall vest and become exercisable in accordantetheétfollowing
schedule: [1/36th of the total number of Sharegesito this Option
shall vest and become exercisable on each monthlyersary
thereafter.




Termination Period: This Option may be exercised for six months afemination of your
Service except as set forth in Section 4 of thelS@ption Agreement
(but in no event later than the Expiration Date)tiGnee is responsible
for keeping track of the exercise period followmgermination of his or
her Service for any reason. The Company will novjate further notice
of such period

Unless otherwise defined in this Notice ofckt@ption Grant, the terms used herein shall hhgarteanings assigned to them in the Plan.

By your signature and the signature of the gamy’s representative below, you and the Compangeatipat this Option is granted under
and governed by the terms and conditions of thelearCorporation 2005 Stock Incentive Plan and tbekSOption Agreement, all of which
are attached to, and made a part of, this document.

In addition, you agree and acknowledge that yghts to any Shares underlying this Option Ww#élearned only as you provide Service
over time, that the grant of the Option is not assideration for services you rendered to the Comar any Parent, Subsidiary, or
Affiliate), prior to your Vesting Commencement Daaed that nothing in this Notice of Stock Optioraf or the attached documents confers
upon you any right to continue your employmentamsuilting relationship with the Company (or anyd®dy Subsidiary, or Affiliate) for any
period of time, nor does it interfere in any wayhwyour right or the Company’s (or any Parent’'sh&diary’s, or Affiliate’s) right to
terminate that relationship at any time, for argsan, with or without cause.

OPTIONEE: LANDEC CORPORATION
By:

Signature
Title:

Print Name




LANDEC CORPORATION
2005 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

1. Grant of Option . Landec Corporation, a California corporation (tBempany”), hereby grants to the Optionee nametiénNotice of
Stock Option Grant attached to this Stock Optiome&gnent (the “Optionee”), an option (the “Optiotd)purchase the total number of shares
of Common Stock (the “Shares”) set forth in theib®bf Stock Option Grant (the “Notice”), at theeegise price per Share set forth in the
Notice (the"Exercise Price”) subject to the terms, definiti@r provisions of the 2005 Stock Incentive Plae (Plan”), which is
incorporated in this Stock Option Agreement (thgfédement”) by reference. Unless otherwise defindtiis Agreement, the terms used in
this Agreement shall have the meanings definetlérPian.

This Option is intended to be an Incentivec&t@ption as defined in Section 422 of the Codg ¢mthe extent so designated in the Not
and to the extent it is not so designated or teettient the Option does not qualify as an Incerfilak Option, it is intended to be a
Nonstatutory Stock Option. Notwithstanding the fmimg, even if designated as an Incentive StockoBpin the event that the Shares sut
to this Option (and all other Incentive Stock Oparanted to Optionee by the Company or any Parédubsidiary, including under other
plans of the Company) that first become exercisabény calendar year have an aggregate fair magdtee (determined for each Share as of
the date of grant of the option covering such Sharexcess of $100,000, the Shares in excessQf, 800 shall be treated as subject to a
Nonstatutory Stock Option in accordance applicédbe

2. Exercise of Option. This Option shall be exercisable during its ténraccordance with the Vesting Schedule set othiérNotice and
with the applicable provisions of the Plan as fato

(a)Right to Exercise.

(i) This Option may not be exerciseda fraction of a share.

(i) In the event of Optionagermination of Service, the exercisability of Dption shall be governed by Section 4 below, stilifg
the limitations contained in paragraph (iii) below.

(i) In no event may this Option beercised after the Expiration Date as set fortthé Notice.




(b)Method of Exercise.

(i) This Option may be exerciseddajivering to the Company a fully executed Noti¢&grercise (in the form attached as
Exhibit A) which shall state the Optionee’s elentio exercise the Option, the number of Sharesspect of which the Option is being
exercised, and such other representations andragreg as to the holderinvestment intent with respect to such Sharesasbe required b
the Company pursuant to the provisions of the F3aich written notice shall be signed by Optiones irall be delivered to the Company by
such means as are determined to constitute adedglatery by the Plan Administrator in its discoeti The Notice of Exercise shall be
accompanied by payment of the Exercise Price. Opison shall be deemed to be exercised upon rebgititie Company of such fully
executed Notice of Exercise accompanied by thedisePrice.

(ii) As a condition to the exerci#fethis Option, Optionee agrees to make adequaiégion for any applicable federal, state or other
tax withholding obligations, if any, which ariseamthe exercise of the Option or disposition ofif@sawhether by withholding, direct
payment to the Company, or otherwise.

(iii) The Company is not obligateshd will have no liability for failure, to issue deliver any Shares upon exercise of the Option
unless such issuance or delivery would comply waitlapplicable laws, with such compliance determdibg the Company in consultation w
its legal counsel. This Option may not be exercif#ie issuance of such Shares upon such exerscite method of payment of
consideration for such shares would constituteokation of any applicable federal or state se@sibr other law or regulation, including any
rule under Part 221 of Title 12 of the Code of FatiRegulations as promulgated by the Federal Red®oard. As a condition to the exercise
of this Option, the Company may require Optionemséike any representation and warranty to the Coynpamay be required by any
applicable laws. Assuming such compliance, for inedax purposes the Shares shall be consideresfaread to Optionee on the date on
which the Option is exercised with respect to sBbhres.

3. Method of Payment. Payment of the Exercise Price shall be by arth@following, or a combination of the followingd, the election
of Optionee: (a) cash, (b) check, (c) surrendatibér Shares, provided that the Company may, isolis discretion, require that Shares
tendered for payment be previously held by the @eate for a minimum duration, or (d) Cashless Exerci

4. Termination of Relationship . Following the date of termination of Optionee’s Bee for any reason (the “ Termination D&fe
Optionee may exercise the Option only as set fiorthe Notice and this Section 4. To the extent @@ationee does not exercise this Option
within the Termination Period set forth in the Matior the termination periods set forth below,@ion shall terminate in its entirety. In no
event, may any Option be exercised after the Etipidate of the Option as set forth in the Noticethe event of termination of Optionee’s
Service other than as a result of Optionee’s Diggloir death or for Cause, Optionee may, to thieeixOptionee is




vested in the Option Shares at the Termination Badercise this Option during the Termination Pe&set forth in the Notice. In the event of
any other termination, Optionee may exercise thiéo@mnly as described below:

(a)Termination upon Disability of Optionee. In the event of termination of Optionee’s Serviseaaesult of Optionee’s Disability,
Optionee may, but only within six months from therfhination Date, exercise this Option to the ex@ptionee was vested in the Option
Shares as of such Termination Date.

(b)Death of Optionee. In the event of the death of Optionee while in 8=rvthe Option may be exercised at any time wiin
months following the date of death by Optioneetaiesor by a person who acquired the right to ezernhe Option by bequest or inheritance,
but only to the extent Optionee was vested in th8dd Shares as of the Termination Date.

(c)Termination for Cause. In the event Optionee’s Service is terminated fausg, the Option shall terminate immediately upahs
termination for Cause. In the event Optionee’s @yplent or consulting relationship with the Compa@nguspended pending investigation of
whether such relationship shall be terminated fange, all Optionee’s rights under the Option, iditig the right to exercise the Option, shall
be suspended during the investigation period.

5. Non-Transferability of Option . This Option may not be transferred in any martieerwise than by will or by the laws of descent or
distribution. The designation of a beneficiary doesconstitute a transfer. This Option may be @ged during the lifetime of Optionee only
by Optionee. The terms of this Option shall be lmigdipon the executors, administrators, heirs, sssars and assigns of Optionee.

6. No Employment Rights. Optionee understands and agrees that the vesdtiBigares pursuant to the Vesting Schedule is darnly by
continuing as an Employee or Consultant at theafithe Company (or any Parent, Subsidiary, orliati) and not through the act of being
hired, being granted this Option or acquiring Skaneder this Agreement. Optionee further acknowdsdind agrees that nothing in this
Agreement, nor in the Plan which is incorporatethia Agreement by reference, shall confer uporiddpe any right with respect to
continuation as an Employee or Consultant withGbenpany (or any Parent, Subsidiary, or Affiliat)r shall it interfere in any way with
or her right or the Company’s (or any Parent’s,ssdibry’s, or Affiliate’s) right to terminate his ther employment or consulting relationship
at any time, with or without cause.

7. Effect of Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms pirmbisions of the Plan and the terms and provisadrtke Notice
and this Agreement, the Plan terms and provisiba$ prevail. The Option, including the Plan, caiés the entire agreement between
Optionee and the Company on the subject matteoharel supersedes all proposals, written or oral, &l other communications between
the parties relating to such subject matter.




8. Applicable Law . This Agreement will be interpreted and enforcadar the laws of the State of California withowgaed to the
conflict of laws principles thereof.

9. Signature . This Agreement shall be deemed executed by tmep@oy and Optionee upon execution by such partidsed\otice
attached to this Agreement.




EXHIBIT A
NOTICE OF EXERCISE

To: Landec Corporatio
Attn: Administrator of the 2005 Stock Incentive P
Subject: Notice of Intention to Exercise Stock Opti

This Notice of Exercise constitutes officiatice that the undersigned intends to exercisec@pé’s option to purchase ___shares of
Landec Corporation Common Stock, under and purdoahe Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (thiariP and the Notice of Stock

Option and Stock Option Agreement (the “Agreemedtijed __ , as follows:

Number of Shares

Exercise Price per Shai

Total Exercise Price

Method of Paymer
of Exercise Price

The shares should be registered in the name (
and

1

By signing below, | hereby agree to be boupdlbof the terms and conditions set forth in Han and the Agreement. If applicable, proof
of my right to purchase the shares pursuant t&tae and the Agreement is enclos&d.

Dated:
(Signature’ (Signature’
(Please Print Nam (Please Print Nam
(Full Address; (Full Address;
1 If more than one name is listed, please spedifgther the owners will hold the shares as commuaritperty or as joint tenants with the

right of survivorship
2 Applicable if someone other than the Optionee (@ gleath beneficiary) is exercising the stockap

3 Each person in whose name shares are to be registerst sign this Notice of Exercit






Exhibit 10.67

LANDEC CORPORATION
2005 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

This Stock Unit Agreement (the “Agreement”nade and entered into as of ___, 20___ by anddeetlvandec Corporation, a California
corporation (the “Company”), and ____ pursuant mlthndec Corporation 2005 Stock Incentive Plan ‘{ian”). To the extent any
capitalized terms used in this Agreement are nfinel@, they shall have the meaning ascribed to thmethe Plan, which is attached to, and
made a part of, this Agreement. In the event arélict between the terms and provisions of thenRlad the terms and provisions of this
Agreement, the Plan terms and provisions shallakev

In consideration of the mutual agreementsiha@ntained and intending to be legally bound bgr¢he parties agree as follows:

1. Restricted Stock Units. Pursuant to the Plan, the Company hereby grantsu, and you hereby accept from the Company, tockS
Units (the “Restricted Stock Units”), on the teramsl conditions set forth herein and in the Plan.

2. Vesting of Restricted Stock Units So long as your Service continues, the Restristedk Units shall vest in accordance with the
following schedule: 100% of the total number of fReted Stock Units shall vest on the [third anmsagy] of the date of grant.

3. Termination of Service. In the event of the termination of your Servioedny reason, all unvested Restricted Stock Lshigdl be
immediately forfeited without consideration.

4. Settlement of Restricted Stock Units Restricted Stock Units shall be automaticallylsétin Shares upon vesting pursuant to
Section 2 above, provided that the Company shat in@ obligation to issue Shares pursuant to tie@ment unless and until you have
satisfied any applicable tax withholding obligasgoursuant to Section 5 below. Issuance of sucheSishall be made as soon as reasonably
practicable following the applicable vesting date.

5. Withholding Taxes . You agree to make arrangements satisfactoryet@timpany for the satisfaction of any applicabltnhoélding tay
obligations that arise in connection with the Rettd Stock Units. The Company shall not be reqgliceissue Shares pursuant to this
Agreement unless and until such obligations arisfgd.

6. Tax Advice. You represent, warrant and acknowledge that hragainy has made no warranties or representatioymutavith respect
to the income tax consequences of the transaatmmemplated by this Agreement, and you are in aomar relying on the Company or the
Company'’s representatives for an assessment oftana@onsequences. YOU UNDERSTAND THAT THE TAX LAWSID

1




REGULATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. YOU SHOULD CON8&U YOUR OWN TAX ADVISOR REGARDING ANY
RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS. NOTHING STATED HEREIN IS TNENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE USED,
FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING TAXPAYER PENALTIES.

7. Non-Transferability of Restricted Stock Units. Except as permitted by applicable law, RestriG@&mtk Units which have not vested
pursuant to Section 2 above shall not be anticihatesigned, attached, garnished, optioned, traedfer made subject to any creditor’s
process, whether voluntarily or involuntarily or the operation of law. However, this Section 7 khat preclude you from designating a
beneficiary who will receive the Shares underlyamy vested Restricted Stock Units in the evenhefyour death, nor shall it preclude a
transfer of such Shares by will or by the laws @cknt and distribution.

8. No Employment Rights. You understand, acknowledge and agree that rgpthithis Agreement shall affect in any manner \shavel
the status of your Service or the right or powethef Company (or any Parent, Subsidiary, or Ati#)ao terminate your employment or
consulting relationship with the Company (or anydpa Subsidiary, or Affiliate) at any time, foryasuch reason, with or without cause, in
accordance with applicable law.

9. Voting and Other Rights . Subject to the terms of this Agreement, you shatlhave any voting rights or any other rights and
privileges of a shareholder of the Company unleskumtil the Restricted Stock Units are settledrupesting.

10. Governing Law . This Agreement shall be governed by and constinadcordance with the laws of the State of Catif® without
regard to the conflict of laws principles thereof.

11. Notices. All notices, communications and documents unhlisrAgreement shall be in writing. All notices, counications, and
documents directed to the Company and relatedeté\greement, if not delivered by hand, shall beledsto the Company’s principal
executive office, Attention: Stock Administratiofhe current address of the Company’s principal etree office is:

Landec Corporation
3603 Haven Avenue
Menlo Park, CA 94025

All notices, communications, and documents interfdegou and related to this Agreement, if not deled by hand, shall be mailed to your
address shown on the last page of this Agreemesudr other address as you may specify by notioglang with this section. Notices,
communications, and documents not delivered by Ishatl be mailed by registered or certified maturn receipt requested, postage pre|
All




mailings and deliveries related to this Agreemdiatisbe deemed received only when actually received

12. Binding Effect . Subject to the limitations set forth in this Agneent, this Agreement shall be binding upon, andeio the benefit ¢
the executors, administrators, heirs, legal reprtagi@es, successors, and assigns of the partiesohe

13. Counterparts . This Agreement may be signed in counterparts thighsame effect as if the signature to each soghterpart were
upon a single instrument, and all counterpartd slgatleemed an original of this Agreement.

14. Severability . If any provision of this Agreement is held toureenforceable for any reason, it shall be adjusttiter than voided, if
possible, in order to achieve the intent of thdiparto the extent possible. In any event, all ofitevisions of this Agreement shall be deemed
valid and enforceable to the full extent possible.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto haveceked this Agreementonthis _ dayof  ,20
LANDEC CORPORATION

By:

(Signature)

Name:

Title:

RECIPIENT:

By:

(Signature)

Address

Telephone Numbe

Email Address




I, ,spouseof _, have read and hereby apphevieregoing Agreement. In consideration of tloenpany’s granting my spouse the right
to the Restricted Stock Units as set forth in tlgge@ment, | hereby agree to be bound irrevocabih&ygreement and further agree that any
community property or other such interest that ¥yhave in the Restricted Stock Units and the uydegiShares shall hereby be similarly
bound by the Agreement. | hereby appoint my spagsay attorney-in-fact with respect to any amendroeexercise of any rights under the

Agreement.

Spouse of Recipient






Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-109889;89368, 333-62866, 333-06163,
333-29103, 333-80313, 333-52339, 333-129895 anch 8 Nos. 333-95531 and 333-117895) pertainirtgegdNon-Plan Stock Option,
1996 Stock Option Plan, New Executive Stock Opkden, 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 1995 o Stock Option Plan, 1996
Stock Option Plan, 1996 Non-Executive Stock Opttemn, 1988 Incentive Stock Option Plan, 2005 Stackntive Plan and pertaining to
shares of common stock issued to selling sharetotifeApio, Inc. and to individual investors of aeports dated July 14, 2006, with respect
to the consolidated financial statements of Lar@erporation, Landec Corporation management’s agsa#sof the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, and the effectiess of internal control over financial reportirffg_andec Corporation, included in the Ann
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended May 28, 2006.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Jose, California
July 26, 2006






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and phaes, or caused such disclosure controls and guoese to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingmared

(b) Designed such internal control over finahecgporting, or caused such internal control diemcial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoece with generally accepted accounting princij

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regtsadisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period couryéhis report based on su
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrant’s internal control over financial repog that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ameport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@) All significant deficiencies and materiaé@knesses in the design or operation of internarabover financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: July 27, 2006

/s| Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steelt
President and Chief Executive Offic







Exhibit 31.2
I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers andré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and pharas, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingmared

(b) Designed such internal control over finahegporting, or caused such internal control diremcial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princij

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regtsadisclosure controls and procedures and predeantthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period coueyéhis report based on su
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrant’s internal control over financial repog that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(&) All significant deficiencies and materiagéaknesses in the design or operation of internarabover financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: July 27, 2006

/sl Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinne

Vice President of Finance and Administrat
and Chief Financial Office







Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Land&arporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for theripd ending May 28, 2006 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), Gary T. Steele, Chief Executive Officer and Riest of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitirshange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Repoitlygpresents, in all material respects, the firiahcondition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: July 27, 2006

/sl Gary T. Steel

Gary T. Steelt
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

* The foregoing certification is being furnishedlely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesyOXtt of 2002 (subsections (a) and
(b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, Uniftdtes Code) and is not being filed as part oftiven 10K or as a separate disclos
document






Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Land&arporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for theripd ending May 28, 2006 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Gregory S. Skinnée President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICS§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of thieaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirents of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitirshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlygpresents, in all material respects, the firiahcondition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: July 27, 2006

/sl Gregory S. Skinnge

Gregory S. Skinne

Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Accounting Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnishedlely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesyOXtt of 2002 (subsections (a) and

(b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, Uniftdtes Code) and is not being filed as part oftiven 10K or as a separate disclos
document



